Public Document Pack

WOKINGHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

A Meeting of the WOKINGHAM BOROUGH WELLBEING
BOARD will be held Virtually on THURSDAY 10
DECEMBER 2020 AT 5.00 PM

//W

Susan Parsonage
Chief Executive
Published on 2 December 2020

Note: The Council has made arrangements under the
Coronavirus Act 2020 to hold the meeting virtually via Team
Meetings, the meeting can be watched live at the following
link: https://youtu.be/cXIbBX4qgcfE

Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog
from this meeting. The use of these images or recordings is
not under the Council’s control.


https://youtu.be/cXlbBX4gcfE

‘%reating Healthy & Resilient Communities

l o
g

Key Priorities




MEMBERSHIP OF THE WOKINGHAM BOROUGH WELLBEING BOARD

Charles Margetts
Debbie Milligan
Carol Cammiss
Chris Traill
UllaKarin Clark
Philip Cook
Graham Ebers
John Halsall
David Hare

Nikki Luffingham
Susan Parsonage
Meradin Peachey

Wokingham Borough Council
NHS Berkshire West CGC
Director, Children's Services
Director Place and Growth
Wokingham Borough Council
Voluntry Sector

Deputy Chief Executive
Wokingham Borough Council
Wokingham Borough Council
NHS England

Chief Executive

Director Public Health — Berkshire West

Matt Pope Director, Adult Social Care & Health
Katie Summers Director of Operations, Berkshire West CCG
Jim Stockley Healthwatch
ITEM PAGE
NO. WARD SUBJECT NO.
25, APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence
26. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 5-10
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on
8 October 2020.
27. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest
28. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

28.1 None Specific

To answer any public questions

A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for members of
the public to ask questions submitted under notice.

The Council welcomes questions from members of the
public about the work of this Board.

Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can
relate to general issues concerned with the work of the
Board or an item which is on the Agenda for this
meeting. For full details of the procedure for
submitting questions please contact the Democratic
Services Section on the numbers given below or go to
www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions

Ann Dally has asked the Chairman of the Wokingham
Borough Wellbeing Board the following question:



http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

None Specific

None Specific

None Specific

None Specific

None Specific

None Specific

None Specific

None Specific

We welcome the founding of a Recovery College in
Wokingham and the Council's farsightedness in thus
providing such a wide range of support and information
to those recovering from poor mental health; and
would like to know how the Council plans to inform as
many residents as possible that they are eligible to
attend courses at the Recovery College?

MEMBER QUESTION TIME
To answer any member questions

COVID UPDATE
To receive an update on Covid 19.

STRATEGY INTO ACTION
To receive a report on Strategy into Action.

WOKINGHAM INTEGRATED PARTNERSHIPS
UPDATE
To receive an integrated partnerships update.

CCG OPERATING PLAN
To consider the CCG Operating Plan.

JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY
UPDATE

To receive the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy
update.

BERKSHIRE WEST SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN
PARTNERSHIP WEST BERKSHIRE, WOKINGHAM
AND READING

To receive a presentation on Berkshire West
Safeguarding Children Partnership West Berkshire,
Wokingham and Reading.

DIRECTOR PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT
To consider the Director Public Health Annual Report.

FORWARD PROGRAMME
To consider the Board’s work programme for the
remainder of the municipal year.

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent
A Supplementary Agenda will be issued by the Chief Executive if there are any
other items to consider under this heading

Verbal
Report
11-38

39-42

43 - 76

77 -94

95-108

109 - 186

187 - 190



Agenda Iltem 26.

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
WOKINGHAM BOROUGH WELLBEING BOARD
HELD ON 8 OCTOBER 2020 FROM 5.00 PM TO 5.30 PM

Present

Charles Margetts
Carol Cammiss

Wokingham Borough Council
Director, Children's Services

Chris Traill Director Place and Growth
UllaKarin Clark Wokingham Borough Council

Philip Cook Voluntry Sector

John Halsall Wokingham Borough Council

David Hare Wokingham Borough Council
Susan Parsonage Chief Executive

Matt Pope Director, Adult Social Care & Health

Katie Summers

Director of Operations, Berkshire West
CCG

Jim Stockley Healthwatch
Meradin Peachey (substituting Tessa Public Health
Lindfield)

Also Present:

Madeleine Shopland Democratic and Electoral Services

Specialist

Rachel Bishop-Firth

Ingrid Slade Public Health

Peter Slade Wellbeing Board and Community Safety
Partnership Project Support

Martin Sloan Assistant Director ASC Transformation

and Integration

16. APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were submitted from Sam Burrows, Tessa Lindfield and Debbie
Milligan.

17. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The Minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 10 September 2020 were confirmed as a
correct record and will signed by the Chairman at the next available date.

18. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

19. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
There were no public questions.

20. MEMBER QUESTION TIME

In accordance with the agreed procedure, the Chairman invited Members to submit
guestions to the appropriate Board Members.

PUBLIC



PUBLIC

20.1 Rachel Bishop-Firth asked the Chairman of the Wokingham Borough
Wellbeing Board the following question:

Question

What steps is the Council taking to protect our older and our BAME residents who are both
statistically at much higher risk from Covid-19 during this current second spike of the
pandemic, BAME people currently make up 16.4% of WBC residents, and in particular,
will we be helping to publicise the importance of Vitamin D for older and BAME people?

Many medical professionals are concerned that there may be a link between vitamin D
deficiency and higher rates of Covid mortality as a deficiency affects your ability to fight
infection. While research is still underway, the problems with vitamin D deficiency are so
well known that before the pandemic, NHS guidance suggested that BAME Brits should
‘consider’ taking vitamin D supplements year round (and white Brits to consider a
supplement Oct to March). Care home residents have a particularly high risk of vitamin D
deficiency.

Publicising this simple step which local residents can take to safeguard their health could
be very quick and cost effective.

Answer:
The protection of our residents vulnerable to Covid infection, including older residents and
BAME residents is a priority for WBC.

In addition to the extensive work we have undertaken with the care homes via the Care
Homes Task Force we continue to work really closely with the voluntary sector within
Wokingham and have extended funding to continue our one front door service until March
20121, as | am sure you have seen. This is run by CAB Wokingham, they are taking calls
and emails from residents and putting them in contact with any people and organisations
that they need. This includes prescription collections or shopping service but also helps
with a range of other Covid related effects such as debt advice, job loss, benefit advice as
well as important support for mental health and wellbeing. The Wokingham Borough
Community Response is an additional support service to the NHS and social services.

We are working with CAB Wokingham, First Days, the LINK Visiting Scheme, Involve
Community Services and the Wokingham Volunteer Centre, as well as our Town and
Parish Councils, Age UK, Churches Together and other churches and voluntary
organisations across the Borough.

In August, the Council launched ‘Tackling Racism Matters’ which is an online survey
providing an anonymous platform for both the wider community and staff to share
opportunities to tackle racial inequalities (which affect risk of Covid infections and deaths)
in Wokingham. In addition, the Council has launched the Covid impact survey to
understand how Covid has affected BAME groups during lockdown. The findings from this
survey will continue to inform our response going forward and will obviously effect how we
behave.

Working with the Public health team, WBC are cascading tailored health promotion (as
developed by Public Health England) to inform specific ethnic groups about minimising
their risk to Covid transmission and mortality. The promotion materials have been adapted
into different languages.



PUBLIC

The NHS test and trace system has been designed to ensure that anyone who develops
the symptoms of Covid 19 can quickly be tested to find out if they have the virus, and the
service also includes targeted asymptomatic testing of NHS staff, social care staff and
care home residents. The test and trace service is an equal-access service that does not
discriminate on the basis of age, ethnicity or religious beliefs. You will be aware of course
of the recent decision of the Council to procure some tests of its own, testing for
emergency use.

In June 2020, the National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) published an
appraisal of the evidence relating to vitamin D in the prevention of Covid. This study
states that “there is no evidence to support taking vitamin D supplements to specifically
prevent or treat Covid-19. However, all people should continue to follow UK Government
advice on daily vitamin D supplementation to maintain bone and muscle health during the
pandemic”. The UK Government advise that all people should consider taking a daily
supplement containing 10 micrograms of vitamin D during autumn and winter months.
They also advise that people whose skin has little to no exposure to sunlight and ethnic
minority groups with dark skin, from African, Afro-Caribbean and South Asian
backgrounds, should consider taking a vitamin D supplement all year round.

Since there is no evidence to support taking vitamin D supplementation to prevent Covid
there are no plans to promote the importance of vitamin D with regard to Covid. However,
we will keep this fully under review and keep our eyes open for any new evidence that
should come to light. If we see anything on these lines, we will of course review that
position. As with everything in relation to this pandemic our position is that we are taking
the best advice, listening to what is going on, and making the best judgment we can, and
just keep moving forwards as things develop.

Supplementary Question

To protect the NHS and care services, free flu vaccinations are available for older
residents, and now to shielding residents, care home staff and their families. There are
already some worrying signs that there will not be enough vaccinations available for those
who want them, with some local providers having no vaccine in stock. Do we believe that
there will be enough flu vaccinations available this year and how will we handle any
shortfall?

Answer

The CCG and wider BOB flu team are in wider contact with the NHS and Public Health to
monitor and oversee the successful supply and provision of flub jab services for patients
across Berkshire West. So far, we have not had any issues or delays reported to us re the
delivery of pre orders to practices. We anticipate further guidance and advice this week
from NHSE, explaining how our practices can order nationally procured vaccines. The
getting of this stock is vital to ensuring our practices can further achieve the national
vaccination targets, set by NHSE, and meet the additional patient demand that we have
seen this year.

Pharmacies will also have access to ordering from the NHSE stock in a few weeks. All |
will say is that | know from sitting in other meetings of this Board, that stock was ordered in
January before, for the winter. But obviously stock ordered in January 2020 was before
the pandemic hit.



PUBLIC

Katie Summers:

That response is exactly what we would say as well from Charles regarding the flu. We
have not necessarily seen anything at all that is a supply issue at all, at the moment.
Actually, we keep on getting general updates directly. We are working very, very closely
with the local Public Health teams, as Charles said. We are very much on top of things.

The only comment | was going to supply for the vitamin D piece is that Charles is very,
very right. We will actually take a decision when anything physically changes, and one
thing that we have in the health service, we have what is known as a Thames Valley
Priorities Committee and they respond so, so quickly to the latest evidence. That Priorities
Committee, if there is anything that changes relating to the BAME community, they will act
on it straight away and there will be policy that goes out across all clinicians to give them
the guidance. That is just backing up what Charles was saying about the vitamin D.

Councillor Rachel Bishop-Firth:

| personally have been unable to book for a flu jab vaccination. | spoke to the pharmacy at
one of the local supermarkets who said that they did not know when the stock would be
coming in.

Katie Summers:

This is the ongoing thing. They are prioritising certain areas and certain groups at the
moment. It might be the fact that, Rachel, you look very, very young, and it might be to do
with that factor as well. So please do not worry about it. Have you been contacted by
your GP practice yet? That might be the reason why then. What they are doing are, they
are doing almost like a wave of individuals, so you are probably not in that wave at the
moment, so that is the reason why. Please be reassured that it is going to be rolled out.
What they are having to do is get the stock in and then they have to do certain waves at
certain points, and that is the process that we take forwards.

21. STRATEGY INTO ACTION
Ingrid Slade presented the Strategy into Action.

During the discussion of this item, the following points were made:

e Three Actions Groups were being established, each of which aligned with one of
the three key priorities of the Wokingham Wellbeing Strategy; creating physically
active communities, reducing social isolation and loneliness, and narrowing health
inequalities. The aim of each group was to develop a stronger understanding of the
performance and successes of work being carried out both inside and outside the
Council, to help with future planning.

e The Physically Active Communities Group would be co-chaired by Sports and
Leisure. The first meeting of the group would take place in the first week of
November.

e The Reducing Isolation Group would be co-chaired by Phil Cook of Involve.
Discussions would take place regarding available evidence to assess the level of
need in the Borough. The Group would hopefully meet before the end of the year.

e The Health Inequalities Group would work closely with Children’s Services. It would
hopefully meet for the first time in early December.

e Draft terms of reference had been drawn up and would be agreed by the individual
Groups.

e The Groups would have a standard reporting mechanism into the Wellbeing Board.

8



PUBLIC

Councillor Margetts suggested that Jake Morrison from the voluntary sector be
invited to be involved with the Reducing Social Isolation and Loneliness Group.
Covid would have a huge impact on the work of this. Ingrid Slade re-emphasised
that the voluntary sector would be heavily involved in this group. Phil Cook
commented that he was co chairing as part of the Friendship Alliance (Age UK
Berkshire, LINK visiting scheme and Wokingham Volunteer Centre) which had been
very involved in the Covid response. There was a Voluntary Sector Action Group
meeting every Monday.

Martin Sloan added that part of the reason for establishing the Friendship Alliance
was to tackle social isolation. Funding had been put in place to tackle social
isolation. Martin Sloan suggested that a presentation on the progress being made
in tackling social isolation be provided to a future meeting.

Katie Summers commented that many of the long-term success markers for the
Reducing Social Isolation and Loneliness Group, related to children. She
guestioned how the education support services would be involved in this. Ingrid
Slade and Carol Cammiss agreed to take this forwards. They were also to have
involvement of care leavers or representatives of care leavers.

With regards to the Narrowing Health Inequalities Group, Katie Summers indicated
that the NHS had been set an action plan on reducing health inequalities and had
eight impact changes that had to be delivered by December next year, including; to
protect the most vulnerable from Covid, restoring NHS services inclusively, digital
inclusion, proactive engagement and prevention, mental health, leadership,
completing timely data sets, and collaborative local plan and delivery. Increasing
the accuracy and availability of data was vital. Katie Summers offered to work with
Ingrid Slade to help tie these eight priorities into the work of the Reducing Health
Inequalities Group.

The Board were informed that there had been some changes to the GP contract
and that each GP practice had to increase the coding of ethnicity in their patients as
it was now mandated within their contract.

RESOLVED: That

1)

2)

3)

4)

22,

the progress in the establishment of three Action Groups, as outlined in the
accompanying presentation (Appendix A), to deliver on the Wellbeing Board
objectives, be reviewed.

the co-chairs, key stakeholders/membership, Action Group objectives, proposed
terms of reference, meeting agendas and frequency of meetings and deliverables,
be noted.

input from Board members on these Action Groups and progress to date be invited.
the summary of progress captured to end of September 2020 be noted. These
short summary reports will remain in place and until formal reporting is implemented
(Appendix B).

DESIGNING OUR NEIGHBOURHOODS UPDATE

Martin Sloan provided an update in Designing our Neighbourhoods.

During the discussion of this item, the following points were made:



PUBLIC

Martin Sloan advised the Board that the workshop would put back until later, due to
other priorities around Covid. However, work was still ongoing at neighbourhood
level.

Katie Summers referred to the successful focus on mental health. With the support
of the Citizens Advice Bureau, the ‘One front door’ service was being rolled out.
Some motivational interview training had also been carried out and 30% of
attendees had been from the Council.

RESOLVED: That the update be noted.

23.

COVID SITUATION REPORT

Ingrid Slade provided an update on the Covid situation.

During the discussion of this item, the following points were made:

The national and local picture was of a rise in Covid cases. Wokingham had had
820 cases since the beginning of the outbreak, a rate of 479 per 100,000. This was
well below the England average of 827 per 100,000.

The increase in cases represented an increase in community transition. There had
been a rise in cases across the Borough.

Wokingham Borough continued to have no excess mortality due to Covid at
present.

RESOLVED: That the Covid situation update be noted.

24,

FORWARD PROGRAMME

The Board considered the forward programme.

Councillor Margetts advised the Board of prioritisation sessions regarding the Joint
Berkshire West Health and Wellbeing Strategy on 5 November 2-3.30pm and 10
November 2-3.30pm.

RESOLVED: That the forward programme be noted.

10



TITLE

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

WARD

DIRECTOR/ KEY OFFICER

Agenda ltem 31.

Strategy into Action

Wokingham Borough Wellbeing Board on 10t
December 2020

None Specific;
Ingrid Slade, Head of Public Health, Wokingham

Borough Council
Matt Pope, Director of Adult Social Services

Health and Wellbeing
Strategy priority/priorities
most progressed through
the report

This meets all three priorities in the Wellbeing Strategy:
Creating Physically Active Communities

Reducing social isolation and loneliness

Narrowing the health inequalities gap

Key outcomes achieved
against the Strategy
priority/priorities

Improved physical health of residents

Creating healthy and resilient communities
Support and collaboration of partners

Those most deprived will enjoy more years in good
health

o Greater access to health promoting resources

Reason for consideration
by Wokingham Borough
Wellbeing Board

e Progress update on the establishment of three Action
Groups, as outlined in the accompanying presentation
(Appendix A), to deliver on the Wellbeing Board
objectives.

e To invite input from Board members on these Action
Groups and progress to date.

e To note the summary of progress captured to end of
November 2020, these short summary reports will
remain in place and until formal reporting is
implemented through the Wellbeing Board Action
Groups (Appendix B).

What (if any) public
engagement has been
carried out?

Public Health has engaged with local partners and
identified short term measures to deliver on the Board’s
priorities.

State the financial

implications of the decision

None

RECOMMENDATION

e To review the progress in the establishment of three Action Groups, as outlined in
the accompanying presentation (Appendix A), to deliver on the Wellbeing Board

objectives.

e To invite further input from Board members on these Action Groups and progress to

date.

11



e To note the summary of progress captured to end of November 2020, these short
summary reports will remain in place and until formal reporting is implemented
(Appendix B).

SUMMARY OF REPORT
Background

The Wokingham Wellbeing Strategy was developed in 2018 with three clear priorities to
create healthier and resilient communities. The overarching indicators are mostly based
on the Public Health Outcomes Framework, social care and health indicators that are
measured regularly. Short term measurable were presented to the August Board and
the Public Health team have continued to work with key stakeholders, an update of
progress to date can be found in Appendix B.

The accompanying presentation to this paper (Appendix A) outlines the progress that
has been made to date on the forming of partnerships to establish three Action Groups.
Despite COVID-19 progress has been made and remains within the original timescales
for each of the three priority areas. To ensure the Board have oversight on the
progress, the Board members are specifically asked to:

e To review the progress to date for each of the three Action Groups, as outlined in the
accompanying presentation (Appendix A) and the next steps.

e To invite input from Board members on these actions groups and progress to date.

e To note the summary of progress captured to end of November 2020, these short
summary reports will remain in place and until formal reporting through the
Wellbeing Board Action Groups is implemented (Appendix B).

Despite COVID-19 and the unexpected national lockdown which occurred since the
Board last met - progress has been achieved on the delivery of shared objectives as
evidenced in Appendix B. There are some services, particularly local leisure services,
who have had to focus on implementing changes in accordance with Governance
guidance and therefore some objectives are on hold. Preparations are being made to
resume services in line with guidance for local authorities in tier 2.

Analysis of Issues, including any financial implications

There are no financial implications to the report presented here, however this builds
upon the papers presented in August outlining how the tier 2 healthy weight programme
will be incorporated into the broader work of the physically active communities Action
group. This financial commitment for Tier 2 weight management services is a planned
cost accounted for in the Public Health budget.

Partner Implications

The success of the Action Groups is dependent on meaningful engagement and support
through active membership where appropriate to each partner agency.

Reasons for considering the report in Part 2

N/A

12




List of Background Papers

Appendix A — Wellbeing Board Action Group Development Progress
Appendix B — Key Priority Areas Summary of Actions Update December 2020

Contact Ingrid Slade Service Public Health

Telephone No Email Ingrid.Slade@wokingham.gov.uk

13




This page is intentionally left blank



LY

VAN
=
Ljv"v WOKINGHAM
24" BOROUGH COUNCIL
R <2

a1

Action Groups
WBC Wellbeing Board

Progress Report
December 2020

Public Health Team
Wokingham Borough Council
Public.Health@Wokingham.gov.uk



mailto:Public.Health@Wokingham.gov.uk

Wellbeing Board Priorities

Recap on the three priorities for the Wokingham Wellbeing Board:

97

Creating Physically
Active Communities

Facilitating physical activity to
improve health outcomes
irrespective of whether
individuals achieve weight loss.

Promoting physical activity
among target groups to reduce
the risk of long term conditions
such as coronary heart disease
and stroke.

Encouraging people to be
physically active as a means to
reduce premature mortality.

Reducing Social isolation
and Loneliness

Connecting vulnerable
residents with quality-assured
services and activities.

Tackling risk factors for social
isolation and loneliness:

E.g. language barriers,
education & employment,
mental illness, financial
difficulty, old age.)

Helping people to build better
social relationships to protect
and improve physical and
mental health.

WOKINGHAM
%" BOROUGH COUNCIL

Narrowing health
inequalities

To reduce the avoidable
differences in people’s health
across social groups,
demographics, and geography.

Prevention and early
intervention that is
proportionate to the level of
disadvantage.



Network of stakeholders

Each of the Wellbeing Board Action Groups will harness the good work that is

D

PN

'fp% WOKINGHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

already happening across the organisation and the wider community.

LT

Wellbeing
Board

Action Action
Groupl Group?2

Existing activities of local authorities and partners




ZZ WOKINGHAM
RE%" BOROUGH COUNCIL

Progress to date

8T




Priority 1: Physically Active Communities

Review and Current system & partners Ongoing
define Model of approach to development, design of working groups

Key stakeholders & partners involved in being physical active

Existing and emerging strategies and action plans across systems and partners e.g. WBC

Leisure Strategy

Engage Partner engagement Ongoing
Identify existing Partnerships/ Boards and relationship e.g. Wokingham’s Integration

B Partnership & Leadership Board
Develop Establish local action group for delivery of creating physically active communities to: 1st Action Group
» Agree terms of reference, aims and objectives meeting date
» Confirm Leadership/Co-leadership of group confirmed
« Start to consider quality assured short term priorities, targets and timescales All partners
» Discuss establishing reporting/monitoring process mapped to public health outcomes accepted
Deliver Co-production of regular reporting to Health & Wellbeing Board partners To be agreed at the
Evaluation of impact against public health outcomes framework December meeting




Priority 1. Physically Active Communities progre

Update on Action Group Progress

» Sports & Leisure Services agreed as Chair and
Public Health as Co-chair of Priority 1 Action Group
and scoping discussions have commenced.

» Confirmed draft membership (see next slide) this will
be discussed at the first action group meeting in
December.

» First Action Group meeting scheduled for 8th
S December 2020

» Draft agenda prepared

» Example Terms of Reference collated for use with all
three action groups.

» Some reporting mechanisms (long-term) have
already been established and are being used to
inform reporting to HWB.

Next Steps

Produce a brief overview of objectives for the group
together with current long term measures for
Wokingham and share with the Action Group for
review and discussion

Capture and share output from first Action Group
meeting to support wider engagement with key
groups/partners;

Book monthly action group meetings from January
2021.

All members are identifying deputies to ensure
action group meetings continue and keep work on
track.




Priority 1. Physically Active Communities - Membership

WOKINGHAM
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Membership of the Physical Activity Action Group
Creating Physically Active Communities

Chair:

-  WBC Sports & Leisure
Co-chair

- Public Health




Priority 2: Reducing Social Isolation - Timeline

WOKINGHAM
4" BOROUGH COUNCIL

Review and Current system & partners Ongoing
define Model of approach to development, design of working groups

Key stakeholders & partners involved in reducing social isolation and loneliness — across all

ages
Engage Partner engagement Ongoing

Identify existing Partnerships/ Boards and relationship

Develop Establish local action group for delivery of creating physically active communities to: First Action group
N » Agree terms of reference, aims and objectives meeting confirmed —
» Agree Leadership/Co-leadership of group December 2020

» Agree quality assured short term priorities, targets and timescales
» Establish reporting/monitoring process mapped to public health outcomes

Deliver Co-production of regular reporting to Health & Wellbeing Board partners By February 2021
Evaluation of impact against public health outcomes framework




Priority 2: Reducing Social Isolation - Progress

Update on Actions Next Steps
» Phil Cook from Wokingham Involve (Liaison for » Agree and cascade Agenda and for action group
Wokingham’s voluntary and Community Sector) has meeting (Co-chairs to cascade 1 in advance of
agreed to chair the action groups alongside WBC's meeting).

public health team.
» Produce a brief overview of current long and short

» Preliminary membership has been confirmed (see term measures for Wokingham and share with
next slide) and all members have been contacted Action Group for review and discussion (Co-chair/s -
~, INdividually — to brief them on the action group and before first meeting 2020)
@ expectations.
» Capture and share outputs from first Action Group
» First Action Group meeting scheduled for Tuesday meeting to support wider engagement with key
8th December 2020. groups/partners;

» Interim reports (on service activity, current
challenges and risks to service provision) are being
collated and will continue to be fed back to the
wellbeing board until formal reporting has been
setup within the action group.




Priority 2: Reducing Social Isolation — C

 WOKINGHAM
9% BOROUGH COUNCIL

Reducing Social isolation and Loneliness

Co-Chair
* Involve - Liaison for Voluntary and Community sector across Wokingham
« WBC Public Health team

Members

« WBC Adult and Community Learning Team [Jon White, WBC Adult Community Learning Team Coordinator]

« WBC Libraries Service [Richard Alexander, WBC Libraries Manager]

* Optalis Supported Employment Service [Donna Morgans, Head of Supported Employment Services]

« WBC Community Engagement Team [Deana Humphries, WBC Community Engagement Lead]

« WBC Emotional Wellbeing lead for children and young people [Kim Wilkins, WBC Strategy &
Commissioning]

« WBC Sports and Leisure Team [Beverley Thompson, WBC Sports & Leisure Service Manager]

vc




Priority 3: Narrowing Health Inequalities Ti

Review and Current system & partners Underway
define Model of approach to development, design of working groups

Key stakeholders & partners

Existing and emerging strategies and action plans across systems and partners e.g. Children

& Young People’s Prevention & Early Intervention Strategy, WBC Leisure Strategy

Engage Partner engagement Underway
Identify existing Partnerships/ Boards and relationship e.g. Children & Young People’s Board,
Youth Offending Board, Community Safety Partnership Board

T4

Develop Establish local action group for delivery of narrowing health inequalities By January 2021
« Agree terms of reference, aims and objectives
» Agree Leadership/Co-leadership of group
« Agree quality assured short term priorities, targets and timescales
» Establish reporting/monitoring process mapped to public health outcomes

Deliver Co-production of regular reporting to Health & Wellbeing Board partners By March 2021
Evaluation of impact against public health outcomes framework




Priority 3: Narrowing Health Inequalities progress to

Update on Actions

» Children’s Services/Public Health agreed co-chairing
of Inequalities action group

» Confirmed representation from CVS and CCG

> First co-chair meeting set 26" November — to agree
pre-engagement strategy for key partners

>N Example Terms of Reference collated
o
» Key partner/s contacts established and hold dates

for first action group meeting sent (dates for January
2021)

RIS
P

- WOKINGHAM
£O%" BOROUGH COUNCIL

Next Steps

Agree and prepare agenda and engagement/action
plan for working group (Co-chairs — December
2020);

Mapping of partner/s key strategies; (Public Health —
December 2020)

Produce a brief overview of inequalities in
Wokingham/Berkshire West (Shared Public Health —
December 2020)

Action Group to review long and short term
measures for Wokingham HWB (January 2021)




Appendix B December 2020

KEY PRIORITY AREAS SUMMARY OF PROGRESS FOR WOKINGHAM

To increase 1) To reduce the % of physically inactive adults

physical 2) To reduce the prevalence of overweight (including obesity) children in
activity and reception (4-5 years)

reduce 3) To reduce the prevalence of overweight (including obesity) children in in
inequalities in Year 6.

health and 4) To improve the % of activity level for children and young people

wellbeing of 5) To improve the % of physical active adults

6) To increase the % of adults walking for travel at least 3 days per week

7) Toincrease the % of adults cycling for travel at least 3 days per week

8) To reduce the % of adults (aged 18+ years) classified as overweight or obese

people with
long term
conditions

What has been achieved since October 2020?
¢+ There was a strong return of use of the local leisure centres by local residents
however there was the expected reduction in numbers going through services due to
the capacity restrictions imposed on Leisure Providers by Government;

% All WBC Leisure Services responded quickly to national lockdown measures with
members and residents being kept up to date on the impact.

+» Specialist Sports & Leisure programmes such as SHINE, GP Referral Scheme, Long
Term Health, Mental Health, Steady Steps and Cardiac Rehabilitation were all
restarted in Q3 (noting that recent lockdown has impacted on this);

% The Long Term Health Programme Lead along with Public Health Team have
established links with the local Cancer Rehabilitation Team at Royal Berkshire
Hospital and it is planned to work together on ensuring there is promotion of local
offers to people undergoing or post-cancer treatment and that possible pathways
are established.

+* A Workplace Health Initiative was launched for Wokingham Borough Council [WBC]
staff — with a key focus of keeping physically active. There were 45 attendees at
early stages and there are some very popular sessions.

+* Bike-ability courses which are run by WBC’s My Journey Team have continued to run
— with 3 schools having training in November and a further 1 school is booked to
have training in December.

% Winter Wheelers will be taking place again this year. As with last year, it will be an
adult ‘advent calendar’ with participants having a chance to win a different prize
every day between the 1%t and 24™ of December.

%+ Specialist Sports & Leisure Programmes local referral pathways from GPs — contact
between the Lead for the programmes and Berkshire West CCG was established
however it is on hold due to current lockdown — this will be resumed as soon as is
appropriate. .

% Work on commissioning a local tier 2 weight management provision for adults and
children and young people has commenced.

1

27



Appendix B December 2020

+» Get Berkshire Active have been offered free training for health professionals to
enhance skills and confidents in having conversations with patients about promoting
physical activity. There are also other opportunities to link this training to other local
offers within the community and voluntary sectors is also underway and this work is
also being linked up with the local Making Every Contact Count.

What are the opportunities to improve or progress?

X/
°e

Continue to work to review pathways into local walking & cycling training programmes

— specifically from health-based settings i.e. GPs, Social Prescribers.

NHS England launch of the Better Health campaign created an opportunity for local

partners to come together to plan how this national campaign can be both

supported and localised. There is currently a gap in both Tier 2 children and young

people and adult weight management though work is underway to have an

evidenced based local offer in place for 2021 and to follow this with a full

procurement process for provision in 2022.

*» Thereis currently a gap in Tier 3 Adult weight management services across Berkshire
West — there is an opportunity for partners to jointly review this.

% Programme/s of work or opportunities for improving childhood health e.g. targeting
children for improving physical activity/reducing weight requires further scoping.

+» Develop work programme to identify how best to increase target group participation
across programmes and services, including specifically looking at falls risk in older
resident and targeting of school camps.

¢ To undertake 6 month follow up surveys on participants of local programmes to help
measure the impact of initiatives;

*» Expand resources to prevent schemes specifically targeting children from holding

waiting lists — note waiting list for My Journey initiatives.

Priority 1: ACTIONS

X/
°e

ACTION BY WHEN OWNER
First Priority One HWB Action Group 2" December 2020 | Sports & Leisure/Public Health
Meeting
Review pathways into local walking & Commenced WBC Sports & Leisure Team/
cycling  training programmes  — September 2020 - Berkshire West CCG
specifically from health-based settings no deadline set but
i.e. GPs, Social Prescribers. is currently on hold

due to COVID

restrictions

Tier 2 Children and young people and Adult December 2020 Public Health & WBC Sports &
Weight Management service WBC offer — Leisure Services

work is underway to procure a local offer
for 2021 which will link to and compliment
national Better Health Campaign.

This will be followed by a full procurement
for a local offer in 2022

28



Appendix B

December 2020

Ongoing expansion of programmes within
the new Bulmershe facility

On hold due to COVID
restrictions

WBC Sports & Leisure Team

Promotion of additional/new physical
activity programmes across all venues with
a view of increasing referrals and usage
numbers

On hold due to COVID
restrictions

WBC Sports & Leisure Team

Implementation of ‘Escape Pain’
programme

On hold due to
COVID restrictions

WBC Sports & Leisure Team

Joint working with local leisure provider to
identify ways of reaching specific target
groups within WBC communities

December 2020 -
there is planning
happening around
reopening of

WBC Sports & Leisure Team

services.
Scoping of school based Due to commence WBC Sports & Leisure Team,
initiative/programmes which aims to December 2020 Public Health & Education

increase physical activity for school age
children.

29




Appendix B December 2020

Priority 2 Reduce social isolation and loneliness

To reduce 1) Increase the % of adult social care users who have as much social contact as
Social they would like (18+years)

!S°|at'°" and 2) Increase the % of adult carers who have as much social contact as they
improve would like
outcomes for

0 i . . -
children and 3) Reduce the % of 16-17 year olds not in education, employment or training

(NEET) or whose activity is unknown

young people,
older people, 4) To reduce the rate of children in need due to family stress or dysfunction or

people with absent parenting

mental health 5) To increase employment of people with mental illness or learning disability
problems and
Carers.

6) Reduce hospital admissions due to substance misuse

7) Reduce hospital admissions as result of self-harm (15-19 year olds)

What has been achieved since October 2020?
¢ WABC Adult and Community Learning Services continue to deliver all of their courses
online (since wave 1 of the pandemic) and have been able to adapt to the challenges
of teaching various classes remotely to clients with varying levels of computer
literacy. Prior to lockdown, some of the courses were able to cater to adults with
learning difficulties. However since the March 2020, this group has been difficult to
engage due to difficulties with this cohort being able to participate in online classes.
Certain classes have ‘sold out’ quite quickly — such as a class to help parents manage
their children’s anxiety. The team suspects that this increase in demand is due to a
rising tide of children and young people struggling with the social isolation of
lockdown.

< Many of the community outreach services which are run by Wokingham library have
been paused since the start of lockdown 1 (back in March 2020). This was due to
both lockdown restrictions and also many library staff members being deployed to
other roles in response to the COVID outbreak. In Wokingham, only 2 of the 11
libraries have remained open since March (Woodley and Wokingham). The home
library service — which greatly helps to tackle social isolation and loneliness will be
starting up once again in December.

** The Optalis Supported Employment service have been managing the demand for
employment support. Over the last month they have supported many individuals
who have needed extra guidance to remain stimulated and motivated whilst
remaining at home, ensured individuals who are still looking for work continue to
move closer to the employment market by undertaking remote training, interview
practice and applications where appropriate. The team has also continued to provide
employment support to those who have been deemed as key workers to ensure they
are able to work within the guidelines laid out by the government and remain safe at
work. This service is expecting to see an increase in demand when we draw closer to
the end of furlough (end of December).

4

30



Appendix B December 2020

¢ The link visiting scheme continues to offer a suite of online training for volunteers

and clients: Psychological First Aid, Diploma in Mental Health, and Emotional
Support for families bereaved by COVID deaths and Digital Wellbeing.

What are the opportunities to improve or progress?

R/
A X4

X/
°e

Current Adult community learning and Library services are solely delivered online
and require users to be computer literate. There is a need to support disadvantaged
residents who are digitally excluded. A digital exclusion action group is being setup
to support and combat these challenges.

The Council’s Drug and Alcohol service (SMART) continues to see an increase in
Alcohol related referrals. This is expected to continue well into the winter months.
Service managers are suspecting the reason for this to be linked with end of the
furlough scheme (anxieties caused by unemployment). Anxieties caused by
lockdown, loss of employment, bereavement, debt & financial instability.

Wokingham Borough Council’s Sports & Leisure Team continue to target vulnerable
groups that have been greatly impacted by lockdown. This includes Cancer
Rehabilitation, Steady Steps (Falls Prevention), GP Referral Physical Activity Scheme,
Long Term Conditions exercise programme, Phase IV Active Hearts and the Mindful
Health and Wellbeing Programme.

31



Appendix B December 2020

Priority 2: ACTIONS

ACTION BY WHEN OWNER

Ensure more residents in the borough Ongoing WABC Digital exclusion team which
(including social care users) are is being headed by Nicholas
connected through improving technology Spencer (Digital Delivery PMO
skills; Deliver Basic IT courses for Manager)

residents who want to learn how to
connect safely and productively using
social media.

Increase uptake (among social care users) Ongoing WBC Libraries Service
into the following specific activities which
help to tackle social isolation and
loneliness:

- Home Library Service

- Alzheimer's Cafes

- Reminiscence Groups meetings
- Art Journaling Sessions

Ensure local VCS deliver adequate Ongoing Wokingham Involve - Local
befriending support to vulnerable Support Organisation for
residents in need of social interaction as a Voluntary, Community and faith
result of government restrictions, COVID groups in Wokingham.

bereavement, disability or any other
long-term illness.

Increase uptake of carers (and cared for) Ongoing WBC Sports and Leisure Team
to use leisure activities at reduced rates.

Increase number of younger people (16- Ongoing WBC Adult and Community
24) enrolling onto online courses and Learning Team
working alongside local learning-provider
partners to equip young people with skills
to gain long term employment.

Education Welfare Officers to Identify Ongoing WBC Wokingham Schools Hub
children in need through school And WBC Emotional Wellbeing
attendance problems. Deliver tailored leads

support to parents - helping them to
understand how to protect the wellbeing
of their children.

32



Appendix B December 2020

Increase capacity for delivering tailored Ongoing Optalis Supported Employment
support to residents (with learning Service

difficulties and mental illness) so that &

they can obtain and maintain WBC Adult & Community
employment through Supported Learning Team.

Employment Pathway or Individual
Placement and Support.

Increase capacity for delivering Ongoing SMART Wokingham (Provider)
community-based drug and alcohol
treatment for adults and young people in
Wokingham.

Priority 3 Narrowing health inequalities

1) Reduce the gap in employment rate between those in contact with
secondary mental health service and overall employment rate (Persons, 18-

To reduce the 69 years)

gap between a 2) Reduce the number of children living in low income families (all dependent

child born in children under age 20)

the most and 3) Reduce infant mortality (Persons, <1 year)

least deprived 4) To improve school readiness: % of children with free school meals status

area will achieving a good level of development at the end of Reception (Persons, 5

experience years ;)

over their life 5) Improve Free School Meal % uptake amongst all pupils (school age)

time 6) Improve average attainment 8 score among children eligible for Free School
Meals.

7) Reduce primary school fix period exclusion: rate per 100

8) Reduce secondary school fixed period exclusion: rate per 100

9) Decrease the prevalence of women smoking at time of delivery (all ages)

10) Decrease the prevalence of smoking in routine and manual workers, current
smokers (18-64 years);

What has been achieved since October 2020?

% There continues to be ongoing contact with Citizen Advice Bureau and WBC and
demand for the service continues to be high. Formal reporting on numbers and
activity will be provided after the next quarterly contract monitoring meeting.

¢ Local Public Health and RBH Maternity Services continue to contribute to work and
actions being overseen through BOB LMS Prevention Work stream. WBC supported
the #Planning for Pregnancy Campaigns as did other partners. Recruitment for a
Prevention Lead Post was agreed and commenced and, RBH Maternity Services
continue to scope options for use of funding secured to address excess weight gain
in pregnancy.

**» The Breastfeeding Network (BfN) have continued to successfully maintain their 6
weekly support sessions during COVID-19. They have successful recruited new

7

33



Appendix B December 2020

volunteers and they have started their training. This would usually be face to face but
has been adapted to run online using a combination of group video calls combined
with group work on an online discussion forum. 11 trainees are registered on the
course and these are all on track to complete the course. The technology is working
well including breakout rooms to allow some pair/ group work. There has been some
impact due to Covid, e.g. children home from school isolating, but extra support is
being offered to help trainees stay up-to-date with training.

The School Nursing and Health Visiting Services (0-19(25)) are beginning to recover.
The School Nursing advice and support line was ‘relaunched’ to parents and young
people in September through the use of a film made by School Nursing to young
people themselves via social media and newsletters. Enuresis clinics were anticipated
to revert to being face to face and/ or video dependent on clinical judgement, parental
choice and government restrictions at the time. Medical conditions training — will
mostly continue via cluster training virtually. However, government guidance
allowing, some visits will be made face to face in schools to train regarding
administration of emergency medication for seizures if this is felt necessary/
appropriate. CiC reviews — there is felt to be an increase of CiC, however, accurate
numbers are required from LAs to get the full picture. If there is an increase,
consideration has to be given to what the impact is on PH nursing service in terms of
capacity.

There is a reciprocal arrangement with School Nursing and the Immunisation Team
with the School Nurses supporting the Immunisation Team during the flu season and
the Immunisations Team supporting the School Nurses when the NCMP is re-instated
in January. There is no planned catch up on those missed, in line with government
guidance. Programme will restart in January 2021 with support from the Immunisation
Team as per the reciprocal arrangement.

Wokingham Borough Council currently holds the school catering contact for 34 of the
50 schools. The WBC contract is with Caterlink and positive work is being undertaken
to increase these figures. Caterlink report meeting and exceeding the current national
school food standards. They also report being sugar smart, reducing added sugar by
60% since they started their Sugar Reduction Programme. They have also developed
a new range of Added Plant Power recipes, following on from increased pupil
awareness about how their eating habits impact the environment that we live in.
Whilst there is contact with Caterlink, there are plans to establish regular meetings
between key partners to support data gathering, recording updates and
achievements. There is willingness from providers and commissioners to support this
and it will help identify local opportunities around School Meals.

113 residents accessed the local Smokefreelife Berkshire service in Q2 (Jul, Aug, Sept)
and set a quit date. Outcomes of these quit attempts will be known in the New Year
(due to way smoking quits occur).

The Smokefreelife Berkshire team have allowed free access to their app, Quit with
Bella, for all Berkshire West residents. From April to September, 118 WBC residents
had downloaded and registered to use the app to help support a quit.

Over 400 Berkshire West residents/health professionals responded to the community
engagement survey on building a new stop smoking service for Berkshire West.
Results have been used to inform the service specification for new service being
commissioned in 2021.

34



Appendix B December 2020

X/
°e

R/
A X4

There was good market engagement from providers of stop smoking services with
local commissioners to help inform and shape the service specification of the service.
Wokingham Borough Council, Berkshire West CCG and Berkshire Healthcare
Foundation Trust Communications Team supported Stoptober Campaign, promoting
the local service to residents.

Wokingham Borough Public Health Team have supported the Cancer Rehab service
with accessing resources for local stop smoking services; Links have been established
with the team and there is planned work on the rehab team linking in with local
physical activity programmes (Cancer Rehab/Exercise Referral Scheme) once services
start to resume;

National Stop Smoking Service Resources designed to support midwives/maternity
services have been shared with key providers. National guidelines have just been
announced allowing services to resume CO Monitoring — Public Health are supporting
and working with providers to resume the implementation of this.

Wokingham Borough Council Public Health have established connections with the
local Thames Valley Cancer Alliance [TVCA] - particularly around early
identification/signs & symptoms but also on smoking. The TVCA are particularly
concerned and keen to focus on support local residents to seek support early for signs
and symptoms.

Tobacco Control Alliance partners have reviewed the local Berkshire West Tobacco
Control Alliance Plan and have started to scope work on a project around smoking in
social housing. Potential project partners have been identified and early engagement
has commenced. The useful Smoke Free Homes resources is also being reviewed and
updated.

Public Protection Partnership — Trading Standards, delivered a responsible retailer to
those in local Community Alcohol Partnership [CAP] areas in Reading, Wokingham and
West Berkshire. Very good learning and discussions around age restricted products
and good practice.

Public Protection Partnership is also involved in providing a podcast on alcohol — this
initiative is being supported by BHFT Mental Health service, SMART (substance misuse
provider). There are also two resources available for schools.

Work has commenced to reaching out to local GP on contraception (LARC) and NHS
Health Checks — COVID and flu season still is a primary focus of local healthcare
services.

Royal Berkshire Hospital’s Midwives Team have developed an Action Plan to help
them deliver on the Saving Babies Lives Care Bundle — this includes actions around
smoking and CO monitoring for local pregnant smokers. Progress is monitoring
through the local maternity service provision.

Progress has been made on setting up the first HWB Inequalities Action Group with
the Co-Chairs first meeting 26™ November.

The Public Health team have been offered a full package of support for running
“Healthy Schools Award” by colleagues in West Berkshire, including all plans and
materials. Training session in November postponed due to sickness of West Berks
colleagues. West Berks are sharing their training and resources at no cost to support
consistency across Berks West. Representatives from other WBC teams are able to
attend (e.g. education colleagues — school improvement) to work in partnership and
support the development of the programme.

9

35



Appendix B

What are the opportunities to improve or progress?

December 2020

+* The Wokingham Children & Young People’s Partnership Board’s strategy and action
plan take positive steps to narrow the health inequalities gap for Wokingham’s
children and this is evidenced in the actions supporting the four priorities shared
across the partnership. This along with other key strategies and plan will be used to
inform the Inequalities Action Working Group which is being established.

>

» Sexual Health Services — a national e-sexual and reproductive healthcare framework

has been developed. The framework offers customers a way of conveniently,
efficiently and effect way of contracts with providers who specifically offer e-sexual
and reproductive health services. There is a Berkshire West opportunity to review
this to identify if it could support any gaps in the local system.

7

¢ There is an opportunity for Personal Social and Health Education (PSHE) network to

be formally created so as to further support schools to deliver consistent and quality
PSHE - this has been done in other areas such as West Berkshire. Schools priority
remains focused on the safe and smooth running of their schools. In the meantime
Public Health continue to share resources, webinars and updates from the C&YP
network via PSHE leads and Education News.

Priority 3: ACTIONS

ACTION BY WHEN OWNER
Smokefreelife Berkshire - review January 2020 Berkshire West CCG and
referral and pathways from GPs Smokefreelife Berkshire
Scoping Smoke-free Homes project in November- Tobacco Control Alliance, Public
collaboration with housing partners December 2020 Health, Tenant Services, local

Housing Associations

BfN training sessions are in progress —
11 volunteers are registered and on
track to complete the training

8™ October — 28t
January 2021

BfN/Public Health

Community Alcohol Partnership (CAP)

Scoping work underway,

Community Action Partnership,

are scoping Winnersh as a new CAP start date TBC Public Protection Partnership,
area. Community Safety Partnership
Recovery audit of local LARC and other November/Decemb Public Health/Berkshire West
contraception’s services er 2020 CCG and local providers

12 Tobacco Awareness School session
are planned.

End of March 2021

Tobacco Control Alliance
Coordinator (PPP)/Public Health

Wokingham Borough Council/ Citizen’s
Advice Bureau ongoing partnership to
help identify potential opportunities for
helping to improve resident outcomes —
for both adults and children

Quarterly contract
review meetings

WBC Contract Lead/Citizen’s
Advice Bureau

The Tenancy Sustainment Officers are Ongoing Tenancy Sustainment Team (WBC
permanent members of staff who Housing, Income and
provide ongoing support for residents Assessment)
that is embedded as ‘business as usual’.

10

36



Appendix B

December 2020

Training for local midwives around the
smoking in pregnancy in line with the
Saving Babies Lives Care Bundle

In Progress — final
dates pending
national guidance

Berkshire West CCG/RBH
Midwifery Services

Healthy Schools implementation

January- March
2021

Primary & Secondary
Schools/Education with support
from WBC Public Health

Regular Personal Social and Health
Education (PSHE) networks meetings to
be created for both secondary and
primary schools.

January- March
2021

Schools Leads with support from
Public Health/Education

Healthy Schools Award offer to be
delivered to schools in Spring 2021,
training scheduled in November 2020

Training — Nov 2020
Launch to Schools
Spring 2021

Wokingham Public Health, West
Berks Public Health, School
Improvement

Beat The Streets Campaign

Spring/Summer
2021

My Journey Team & Partners

11

37




This page is intentionally left blank



TITLE

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

WARD

DIRECTOR/ KEY OFFICER

Agenda ltem

Wokingham Integrated Partnership Update

Wokingham Borough Wellbeing Board on Thursday 10%
December 2020

None Specific

Katie Summers, Director of Operations, NHS Berkshire
West Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG),
Wokingham Locality and Matt Pope, Director of Adult
Services, Wokingham Borough Council

Health and Wellbeing
Strategy priority/priorities
most progressed through
the report

Reducing social isolation and loneliness
Narrowing the health inequalities gap

Key outcomes achieved
against the Strategy
priority/priorities

Improved physical health of adults

Creating healthy and resilient communities
Support and collaboration of partners

Those most deprived will enjoy more years in good
health

Greater access to health promoting resources

Reason for consideration
by Wokingham Borough
Wellbeing Board

To provide the Board with an update on Wokingham
Integrated Partnerships activities

implications of the decision

What (if any) public N/A
engagement has been

carried out?

State the financial Nil

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board notes the update provided

SUMMARY OF REPORT

Plan.

As Health and Social Care, colleagues have been hard at work following Wave 1 and
are currently engaged in supporting Wave 2, Winter Pressures and COVID-19 Winter

The partners are reasonably assured we can manage through the winter, fulfil our Care
Act obligations and the requirements of the Winter Plan. Our success is co-dependent
on the performance of all of the partners.

This year has been challenging for the whole country, especially the health and social care

system. The upcoming Winter has required the local authorities and our partners to
develop several winter plans. As a system, we have developed the Better Care Fund
Winter Pressures Fund and the COVID-19 Adult Social Care Winter Plan.

39

32.



The COVID-19 Adult Social Care Winter plan has been submitted to the Department of
Health and Social Care, on time. The plan was developed as a system, with support from
Berkshire West Clinical Commissioning Group, Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust, the
voluntary sector, our Primary Care Networks and neighbouring local authorities. Following
this process, the system partners feel that, generally, we are prepared and organised to
meet all of the key areas of the plan.

These plans have resulted in extra services being worked developed and teams around
the Health and Social Care System expanded. Below is a summary of the work which is
being done to support Customers in Wokingham over the Winter.

e VCS Mental Health Pilot (Wokingham Borough Council, Citizens Advice)

Using a Population Health Management approach, it has been noted that there has been
an increase in the number of people in the borough who are reporting that they have
issues with their mental health (increasingly, there have been reports of anxiety and
depression).

A pilot has started, with Citizens Advice offering support to people to deal with some of the
causes of there Mental Health Issues (for instance, debt, housing and benefits advice) and
offering onward referral to other voluntary sector organisations, specialist mental health
voluntary sector organisation (due to be commissioned shortly using Better Care Funding)
and on to the specialist Mental Health services should they be required.

e PHM Analyst

Many of our most useful insights during the pandemic have been gleaned from the work of
analysts around the system, putting together data from multiple partners. This Population
Health Management approach has been used to guide our approach locally and has been
shared as best practise with other systems.

In an effort to support better integration of data, and proliferate the use of the Population
Heath Management, the Partners have decided to fund a full-time analyst. This analyst will
support with these key tasks (amongst others):

e Cohorting of our Multi-Disciplinary Team Meeting
e Support for all the projects within the BCF programme to be led by a PHM approach
e Prepare Health Inequalities profiles for each PCN

Alongside several other tasks. This post will be recurring.
e Primary Care Network Social Workers (Wokingham Borough Council)

The council will hire 2.5 FTE social workers to support an increase in the frequency of MDT
meetings. Increased social work presence will allow PCN leaders to have a ‘go-to’ person
for support with social care, allow for regular meetings with social prescribers and the
voluntary sector and Primary Care Network leaders. This will support the Wokingham
Integrated Partnership Programme to achieve its priority of Primary Care Network
development and Integrated Care Network development. These will be recurring posts

e Increased Geriatrician Support (Berkshire Health Foundation Trust)

40



The Wokingham Integrated Partnership has agreed to fund an enhanced medical capacity
in the Consultant Geriatrician team: from 0.2 FTE to 0.8 FTE, providing 4 day’s cover per
week to support Wokingham Rapid Response into care homes. The 2" Wave of COVID
has already had a huge impact on the need for geriatrician support for hospital type
treatments, including O2 and Dexamethasone, which allow COVID positive patients with
compromised respiratory function to remain in their place of residence. The additional
hours will also enable Multi-Disciplinary Teams to have access to Geriatrician advice on
complex or challenging cases.

e Medication Only Calls (Wokingham Borough Council)

There are a small number of occasions when people are delayed in being discharged from
hospital, or end up becoming a Non-Elective Admission, as they need extra support with
medication only calls. Better Care Fund Winter Pressures finances have been made
available to fund these calls.

e Cancer Champions (Involve)

Involve has developed a holistic model that provided a framework to support people
affected by cancer, that included those with the disease and their carers who often feel
overlooked. It includes people with all types of cancers. Their delivery model has 4
elements of support these are:

Monthly meet-ups
Peer-to-Peer Support
Online Support
Signposting

e Increased Staffing at the council- Including Discharge to Assess (Wokingham
Borough Council)

Better Care Fund Winter Pressures funding, as well as COVID-19 funding has seen an
increase in the number of staff which will be available to the council to support hospital
discharge and also to support a reduction in Non-Elective Admissions. Extra Occupational
Therapists and Social Workers are being hired currently to fulfil these roles.

e Home from Hospital increased service (Age UK)
The Home from Hospital service, which settles people at home following a visit to the
hospital. This service will also support the person with onward links into the community
and other voluntary sector organisations.
Better Care Fund Winter Pressures funding has been awarded to this service to increase
the number of days that the service is available (now 7 days), increase the number of
hours that the service is in operation and also increase the duration of the support offer.

e Discharge to Assess block bed booking and block home care booking
(Wokingham Borough Council)

To support pressures in the system, it has been agreed by the system that it is appropriate
to block book beds and home care hours to support discharge from hospital. The Home

41



Care block is up and running. Our commissioning team are currently assessing options for
the residential and nursing block beds.

e Infection Control Nurse (Berkshire Health Foundation Trust)

Following the first wave of COVID-19, it was established that care providers in the
community (in both care homes and home care) would benefit from further infection control
nursing support. To enable the West of Berkshire care providers to receive this support, it
was agreed that all three local authorities would fund further infection control nursing from
our partners at Berkshire Health Foundation Trust. In Wokingham, the Better Care Fund is
being used to fund this support.

Partner Implications

N/A

Reasons for considering the report in Part 2

N/A

List of Background Papers

N/A

Contact: Lewis Willing Service: Wokingham Integrated
Partnership

Telephone No: 07925147764 Email: lewis.willing@wokingham.gov.uk

42



Agenda Iltem 33.

NHS

Berkshire West

Clinical Commissioning Group

BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

Berkshire West CCG —
Operational plan
2020-2021

43



BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

Table of Contents Page
1. EXECULIVE SUMMAIY ..iuiiiiiiieieiiiiiiiie e e e e e et s e e e e e e e e ee s e e e e e e e eeennnnna s 3-4
/220 |1 o To ¥ o] § o o O 4
G TR Y o Lo 101 6 L 5-6
4. NHS Long Term Plan commitments 2020/1.........ccccooeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeinns 7-8
5. Strategic Priorities and Transformation programme............ccccccccceeeeeeeennn. 9
6. Berkshire West Integrated Care Partnership......ccccceeeeiiiieiieiiiiiiiciiiinnnnn, 9-10
7. Our Approach — Population Health Management............................ 10-11
8. Financial Sustainability and Performance.............cccccviiiiiiiiiiiincnne. 11
9. Sustainable Development..............ccooiiiiiiiii i 11-12
10.Operational reqUIremMeENTS...u i rrrrrararaera s snnnns 13-33

9.1 Primary and community health
9.2 Mental Health

9.3 Learning disabilities and Autism
9.4 Urgent and Emergency Care
9.5 Referral to Treatment time

9.6 Outpatient transformation

9.7 Cancer

9.8 Maternity

9.9 NHS Public health functions and prevention

Ll AP PENAIX tutiiiiieiraerieraeaa s ranrasaaranraesasanranransnsansaneanssanranranrnnanranres 34

44



BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

1. Executive Summary

Berkshire West CCG is a high performing organisation which commissions health care
services to a population of approximately 550,000 residents. The CCG plays a key role in
working across Buckinghamshire and Oxfordshire as part of the Integrated Care System (ICS)
as well as more locally through the Berkshire West Integrated Care Partnership (ICP). The
CCG has an excellent history of collaboration and integration and we are seeking to build on
this in order to realise a stretching set of aspirations for our population.

The purpose of the Berkshire West Operating plan is to respond specifically to the ask of the
CCGs and other NHS organisations as set out in the operational guidance released by NHSE/I|
in January 2020 and therefore does not seek to replicate the Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire
and Berkshire West Long Term Plan (LTP) submission.

Financial sustainability is one of the key aims of the Berkshire West CCG. In 2020/1 the CCG
has a forecast gap of £20m between what it has been allocated and what it is projected to
spend. To mitigate this, we have identified £6m of efficiency improvements which will not
reduce the range or quality of services which our patients are able to access. This leaves a
gap of £14m for which further schemes are being currently developed through the Berkshire
West Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) and Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire
West Integrated Care System (ICS). Due to the current COVID-19 pandemic the financial
regime for this year may be subject to change and at the time of writing the CCG are awaiting
further guidance nationally on this.

Delivery of more joined up care for the population served by Berkshire West is golden thread
of the plan. Our approach to Population Health Management (PHM) will ensure we are better
placed to understand the needs of the local population as a whole with specific improvement
actions identified through which we can improve both clinical and financial outcomes.

Delivery in 2020/1 will focus on seven key clinical areas of transformation, underpinned by
PHM and delivery of financial sustainability; these packages of work were defined during the
financial year 2019/20 and have been developed for implementation during this financial year
and beyond, including:

e A new Urgent & Emergency Care delivery model

o Development of our Primary Care Networks

¢ Transforming how and where we deliver outpatient services

e Implementing an Integrated MSK service

o Improved detection of Respiratory and Cardio vascular conditions

e A Mental Health crisis pathway and a new model of support in primary care.
e Embedding a preventative approach to all our work

This plan is supplemented by the Activity, Finance and Performance submissions made to
NHSE/I in March 2020 which outline our commitment to deliver the constitutional (RTT,
cancer, diagnostics), access, and other standards within the system (acute, primary care and
community) alongside the finance and activity trajectories.

It should be noted that at the time of writing this plan the NHS is experiencing its biggest
peacetime challenge as it responds to the global spread of COVID 19 and therefore as more

45



BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

unfolds during the first quarter of this year some of the plans articulated here may be subject
to change.

2. Introduction

This operational plan sets out our transformation plans for 2020/21 to meet the needs of our
local population and drive improvements in health and wellbeing, quality and care and the
efficiency of local NHS services to ensure sustainable services for the people of Berkshire
West. Our plan sets out how we intend to deliver our statutory responsibilities and our vision
for healthcare services in Berkshire West over the next year. It outlines our strategy for local
services, within the framework of the Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West
(BOB) Integrated Care System and our Berkshire West Integrated Care Partnership (ICP).

It is a public document which aims to provide assurance to our Governing Body, and to inform
our local stakeholders of our current position, our plans and next steps in the commissioning
and delivery of health care in Berkshire West. This plan sits alongside the BOB strategic
delivery plan (not yet published) for implementing the requirements of the NHS Long term plan
as well as a Berkshire West ICP plan which sets out the health and social care priorities to
deliver locally (under development).

Delivering high quality health and social care within the resources available has never been a
greater challenge for the NHS and its local authority colleagues and this financial pressure is
significant in 2020/1.

Figure 1: How our system fits together

System:

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire, Berkshire West (BOB) ICS
1.8m population
Strategic Collaboration of Partners across scale

Place:

Berkshire West Integrated Care Parinership
550,000 population
Transformation and Integration of local services

Locality:
Health and I _

. 3 localities in line with LA geographies
Wellbeing Boards ¢ 150,000 population

Design of local delivery options

Neighbourhood:

Primary Care Networks 14 neighbourhoods
30-50,000 population
Wraparound integrated care

46



BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

3. About us

Berkshire west CCG serves a population of approximately 550,000 residents working
alongside six other public sector organisations including:

e Three local authorities — Reading, Wokingham and West Berkshire
e Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust

e Royal Berkshire Foundation Trust

e South Central Ambulance Foundation Trust

There are also 47 GP practices and 14 Primary Care Networks (PCNs) that operate across
the geography that are a core part of the healthcare landscape.

Figure 2: Berkshire West geography

Royal Berkshire NHS FT North and West Reading Wokingham Locality:
Provider of acute services Locality: GP practices = 13

GP practices =9 Population at Jan 2019 = 167,903
Berkshire Healthcare NHS FT Population at Jan 2019 = 109,385

Provider of mental health and community services

Newbury and District South Reading Locality:
Locality: GP practices = 16
GP practices = 10 Population at Jan 2019 = 152,553

Population at Jan 2019 = 120,034

47



BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

Figure 3 Berkshire West Primary Care Networks

BERKSHIRE WEST Primary Care Networks (PCNs) NHS

(o]
550,000 patients

Q00

@ 14 Primary Care Networks

6&) 47 practices

nnnnn

£ 3 zsz:75 B
i

The three local authority areas have some notable differences in terms of their demographic
and health profiles. Reading has a much younger population with typical characteristics of an
inner city diverse population, Wokingham is suburban with rapid housing expansion under
way, whilst West Berkshire has an older population and significant rurality.

Generally, the health of residents of Berkshire West is good; however, there are some clear
differences between the populations in each of the local authority areas and this is reflected
in the differing health needs. This corresponds with recent analysis of population segmentation
for Berkshire West residents (figure 4).

Figure 4 Berkshire West Population Segmentation insights

Segment Percentage of Population Percentage of Total Cost
Frailty Risk 3% 19%
QOrgan Failure 3% 11%
Cancer 3% 8%
Disability 4% 6%
Multi-Morbidity 14% 21%
Single LTC 20% 15%
Maternity 1% 3%
Children 17% 6%
Mostly Healthy 35% 12%

48



BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

4. NHS long term plan commitments — 2020/1

In response to the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) BOB ICS has been developing its five year
plan. The five year, one system plan aims to describe how partners within the ICS will work
together and with people in their communities, to deliver the ambitions of the NHS LTP and
address the specific priorities, opportunities and challenges within the BOB ICS area. The plan
sets out how we will work together to deliver joined up health and care, support people to live
longer, healthier lives, make best use of public investment to secure the best outcomes, focus
locally unless there are benefits to working across the ICS and/or with our partners across the
Thames Valley.

The aims of BOB ICS include:

o To work together to deliver joined up health and care services based on the needs of
individuals and shaped by the circumstances and priorities of local communities

e To support people to live longer, healthier lives and treat avoidable iliness early on

e To make the best use of available public funds and resources so that, together, we can
secure the best outcomes

e To make our focus local unless it is more efficient and effective for us to pool our expertise
and resources to work together as an integrated health and care system across
Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West (BOB).

e To reach out, where appropriate, beyond our borders and work in partnership with others
— for example, across the wider Thames Valley region on specialist cancer services.

The challenge for BOB as an ICS is translate and deliver the ambitions of the NHS Long Term
Plan into an ICS strategy that provides 21st century care supported by a data-driven model of
care planning. The challenge in addressing the NHS LTP 5 year plan priorities will be to:

e Integrate and prioritise the strategic initiatives to build the plan and deliver our vision;
e Ensure the strategic initiatives are coordinated and effective;
¢ Plan and manage the management and resource capacity effectively.

Services will need to be provided in an increasingly integrative manner, using population
health information to inform priorities, improving digital capability and ensuring we have the
workforce to support the needs of our population.

The BOB ICS has agreed a set of principles for how it will operate that prioritises delivering
care as close to the patient as possible but where there are outcome or efficiency benefits to
operating at scale, we will do so. BOB ICS has a place-based focus, recognising that system
working at a county level is a key driver of much of the transformation across the BOB footprint.
Figure 3 below sets put the BOB ICS strategic priorities and their relationship with place based
delivery

Figure 3: BOB ICS Strategic priorities

49



BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

ICS role Description Clarification and rationale

Design approach to a i ) Strategic planning,
Systemdesign | problem atICS level Population and Acute system design &
& delivery Deliver solution at ICS economic growth collaboration resource .
level ) allocation §
System design Design approach to a g: ﬁ
& place/org probiem atiCS level Digital Workforce Capital & estates ™ 2
de but leave places/orgs =3
v to deliver \ J a =
%
Primary care, inc ! &5
Agree ICS ambition (or P Im'v e Financial balance Mantalhaalth 2=
confirm ICS signs up to rmary Care & efficiency ental heal £X
Setorconfirm | nationally set Networks (PCNs) 3 p § =
ambition and ambition) and hold 3 '§.
hold to account | places to account \rgant e o3
for/support delivery g i = iy
Emergency Care Cancer Maternity 3, &
sz
aw
o
e
2
Bring places/ &=
Coordinate, 3 - §
RaEE organisations together §
& as a community of S
practice, 3
S practice to share e & -+
approsches and revention 2
colhornion solutions reducing
mequalmes
Key | ICS workstream I ICS Financial Oversight Group | Place delivery
————1 supported by ICS-wide
ICS Exec Lead -| Place infrastructure group

Alongside the specific operating guidance requirements set out for the NHS in 2020/21
Berkshire CCG will also continue to work with colleagues across the BOB ICS to deliver the
ongoing requirements of the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP). These include the following key
areas of focus:

¢ Integrated Care, with particular work streams on primary care, urgent and emergency
care and population health
Prevention and Health Inequalities

e Care Quality & Outcomes, with particular work streams on Maternity, Mental Health,
Cancer and Acute Care Collaboration

o Workforce
Digital transformation — a shared priority including our Local Health and Care Record
Exemplar programme but with work undertaken and coordinated at place-level within
our ICS
Efficiency and Productivity, including capital requirements

o Engagement and Partnerships

The governance structure at BOB to support the delivery of the above priorities can be found
in Appendix 1. The draft BOB LTP submission can be found below — this outlines in more
detail how each of the areas highlighted in the bullet points above will be delivered.
https://www.bobstp.org.uk/media/1752/ics-ltp-1st-draft-submission-v10-2.pdf

The purpose of the Berkshire West Operating plan is to respond specifically to the ask of the
CCGs and other NHS organisations as set out in the guidance released by NHSE/I in January
2020 and therefore does not seek to replicate the BOB LTP submission.

5. Berkshire West Strategic Priorities and transformation programme

50


https://www.bobstp.org.uk/media/1752/ics-ltp-1st-draft-submission-v10-2.pdf

BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

In light of the NHS LTP and the challenges faced by the local health and care system Berkshire
West ICS has identified 9 strategic priorities for the year ahead (2020/1). Services will need
to be provided in an increasingly integrative manner, using population health information to
inform priorities, improving digital capability and ensuring we have the workforce to support
the needs of our population.

Our priorities for 2020/21 are set out below and build on the work undertaken in previous
years:

o Development and implementation of a new Urgent & Emergency Care delivery model

o Development of our Primary Care Networks (or Neighbourhoods), with a wraparound
model of care.

¢ Transforming how and where we deliver outpatient services

e Development and implementation of an Integrated MSK service

o Improved detection and management of people with respiratory and cardio vascular
conditions in primary care.

e Development and implementation of a Mental Health crisis pathway as well as a new
model of support in primary care.

e To work with public health colleagues to embed a preventative approach to all our work

e Implement and embed our approach to Population Health Management and Digital
transformation

¢ Implement the ICP financial recovery plan

As part of the COVID recovery process there may also be areas of learning that we can
capitalise on, for example our use of digital technology, which will enable us to identify further
transformation priorities for the CCG and our ICP.

6. Berkshire West Integrated Care Partnership

At a local level, ICPs will design strong systems (using a set of common strategic objectives)
to plan and commission care for their local populations. This will take place under joint system
leadership bringing together NHS providers, commissioners and local authorities to work
together in partnership to improve health and care in their areas.

In July 2018 the Berkshire West ICP was established. We have developed our ICP as a place
based alliance of NHS providers (including PCNs), commissioners, local authorities and
stakeholders that will work by collaboration not competition responsible for:

* Ajoint approach to Population Health Management (PHM);

+ Development of joint plans to meet the needs of residents

* Management of commissioning budgets;

* An open book approach through a cost based, system I&E approach to managing the
cost of care;

» Joint working with Local Authorities and having a shared responsibility for statutory
duties (e.g. safeguarding);

» Ensuring a coordinated, multidisciplinary clinical input into local decision making;

» Ensuring a coordinated, multi -focussed approach to public engagement;

51



BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

» ICP performance & assurance
The ICP is where we work together using a population health management approach to ensure
resources are targeted to the most appropriate need and we are working towards being
aligned by a single Health & Wellbeing Strategy.
The work programme is driven by the strategic objectives of the ICP which ensures projects
are aligned to the overall vision and are focussed on what are known as local issues for all

partners.

The ICP strategic objectives are as follows:

To create partnerships

To promote and improve and integrate services
health and wellbeing for that deliver high quality
Berkshire West residents and accessible health
and care
To create a sustainable To create a financially
workforce that supports sustainable health and
new ways of working care system

Berkshire West ICP has identified four priorities or ‘flagship’ programmes of work in 2020/1
and beyond (to be reviewed post-COVID), these include:

- Delivery of the Berkshire West Urgent and Emergency care strategy

- Prevention

- Joint commissioning

- Neighbourhoods (including multi-disciplinary team working and social prescribing)

Work to define these programmes of work and their constituent projects is under way with
outline project briefs that clearly identify the objectives, deliverables benefits and impact for
the individual projects of each key priority area.

7. Our approach — Population health

Delivery of more joined up care for the population served by Berkshire West is golden thread
of the plan. PHM will be integral to create a single source of truth, identify the priority
opportunities to proactively target the right care for specific populations and shape the culture
of Berkshire West. Population Segmentation and risk stratification are two concepts used to
help understand the needs of the population so that services can be better planned and
delivered. Segmentation is grouping the local population by what kind of care they need as
well as how often they might need it. The CCG is currently using Bridge to Health concept of

10

52



BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

segmentation, but are looking beyond this to seek to use predictive analysis and actuarial
science to support future service planning.

8. Financial sustainability and performance

Berkshire West CCG has reported an in year financial deficit in 2019-20 of £9m, against a
planned breakeven position. When set against the CCG’s carried forward cumulative surplus
of £9.48m, this has left the CCG with a surplus balance of £0.48m to carry forward into 2020-
21. The financial planning process for 2020-21 which the CCG and its partner organisations
were completing during March 2020, was frozen before completion of either the contracting
cycle or its associating setting of financial budgets for the period.

The draft operating plan for 2020-21 which the CCG submitted before the freezing of the
process had the CCG forecasting a deficit in the year of £5.1m. This was after assumed
efficiency savings of £20.3m had been achieved. The make-up of these assumed savings
includes £5.8m to be delivered at a BOB ICS system level, which the CCG considered to be
undeveloped at the point the plan was drafted, these together with the achievement risk
already included in the other savings, lead to the CCG including a figure within the plan of
£15m as an estimate of unmitigated risk.

These plans were not however developed further, due to the Coronavirus pandemic. In order
to enable the NHS to focus fully on the pandemic, a simplified financial regime was introduced
in mid-March, and will last until at least the end of October 2020. This regime ensures sufficient
cash is held by NHS providers, for it not to be a barrier to fighting the pandemic, and non NHS
providers have been directly contracted by NHSE to refocus their capacity in coordination with
local NHS providers. Additional funds directly related to the additional costs of the pandemic
are claimed by NHS organisations on a monthly basis. Details of how the regime will work in
the remainder of the year are still being worked through centrally by NHSE.

This plan is also supplemented by Finance, Activity and Performance submissions made to
NHSE/I in March 2020. The overarching aim of the 20-21 operating plan is to support delivery
of the 20-21 long term plan commitments made by the CCG. This includes a commitment to
deliver the constitutional (RTT, cancer, diagnostics), access, and other performance
standards within the system (acute, primary care and community) whilst delivering the finance
and activity trajectories. It should be noted that whilst this commitment remains, it is likely that
the COVID-19 pandemic may impact on these trajectories. Berkshire West is actively working
through a recovery planning process to ensure any issues are identified and managed
appropriately.

9. Sustainable Development

The CCG continues to develop plans to assess risks, enhance our performance and reduce
our impact, including against carbon reduction, waste management and climate change
adaptation objectives. This includes establishing mechanisms to embed social and
environmental sustainability across policy development, business planning and in
commissioning. The CCG is developing a sustainability strategy.

The CCG has increased its use of teleconferences and has promoted the use of public
transport, cycling and/or walking to work to reduce the negative impact of transport on the
environment and promote a healthy lifestyle. The CCG has also been rolling out laptops to

11

53



BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

primary care colleagues to enable remote working and in response to the COVID19 incident
has used technology to enable staff to work from home. 56,615 business miles were claimed
during the year compared with 52,281 in 2019/20. This is a reflection of the growth in the
CCG’s workforce following the in-housing of support functions from the Commissioning
Support Unit.

The CCG operates an effective recycling system as part of its approach to waste management
and has increased the use of mobile technology to reduce its use of paper, ink and electricity.

All NHS organisations including CCGs are being asked to remove single-use catering plastics
from their offices which could help reduce NHS waste by over 100 million plastic items by
2021. The CCG has signed up to the pledge to support NHSE&I in eliminating avoidable
single-use plastics so by April 2021

o the CCG no longer purchased single-use plastic stirrers and straws
o the CCG no longer purchased single-use plastic cutlery, plates or single-use cups made
of expanded polystyrene or oxo-degradable plastics

The CCG hopes to go beyond these commitments in reducing single-use plastic cups for
beverages. The CCG does not use covers and lids for cups.

Matters on environmental issues are raised and discussed at the CCG’s Staff Partnership
Forum meetings, where initiatives such as these can be taken forward.

We will ensure the clinical commissioning group complies with its obligations under the
Climate Change Act 2008, including the Adaptation Reporting power, and the Public Services
(Social Value) Act 2012.

Prescribing

The CCG has also looked at its prescribing practices to understand the impact of items such
as Metered Dose Inhalers (MDI). The CCG are committed to reducing this impact by:

o Reviewing ways the use of dry powder devices can be safely promoted and where
appropriate. Dry Powder Inhalers (DPI) are now being considered as the first line choice
for new patients. DPIs have been included in our recent guidance for Asthma and COPD
to ensure the patient has the option to choose the best device for them in terms of
compliance and environment. The latest COPD guidance makes reference to DPIs having
less of a carbon footprint.

e Ensuring patients are on the correct therapy so as to reduce the number of doses/inhalers
a patient is requiring to keep them controlled. Pharmacists will review patients who appear
uncontrolled and thus reduce the number of inhalers dispensed.

o Exploration of the Glaxo recycling scheme and promoting the return of empty inhalers to
pharmacies for green disposal.

12

54



BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

10.Operational requirements — 2020/1

The table below sets out the response to the Operating plan guidance released in January 2020, with a focus on how the CCG will deliver against
these throughout 2020/1 both a system level (ICS) and as an organisation working with our partners in Berkshire West. It should be note that
the content of these plans may be subject to change due to the current COVID-19 pandemic and resulting impact on NHS services.

9.1 Primary care and community health

Operating plan requirements

System — BOB Delivery

GS

The three main priorities for PCN development
support in 2020/21 are:

0] supporting workforce redesign and
team development,
(i) improve patient access and practice

waiting times, and

(iii) building operational relationships with
community providers (including
pharmacies) to support integrated
care.

Deliverables:

o Work with PCNs to maximise recruitment
under the Additional Roles Reimbursement
Scheme, developing a plan to spend available
funding.

e Support the recruitment and retention of extra
doctors working in general practice practices
with long waits for routine appointments.
CCGs must provide monthly data to each
PCN showing the number and cost of A&E

The BOB primary care strategy — now part of the Long Term Plan - sets out the actions that will be
taken across the three Integrated Care Partnerships to invest the new resource identified to deliver a
transformed model of primary care.

Much of this work is already in train, with Primary Care Networks already set up, with 100% coverage
across the BOB ICS area. Clinical Directors have now all been appointed and are in the early stages of
forming the development plans necessary to provide structure to the ambitions set out at a local level. As
a system, a wide range of support mechanisms are in place to ensure these plans and structures are
robust, sustainable, and in line with the Long Term Plan vision and principles.

Workforce

GP Mentorship Scheme — The GP Mentoring scheme gives all GPs working in the BOB area the
opportunity to access mentoring support free of charge. We have developed an online web platform which
enables mentees to define their issue of concern, choose a mentor who they believe can help them
resolve it, communicate directly with them and facilitate their one to one meetings. BW so far has 5
mentors and 5 mentees, less than the other places, and we would like to expand this.

GP Locum Chambers Scheme — BOB Locum Chambers has been developed to offer local GP locums
the opportunity to work together as small independent groups under a shared administrative and clinical
governance structure, to better support NHS GP practices across our area. In BW, one of the South
Reading PCN Practice Managers has agreed to support the project delivery to practices.

13



https://www.gpmentoring.co.uk/
https://www.boblocumchambers.org.uk/

BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

ag

attendances by that PCN’s patient population.
Ensure full delivery of online consultation
systems to general practices where these are
not already in place; learn from the work of the
digital first primary care accelerator project;
and ensure full delivery of direct booking from
111 to in hours appointments (as per the
2019/20 GP contract).

Lead the transition to the new GPIT Futures
Digital Care Services Framework
arrangements. CCGs should work
collaboratively with their constituent GP
Practices and PCNs to develop plans to re-
procure the GP systems.

Work with PCNs to deliver national service
requirements from 2020/21, details of which
will be set out in the final version of the
forthcoming GP contract and Network
Contract Direct Enhanced Service (DES).
Funding invested by CCGs during 2019/20 in
local service provision which will be duplicated
through delivery of the new service
requirements in the Primary Care Network
Contract DES in 2020/21 should be reinvested
within primary medical care.

Provide CCG support to implement the NHS’s
comprehensive model of personalised care
and meet 2020/21 system trajectories for
personalised care and support planning,
Personal Health Budgets and social
prescribing.

GP Careers Support — The GP Careers Support Scheme will improve access to comprehensive GP career
development information. The scheme will provide curated training and development opportunities as well
as individually tailored careers advice for GPs working in the BOB area. The development of this scheme
is at an early stage, but it is scheduled to accelerate, with a clinical lead recently recruited.

International GP Recruitment — The IGPR project is a national scheme that has been rolled out across
the country based on greatest need. The scheme aims to identify International GPs who are able to
integrate into the existing NHS workforce. Berkshire West has been relatively successful in this scheme,
with one GP already placed, one GP waiting to start an agreed placement and another GP looking for a
practice in the Wokingham area.

New to practice fellowship scheme — This new scheme was announced as part of the GP contract update.
The scheme is a 2 year programme of support for newly qualified GPs and nurses recruited into General
Practice. The opportunity is open to anyone about to take up a post or already working in a practice.

Place — Berkshire West Delivery

Primary Care Network (PCN) Development

Within Berkshire West, we will continue to work to support our fourteen Primary Care Networks to
develop and mature in order to ensure the sustainability of the sector and promote integrated working
within neighbourhoods. We will support PCNs to work with community teams and others to build the
capacity and capability of Multi-Disciplinary Teams to undertake care planning and support delivery of
the national PCN service specification for Enhanced Support to Care Homes. We will also work with
PCNs to further embed social prescribing as a key component of care and to support them to use PHM
methodologies to better target proactive care which meets the specific health needs of the population
they serve.

Access

During 2020/21 access to appointments outside of core general practice hours will be commissioned
through PCNs, thereby offering increased flexibility for patients looking to utilise appointments at these
times. We will continue to work to identify and share best practice access models and to support
practices to proactively manage capacity and demand and to utilise new technologies and other means
of providing care e.g. through group consultations and digital triage. We will also look to improve

14




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

JAS

integration with community pharmacy, ensuring that new arrangements to direct patients to pharmacies
are used to best effect to improve overall access to care.

Workforce

The Berkshire West CCG primary care team will work with PCNs on further workforce development
through the ARRS funding allocation in 2020/1, as set out in the Network DES Guidance.

The new GP Contract update included a strong focus on workforce, and the expansion of the Additional
Roles Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS). The contract also provided guidance for the role that the
ICS/CCGs would be expected to support. Some of the work that is already underway includes:

e CCGs to work with PCNs to understand PCNs’ future recruitment intentions — To support this, the
BOB PC Workforce Group have developed a workforce planning tool that can help PCNs
understand how they can configure their workforce within the funding envelope available to them
through the ARRS. The data can be complied to help shape the training pipeline for the new
workforce types. This is complemented by the latest iteration of the Wessex Workforce Audit Tool,
which Practices and PCNs can use to help them understand how the new workforce can support the
workload of their existing staff. This work will be supported by a payment of £500 per practice to
complete the data collection exercise.

e CCGs to help PCNs recruit staff — There are a number of initiatives underway to explore how
recruitment to the new roles can be made easier and quicker for PCNs. BWPCNSs are in talks with
RBFT about a rotational workplace scheme for Physicians Associates. The Training Hub is involved
in discussions with SCAS about rotational recruitment for Community Paramedics. Finally, the CCG
(through the Medicines Optimisation Team) are working with the RBFT pharmacy to examine the
potential for rotational posts for Clinical Pharmacists and Pharmacy Technicians.

Digital First

The CCG ambition is to provide and commission digital services and solutions that ultimately result in
more effective and efficient healthcare for our population, improving health outcomes and driving down
costs. To do this, the CCG Primary Care IT strategy will be employed to: empower citizens, enable
clinicians, digitise and integrate health and care records, and make intelligent use of information. Our
approach will be ‘digital first’ so that digital opportunities are always considered, and digital services and

15



https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/investment-and-evolution-update-to-the-gp-contract-agreement-20-21-23-24/

BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

89

solutions are good enough, that people prefer to use them. In addition we will continually work to source
new and innovative solutions to serve this agenda.

Empower citizens, enable clinicians, digitise and integrate healthand care records . Barkshire West

—_— )
acute care linked surgeries

{6000 B8 [goog] /= GP E @
PLEFT ) p. "y
sty o

e patient at home

i

0
ﬂ JHIE

i

community health
& care

App \ Y,

Footfall -

Enabling clinicians \\ — / SMS -"QWOHU‘EEO\
EPS ]
—{ HSCN - superfast broadband by June 2020 ]—1' e
—[ Govroam - WiFiin NHS orgs by June 2020 ]— F = It«
—[ Cybersecurity — Windows 10 and 0365 ]— \_ Eﬂ Y,

During 2020/21, the CCG GPIT Committee, will overseeing the programme of digital first and agreed a
digital first approach to ensuring practices and PCNs are fully supported. Some of the work to be
includes

e By June 2020, all GP Practice will be upgrade on the broadband connectivity, with superfast
broadband to support HSCN.

e Adoption of mobile working workforces, replacing desktops with laptops for all PCN and GP staff to
allow flexibility

e Promotion of Online Consultation, currently 98% of practices offer online consultation, but by Q2 all
practices will provide this service. The CCG will also work with local Healthwatch to promote this
facility and hold promotion event for online consultation in each of the localities.

¢ Roll out GP Connect, across all practice site to all sharing of practice booking systems and also
share clinical systems. The CCG will support practices with this new way of working with support
from the Primary Care Team and Locality Teams.

16




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

9.2 Mental health

Operating plan requirements

System — BOB Delivery

69

Delivery of Mental Health Implementation Plan:

IAPT roll out

o Number of inappropriate OAP bed days for
adults by quarter four of each year that are
either ‘internal’ or ‘external’ to the sending
provider

o Number of inappropriate OAP bed days for
adults by quarter four of each year that are
‘external’ to the sending provider.

o People with severe mental iliness receiving a

full annual physical health check and follow up

interventions

e Perinatal Mental Health: Number of women
accessing specialist perinatal mental health
service

¢ Mental Health Liaison services within general
hospitals meeting the “core 24” service
standard

e Number of people accessing Individual
Placement and Support (IPS)

o EIP Services achieving Level 3 NICE
concordance

¢ Number of people receiving care from new
models of integrated primary and community
care for adults and older adults with severe
mental illness

o Coverage of 24/7 crisis provision for children
and young people (CYP) that combine crisis

Children and Young People

We will work to increase the number of children and young people accessing services, employ
additional staff to achieve this and also make greater use of online service delivery, partnerships with
schools and community and third sector organisations to address workforce shortages. We will fully use
transformation funding to develop MH Support Teams in schools across the BOB area, seeking
recurrent funding to support increased activity required in CAMHS while reducing waiting times

Crisis response and interventions

We will develop crisis home treatment services to ensure coverage across the BOB area. We will develop
alternative to admission services , (such as Safe Havens and services for high intensity users of services)
and strengthen our community MH services and workforce, to reduce bed occupancy, average length of
stay and delayed transfers of care from inpatient services to reduce inappropriate out of area placements.
Our Urgent Care services will include effective responses to people with MH needs delivered in
partnership between 111, Urgent Treatment Centres, Emergency Departments, Inpatient services and
Thames Valley Police, (including street triage).

We will improve the access to a range of community based MH and wellbeing support and services
through a single point of access. Third sector workers and outreach from secondary care community
MH teams will be closely integrated with general practice and PCNSs.

Understanding need

We will use our developing Population Health Management capability to better understand the mental
health needs of our population, how people are using our services and how best to use our collective
resources to achieve good outcomes for people with MH problems. Greater service user involvement in
our planning processes will ensure that services are increasingly co-produced.

Prevention & Intervention

The improvement of CAMHS and perinatal services is focused on preventing long term mental health
issues. We will work in partnership with developing Primary Care Networks to provide prompt support
for people with common mental health disorders We will continue to expand IAPT Services subject to
recurrent funding, providing prompt access to evidence based psychological therapies and employment
based support for adults and older adults. We will increase the number accessing services, train/employ

17




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

09

assessment, brief response and intensive
home treatment functions.

Improve access to Children and Young
People’s Mental Health Services (CYPMH)
We will provide physical health checks for
people with severe mental iliness, learning
disability and autism

IAPT (Talking Therapies) services for people
with long term physical health problems will be
expanded with availability of recurrent funding
Develop crisis home treatment services to
ensure coverage across the BOB area.
Urgent Care services will include effective
responses to people with MH needs delivered
in partnership between 111,Urgent Treatment
Centres, Emergency Departments, Inpatient
services and Thames Valley Police, (including
street triage)

Care closer to home: Crisis, home treatment
and alternatives to hospital admission will be
improved, and community mental health
teams strengthened to enable more people to
be treated at or near home, reducing the need
for out of area placements

Prevention: strengthened prevention of mental
ill health, mental health promotion and
reduced stigma linked to mental ill health
Holistic treatment and care: improved physical
health for people with severe mental health
problems, improved health and wellbeing of
people with a learning disability and autism

additional staff and make greater use of digital treatments. Our Suicide Prevention Intervention Network
will continue to work in inpatient and community settings to reduce suicide and self-harm, and support
those bereaved by suicide.

Holistic treatment and care

We will provide physical health checks for people with severe mental iliness, learning disability and
autism aiming to reduce health inequalities, and continue our focus on smoking cessation. We will
expand IAPT (Talking Therapies) services for people with long term physical health problems reaching
more people with a wider range of LTCs, subject to recurrent funding. We will increase the number of
older people accessing IAPT and work to improve the mental wellbeing of people with a learning
disability and those with autism.

Finance

Five key elements of revenue funding are supporting delivery of our plan, recognising the required scale

of increased access, delivery of new service models and effective response to growth:

¢ Funding in response to agreed demand growth assumptions in mental health is a key priority and is
subject to decision-making between commissioners and providers at “place” level in
Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West.

e Five Year Forward View and LTP Funding which has previously been committed to nationally has
been assumed as ongoing.

e Uplift to CCG budgets to support delivery of mental health aspects of the LTP has been included in
our planning in line with national assumptions.

¢ Specified time-limited Transformation Funding is also linked to the delivery of LTP targets. Our
ability to achieve these on an ongoing basis is contingent on availability of recurrent CCG funding.

o Efficiency savings will continue to be required at organisational level — recognising that a significant
effort is required to minimise waiting times as we increase access to services. Our NHS Provider
Trusts already benchmark well for efficiency, adding to the challenge of finding additional efficiency
opportunities.

Analysis of the above sources of investment across the 5 years of the plan is currently being undertaken

in Bucks, Oxon and Berkshire West, to ensure delivery of locally agreed priorities. This may mean LTP

targets are phased over a longer period than national trajectories.

18




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

19

Place — Berkshire West Delivery

2020/1 priorities

Continue to meet the Mental Health Investment Standard — a clear plan of investment(s) in place.

Children and Young people

Continued investment and all provider reporting to meet the access target of 34%

Comprehensive offer for CYP aged 0-25 started with a clear needs assessment and analysis

Continue with mental health support team roll out to meet the 33% coverage target

Eating Disorder Services continued investment to meet 95% access standard.

Implement the crisis review recommendations for CYP:

- Development of a new Crisis Line available 24/7 for all ages (BHFT Crisis Team) note — already in
place in response to Covid-19

- Development of specialist access for CYP : An improved CYP Crisis model offering crisis
assessment in the community within 24-48hour of a referral

Adults

Perinatal Mental Health

Continue to develop services to meet the access target of 7.7% this year. Developing & strengthening
the offer by extending treatment offer to 2 years; broadening the psychology offer, a birth trauma offer;
extending maternity outreach clinics; digital offer (skype and Dad pad)

IAPT

Increase the Talking Therapies offer to meet the access target of 25%, whilst maintaining recovery rate
above 50%.

Continue to expand the workforce with 9 new trainees.

Crisis care — implement the 14 recommendation’s agreed in the MH Crisis review, in particular:
Ongoing investment to meet the Core 24 offer at RBFT

Develop single point of access for adults and children and 24/7 response to support through 111.
Development of a pilot Crisis Café

Adult and Older Community MH services
Community Mental Health in Primary care through PCN development. Continue work in relation to
developing and agreeing PCMH model - agree pilot site/s with PC colleagues.

19




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

29

Physical health for people with serious mental health in primary care
Continue to develop the IPS offer to meet target of 150 patients

Early intervention in Psychosis
Invest to Maintain 60% EIP Access Standard and 70% Level 3 NICE concordance. Prepare for
expansion of service in following 3 years.

Dementia and Frailty

Exploring models to support people with dementia in their own home to prevent crisis.

Improving the management of patients with dementia in the community and in their home

Maintaining dementia diagnosis to meet the target rate of 66%

Improving integrating physical and dementia care interventions in the community to prevent admission
to acute hospital

Suicide prevention
Establish standardised psychosocial assessments in general hospitals across the ICS
Enhanced Bereavement Support

OAP placements

The following numbers are the trajectory target for Berkshire West for the year 2020-2021. There is
expected to be a surge in demand for Mental Health services which may have a knock on effect for
inpatient beds.

Trajectory targets for each quarter in the year 2020-2021

Target
Q1 2020/21 | 116
Q2 2020/21 | 76

Q3 2020/21 | 36

Q4 2020/21 | 0

20




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

9.3 Learning disabilities and Autism

Operating plan requirements

System — BOB Delivery

€9

A reduction in reliance on inpatient care for
people with a learning disability, autism or
both to meet the NHS Long Term Plan
commitments so that by 2023/24 there will be
no more than 30 adults with a learning
disability, autism or both per million adults in
an inpatient setting and no more than 12-15
children and young people per million children
in an inpatient setting.

Local areas will align their plans for children
and young people across special educational
needs and disability, mental health, health and
justice and learning disability and autism to
ensure that children and young people have a
better start.

Engagement with emerging provider
collaboratives (from April 2020) which will
develop discharge pathways and community
alternatives to inpatient provision.
Development of community services that can
provide robust and person centred
alternatives to hospital admission.

Making full use of Care (Education) and
Treatment Reviews (CTRS and CETRS) and
independently chaired C(E)TRs to ensure that
all those involved in a person’s care and
treatment are acting to ensure that the person
can be discharged from hospital (using the 12
Point Discharge Plan) as soon as they are
well enough to leave.

LD & Autism has been incorporated into the governance arrangements of the Mental Health workstream.
Feeding into this are place based Transforming Care Boards and Autism Partnership Boards. Programme
infrastructure, and a BOB-wide dashboard (to manage and monitor reductions variations and work
towards reducing inconsistency of outcomes for both formal collaborations and informal sharing of good
practice) will be developed over the early years of the ICS plan. Establishment of these will mitigate risks
such as coordinated use of resources.

Place — Berkshire West Delivery

2020/21
Berkshire —wide Programme Board to continue and to be reviewed after 6 months.

Additional investment in key posts to ensure continued delivery of 6 and 8 week visits to out of area
placements; robust and consistent approach to CTR’s and CETRs and consistent discharge planning

Embed Host Commissioner arrangements

Bids will be submitted to NHSE to support proposals detailed below:

1) Development of community placements through capital investments

2) Purpose-designed supported housing established with skilled support staff.

3) Intensive support & adapted therapies for people with autism, specialist autism expertise available
across all ages.

4) Pilot a project to reduce admissions for 18 to 24 year olds.

5) Children & Young People Transition pilot.

6) PBS and therapy-based, holistic, family-centred multi-disciplinary support for children with autism or
LD & challenging behaviours

7) Robust Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) pathway for mental health support
for children with Learning Disability (LD) or Autism

8) System-wide Positive Behavioural Support (PBS) training and consistent approach embedded

9) Setting up dynamic risk register to manage escalation

21




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

79

o 8 week visits for all adults and 6 week visits
for all children and young people in inpatient
settings out of area.

e Establishing arrangements for ‘host
commissioner’ oversight of local inpatient
facilities.

o At least 75% of people aged 14 and over with
a learning disability on GP learning disability
register should have had an annual health
check within the last twelve months, and

CCGs should also work with PCNs to increase

flu vaccinations rates for people with a
learning disability.
A robust CCG plan in place to ensure that

Learning Disability Mortality Reviews (LeDeR) are

allocated within 3 months and completed within 6
months of the notification of death to the local
area. CCGs are expected to be a member of a

‘Learning from LeDeR’ steering group and have a

named person with lead responsibility. An annual
report will be submitted to the appropriate board/

committee for all statutory partners demonstrating

action taken and outcomes from LeDeR reviews.

In addition, ICP focus on:

e Work with partners to promote reasonable adjustments for people with learning disabilities to
improve access to healthcare services and peoples reported experience of these services

e Work with primary care to support upskilling and confidence in the promotion of health and well-
being and early identification of deterioration of physical health of people with a learning disability

e Continue emphasis on annual health checks in Primary Care

e Continued engagement and support to LeDeR steering group in BWCCG

9.4 Urgent and Emergency Care (UEC)

Operating plan requirements

System — BOB Delivery

o Deliver material improvement against A&E
performance benchmark

e Reduce general and acute bed occupancy
levels to a maximum of 92%

At ICS level the three places coordinate through the ICS UEC Committee and regional expertise such as
the Clinical Senate, to ensure that patients across BOB can access timely and specialist care no matter
where they experience an event.

The following priorities have been identified as work at ICS level over the next 5 years for UEC:
e Review of primary care streaming at Emergency Departments and development of an enhanced
model of care

22




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

G9

Increase the proportion of patients seen and
treated in the same day (or within 12 hours if
this spans midnight) to a level agreed
regionally

Ensure the SDEC activity is recorded on the
Emergency Care Data Set or Admitted Patient
Care to allow activity to be counted

Ambulance services should ensure they meet
the ambulance response time constitutional
standards

Modelling of acute and community bedded care capacity and assessment of future need.
Management of stranded patients and improvements to Delayed Transfers of Care
Implementation of the new Urgent & Emergency Care standards, when published
Completion of Urgent Treatment Centre designation and the coordination of same day illness
and injury provision

Supported by development of a workforce strategy that includes a coordinated response to the
domiciliary care market and coordination of staffing.

Priorities for delivery at supra-ICS level

The development of ambulance services and Integrated Urgent Care (IUC) is undertaken jointly with
partners across Frimley. Across BOB & Frimley, the following services will be developed during the life

of this plan:
luc
¢ Increasing clinical capacity within Integrated Urgent Care.
e Providing access to rapid community response and reablement.
e Implementing MiDOS (an enhanced Directory of Services).
e Increasing direct booking into GP practices from 111.

Ambulance

Implement a single Clinical Assessment Service across 999 and 111.

Developing paramedic rotational posts within Primary and Community Care.

Improving Technology and Digital enablement for 999 crews.

Developing a Total Health and Social Care Transport solution.

Enhancing the ability of crews on scene to manage patients in the community and avoid a
clinically unnecessary conveyance to ED.

23




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

Q9

Place — Berkshire West Delivery

Deliver material improvement against A&E performance benchmark

A&E performance is a barometer of flow through the UEC pathway and the following are key
developments to support improved flow;

e NHS 111 increasingly becoming the single point of access to urgent care services ensuring only
those needing ED are directed to the service

¢ Rapid assessment and management in frailty and ambulatory care settings to support safe and
effective return home the same day where clinically appropriate

e Maintain multi-disciplinary management of delayed patients and those with a long length of stay,
including regular Executive focus and support to help patients home safely

e Further develop 7 day working, improving discharge levels at weekends to reduce the potential for
patients to remain in hospital with a long length of stay

e Improved co-ordination with the third sector to provide additional non-medical support to patients
and their families in hospital and at home.

The system is also preparing to deliver the new urgent & emergency clinical standards for care,
including stroke, trauma, sepsis and heart attack. We will ensure that patients requiring critical care
receive assessment within 15 minutes and treatment in an hour, providing responsive, safe care across
all pathways.

Reduce general and acute bed occupancy levels to a maximum of 92%

We will work with our community services and ambulance provider to ensure that only patients who
really need hospital based care come into hospital. New pathways of care will ensure that more patients
will be treated without an overnight stay and for those that need admission length of stay will be
minimised.

Capacity and responsiveness in community health urgent response services will be increased to provide
support to those that need it most with flexible teams working across primary and community care
providing recovery, reablement and rehabilitation support.

24




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

/9

Health and social care working in a more integrated way to ensure that following a hospital stay patients
can return to their own home with any support that they require with 2 hour support for discharge and 2
day access to reablement. The Rapid Community Discharge principles adopted during the Covid-19
response will be embedded within normal working arrangements.

Ensure the SDEC activity is recorded on the Emergency Care Data Set or Admitted Patient Care
to allow activity to be counted

Ensuing compliance with national reporting requirements.

Ambulance services should ensure they meet the ambulance response time constitutional
standards

Key initiatives for SCAS, our local ambulance provider include;

¢ Implementation of MiDOS, a tool which supports crews to manage by providing information about
local services and pathways

e Using technology to provide more proactive care and support welfare calls to those at risk of
deterioration

¢ Providing proactive and rapid response of patients at risk of falling or who have fallen

e Improve support to palliative care patients to avoid unnecessary conveyance at end of life

e Enhancing the ability of crews on scene to manage patients in the community and avoid a clinically
unnecessary conveyance to ED.

Priorities for delivery - BW ICP

As part of delivery of the BOB Strategic Delivery Plan the BW ICP UEC Programme Board will oversee
delivery of the following at place;

Developing a coordinated Out of Hours specification and alignment of services within IUC
Implementation of the Emergency Care dataset across relevant services

Implementation of the SAFER bundle and multi-disciplinary review of patients daily

Increasing joint working across health and social care including therapy and social work teams at
the beginning of the acute hospital pathway

o Development of support to High Intensity Users, frail patients and those at risk of falls

25




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

89

The Board will also oversee delivery of the Berkshire West Urgent & Emergency Care strategy
developed during 2019-20 that describes a suite of 14 improvement opportunities that we wish to deliver
over the next five years. The improvement opportunities cover the following areas;

Wellbeing, prevention and self-care

Voluntary sector services

Integrated Urgent Care (NHS 111)

Person centred coordinated care

Same day urgent Primary Care

Same day urgent community services

Clinician access to same day specialist opinion

Mobile treatment services delivered by ambulance services,
Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC)

Optimising the Emergency Department

Optimising Mental Health crisis response

Optimising patient flow through RBH beds

Optimum use of community beds and home first as first choice.

Each improvement opportunity has an associated set of key actions which will be delivered over the
forthcoming months and years and work is underway to map the baseline position so we can measure
improvement and benefits.

9.5 Referral to Treatment Time (RTT)

Operating plan requirements

System — BOB Delivery

The waiting lists for elective care should reduce in
2020/1.

Waits of 52 weeks or more for treatment should
be eradicated. Systems should plan to use

The BOB ICS has formed a working group called the Acute Collaboration Workstream to provide an

integrated approach on system pressures in planned care. The ACW is one of 9 work streams identified

within the BOB ICS Strategy to focus on driving efficiency, increasing productivity, reducing waiting

times, reducing pressure of demand and releasing capacity across the whole system for planned care.

e Streamlining outpatients services through adoption of digital tools that support activities such as virtual
consultations to increase access and a reduction in face to face consultations, over a five year period.

26




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

capacity flexibly across their systems to reduce
long waits

Introduction of supplementary choice at 26 weeks
with reference to the 26 week Choice Rules and
Guidance

This is based on the patient being seen in the right place first time and seeing the right healthcare
professional.

¢ Implement targeted improvement programmes in challenged services such as Ophthalmology, ENT
and Musculoskeletal (MSK) and gynaecology to deliver an increase in planned surgical productivity
that reduces waiting times of over 52 weeks by end of Mar 2020.

¢ Implement the national ‘Choice’ programme, on a specialty by specialty basis and based on an
assessment of affordability delivered via a placed based approach.

e By 2023/24 provide access to First Contact Practitioners (FCP) plus online digital support for all
patients with MSK conditions across ICS via ICPs.

¢ In line with the reduction in waits reducing the size of the overall waiting list to within the March 2018
out turn levels over a five year period.

69

Place — Berkshire West Delivery

The CCG RTT performance has deteriorated in 2019-20 as compared to 2018-19. This is due to a number
of factors; national shortage of dermatology consultant which has impacted RBFT capacity in the year as
mentioned above. In addition to this ENT and ophthalmology performance has remained challenging in
both our acute and out of area providers leading to a drop in performance. It is to be noted that RBFT has
achieved the national standard throughout 2019-20.

There were twenty patients waiting over 52 weeks at the end of March at RBFT. As part of a deep dive
review of the current ENT and Plastics booking processes a few referrals were identified as waiting over
52 weeks. Urgent clinical review is currently taking place for these patients. In addition to this in March
due to COVID-19, routine appointments have been deferred until the crisis is resolved. These patients
however will continue to be monitored on the PTL and dealt with on a priority basis when routine
appointments at RBFT will be resumed.

As the NHS moves through the COVID-19 pandemic in the first quarter of 2020/1 it is likely that RTT will
be impacted on fairly significantly during this period. Recovery plans are now under development to
review how services can be re-established safely with a view to capitalising on rapid transformation work
that has taken place as a response to COVID.

27




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

9.6 Outpatient transformation

Operating plan requirements

System — BOB Delivery

0/

Systems should ensure that advice and
guidance arrangements/agreements are in
place between secondary and primary care
providers and in line with the 2020/21 national
specification

For 2020/21, systems should begin the
implementation of video consultation in major
outpatient specialties so that all patients can
access outpatient care without travelling to
hospital.

Accelerate patient-initiated follow up in
outpatient specialties and to be able to
demonstrate progress against their 2018/19
position.

Engage with the development and
mobilisation of elective High Impact
Interventions which will be developed during
2020/21.

Continue to embed First Contact Practitioner
(FCP) services, participate in the national
evaluation process, and roll out FCP services
more widely. By March 2023, FCP services
will be available to the whole adult England

In June 2019 the BOB ICS (wave 3) had support approved for input from the NHSEI Elective Care
Delivery Team for a pan system approach to improvement of its outpatient services which includes
using digitisation as an enabler to improve access and efficiency. The key ambitions for the programme
have been developed in line with delivery of the Long Term Plan (LTP) principles and includes:

Development of a clinically led and locally owned plan for a system wide reduction in a third of
all face to face outpatient consultations with alternative models of delivery or a reduction in
demand

Development of a work force plan that harnesses alternative delivery methods incorporating first
line therapist interventions such as direct referral for GP’s to specialist physiotherapists in
gynaecology, increased utilisation of the nurse consultant and specialist nurse model as first
contact practitioner and undertaking diagnostics

Establishment of a system wide best practice model for outpatient services that utilises
digitisation and other technologies to maximum effect including Advice and Guidance and
Patient Initiated Follow ups.

A review of clinical pathways in specific high demand services such as ophthalmology to
streamline delivery, reduce unwarranted variation, improve access and improve the service user
experience

Utilisation of the estate to maximum effect relocating outpatient activity outside of the acute
sector and into localities

Develop and implement, through collaboration with our population, a system wide education and
support programme that introduces new technologies and prepares users for its implementation.

These aims will be achieved over a five year period, with an agreed implementation plan with support
and coordination provided through the ICS structure. They will be implemented as part of place based
improvement programmes.

28




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

population. In 2020/21 coverage will increase
to 50%, with planned rises to 75% in 2021/22
and 100% in 2022/23.

e Ensure that all hospital eye services can
report compliance with the Portfolio of
Indicators for Eye Health and Care follow-up
performance standard.

Wi

Place — Berkshire West Delivery

Berkshire West transformation programme priorities include:

» Developing standardised process for running telephone and video clinics including process
maps and SOPs, consistent recording of activity, payment.

» Clear process to moving clinics off site including use development of online booking tool and
clinic utilisation data to highlight opportunities for change.

+ Greater central input into room allocation and staffing decisions in OP estate.

* Phased roll-out of best practice menu of evidence based new models for outpatient delivery;

» Collection and monitoring of implementation plans by specialty;

+ Start piloting of interventions in BHFT — beginning with Patient Initiated Follow-ups.

* Focused review of pathways in Ophthalmology, Dermatology, Cardiology, ENT, MSK and
Dementia to consider what activity can be moved into the community as part of service redesign;

» Programme of education and process improvement to reduce unnecessary referrals and
improve the quality of remaining referrals.

Development of options and business cases for three areas — Berkshire Cancer Centre, Adult ENT and
Audiology and Therapies — to move the large proportion of outpatient activity to another RBH site.

RBFT eye services are reporting compliance with the identified indicators, these are monitored regularly
within the service and annual audits are also carried out.

9.7 Cancer

Operating plan requirements

System — BOB Delivery

Improvement against the 62 standard and
delivery of 28 day faster diagnosis standard
(FDS) — meeting the DS at the initial threshold of
at least 70%.

All trusts within the alliance to have in place
processes and capacity for supporting patients to
navigate cancer pathways and robust PTL
management

Our approach forms part of the Thames Valley Cancer Alliance’s (TVCA) 5-year strategy for cancer
developed in response to the long term plan for cancer with a focus on our achievements to date, our
challenges now and for the future and how we plan to address them.

Thames Valley Cancer Alliance
In response to “Achieving World Class Cancer Outcomes: Taking the Strategy Forward” and the NHS

Long Term Plan, TVCA have published a 5-year Cancer Strategy (September 2019). This will continue to
implement the key recommendations of the national strategy and those of the Long Term Plan in Thames
Valley by 2024.

29




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

¢l

Implementing optimal timed pathways and
identifying challenged pathways and prioritising
these for improvement.

Support the implementation of Faecal
Immunochemical Test (FIT) in bowel screening
with a demonstrable reduction in colonoscopies

Implementation of personalised stratified follow up
pathways for colorectal and prostate cancer by
April 2021 and ensure at least two thirds of breast
cancer patients benefit from stratified follow up.

Improve the recruitment and retention of Clinical
Nurse Specialists and cancer support workers
and implement local plans to recruit additional
clinical and diagnostics staff by 2021.

Support improved uptake and performance in
other cancer screening programmes, including
cervical and breast.

Place — Berkshire West Delivery

Berkshire West

At a local level our Berkshire West ICP cancer ambitions reflect the national and Thames Valley

priorities. It also takes into account the local needs of our Berkshire West patients. The strategic

objectives include:

1. Promote healthy lifestyle choices to reduce cases of preventable cancers

2. Deliver all nine Cancer Waiting Time Standards

3. Increase number of cancers diagnosed at stages 1 & 2 and improve 1 year survival rates by
improving access to diagnostics

4. Increase uptake of Bowel, Breast and Cervical Screening, especially targeting screening inequalities

5. Implement Vague Symptoms Pathway and RDC at RBFT

6. Ensure all newly diagnosed cancer patients have access to appropriate Personalised Support as
part of the Recovery Package

7. Ensure RBFT have protocols in place for open access (risk stratified) follow up of Breast, Prostate
and Colorectal patients

8. Increase number of patients supported to die in their place of choice (led by BWCCG Long Term
Conditions Programme Board)

The Berkshire West ICP Cancer Framework 2019-2024 will continue to drive the work locally to respond
to operating requirements as well as locally defined challenges.

9.8 Maternity

Maternity Services

E.Q.1 — Reduction in stillbirth rate

E.Q.2 — Reduction in neonatal mortality rate
E.Q.3 —Increase in proportion of women placed on
a continuity of care pathway

E.Q.4 — Reduction in brain injury rate

The local maternity system was established across BOB in March 2017 in line with the Better Births
Report: National Maternity Review published in June 2016. However, this development builds on a history
of co-production working across the Thames Valley. The BOB Local Maternity System Delivery Plan for
2017-2021 was published in February 2019 and all organisations continue to work together to deliver the
activities specified in that plan. Key activities for the year ahead will be a continuing focus on the delivery
of the specified priorities namely:

Waorkforce; particularly the focus on midwifery requirements at each Provider Trust

Digital; including the aspiration to ensure that women have a maternity digital handheld record
Better Births / Long Term Plan; working collectively to achieve the KLOEs required
Personalisation; over the year ahead a continued focus on ensuring all women have a PCP

30




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

el

e Continuity of Carer (as above)

e Saving Babies Lives; ensuring that each provider is working towards compliance with v2

¢ Perinatal mental health; continuing the development of work in this area

¢ Infant feeding; continuing to improve provision in provider and community settings

e Preventing smoking in pregnancy; working collaboratively to improve assessment and actions
e Access to postnatal physiotherapy; reducing variation between our providers in this area

In the year ahead, there is specific risk associated with the delivery of E.Q.3, the number of women
placed on a continuity of care (CoC) pathway.

The BOB LMS has made slow progress on delivering the national targets to increase the proportion of
women placed on a continuity of carer pathway. Progress was impacted by a low starting point of only
8% across BOB, due to midwifery teams not set up to deliver services in this way and proposals to deliver
the COC ask in Bucks (who were on 0%), requiring large scale staff consultation. Good progress is now
being made, with BOB LMS achieving 20% of women on a continuity of carer pathway by April 2020 and
robust plans reviewed and approved by the BOB LMS to deliver 35% by April 2021. Continuity of carer
teams have been established or are due to go live imminently in the most deprived wards, with high BAME
populations to ensure mothers that have been identified nationally as having the poorest outcomes are
being targeted to receive continuity of carer as a priority.

All 3 Trusts delivering midwifery services across BOB are now working hard to develop their plans to
deliver the 51% target by April 2021, but this is a risk area for BOB, that has been highlighted to NHSE.
Bucks have been partnered with Dorset as part of the NHSE ‘Buddy programme’ and NHSE are currently
looking for potential buddies for Berkshire West and Oxford to try and support our progress in delivering
this challenging target.

31




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

9.9 NHS public health functions and prevention

Operating plan requirements

System — BOB Delivery

v/

Support an additional 25,000 people lose weight
and reduce their risk of diabetes through the
Diabetes prevention programme and pilot low
calorie diets at scale to support people with
existing Type 2 diabetes achieve remission.

NHS population cancer screening, non-cancer
screening and national immunisation programmes
are delivered optimally to the population.

Expand alcohol care teams and roll out smoking
cessation support for inpatients and maternity
services.

Each of the Integrated Care Partnerships (ICPs) within the BOB ICS has developed plans for tackling the
incidence and impact of Long Term Conditions (LTCs) in place. Plans to date and specifically those that
have focussed on Cardiovascular Disease, Stroke, Diabetes, Respiratory Disease and Obesity include
prevention, identification of those patients at high risk of developing LTCs and optimal management, all
underpinned by empowerment of patients through supported self-care. The National Programmes in
disease categories such as Diabetes are long established and are realising benefits.

We will review and streamline pathways to remove some of the artificial barriers between primary,
secondary, mental health and community care so that services and support is wrapped around the
patient. We will provide a programme of education and training across all LTCs that supports
professionals and patients involvement in development of new models of care that will include:

e Prevention — A key pillar of the ICS LTCs programme including primary interventions (preventing
the illness) secondary (reducing the impact) or tertiary (delaying the impact).

e Personalised care — We will personalise care for the individual and their families to provide care
closer to their homes and support them with digital tools and education to empower patients to
better manage their conditions. We have a strong foundation on which to build rolling out work
undertaken in Diabetes

¢ Integrated Care — linking care and access to care records across primary care, primary care
networks , secondary and tertiary care and the broader ICS where care for patients with LTCs
crosses boundaries particularly where there are multiple comorbidities to be managed

e Digitisation of pathway elements

e Improved awareness of health and wellbeing - people with LTCs are more at risk of depression
and anxiety

e Streamlining of the whole disease pathway that enables timely care and shortens waiting times
for planned aspects of care.

Place — Berkshire West Delivery

Berkshire West has a multifaceted approach to support individuals to manage their health effectively and
prevent diabetes. The CCG is working to develop a Diabetes Dashboard using real time data to enable
primary care to work more productively with those with diabetes and at risk of developing the condition. As

32




BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

Gl

the dashboard is integrated into practice as part of everyday working, there will be support given to
encourage practices to use the dashboard to identify those at risk of diabetes through a locally developed
diabetes toolkit. Practices will be supported to complete a self-assessment against specific quality
markers aiming to increase referrals to the NDPP programme for those identified at risk of developing
diabetes. This work will be further supported by visits from the Diabetes Clinical leads to all the Berkshire
West Practices. The current pre-diabetes CES ensures that the most appropriate patients are referred to
NDPP depending on their HBA1c levels and the NDPP referral criteria.

Berkshire West is working with Thames Valley Cancer Alliance (TVCA) to improve local cancer
screening rates in Primary Care. This is to ensure that we deliver against the key cancer ambitions of
the NHS Long Term Plan — namely, to improve five year cancer survival and increase early stage
cancer diagnosis.

Using transformational funding from TVCA, Berkshire West CCG are rolling out two initiatives in Primary
Care — the Quality Improvement Scheme (for all GP surgeries) and the Cancer Quality Award Scheme
(for one PCN pilot site). Both projects require the local practices to look at their current screening rates
& then to carry out QI activities in order to encourage further screening uptake. Within both schemes
there is a strong element of looking at ways to increase screening in traditionally low uptake screening
groups, which is another key theme across the NHS Long Term Plan.

In addition, Berkshire West CCG work with Rushmoor Healthy Living and Macmillan to support the local
Cancer Champions in South Reading. These Champions raise cancer awareness in the local
population, including the BAME and LGBTQ+ communities. This gives these communities, which are
often low uptake screening groups, a better understanding of cancer and the importance of screening.
The Cancer Champions also work with local PPGs to raise screening awareness amongst patients and
the community. The Cancer Champions were recruited as part of the Macmillan South Reading Project
(in 2017), looking to increase screening in low uptake groups and therefore improve cancer survival.
This project will now be extended across the Berkshire West CCG patch for 2020/21, with the CCG
working closely with Macmillan, the Royal Berkshire NHS FT and Rushmoor Health Living.

For 2020/21, the CCG will also support any national cancer awareness campaigns, e.g. Stoptober, by
disseminating promotional information to GP Practices and members of the public. One of the key aims
of these campaigns is to increase screening in the local population.

33




9/

BW CCG DRAFT Operating Plan 2020/1 v13

Appendix 1 —BOB ICS Governance

BOB ICS Governance BOBI?-:‘:T:-E':':%?:::’““

Buckinghamshire Berkshire West [} )
CCG Governing CCG Governing .. | Partnership arrangementsat |
i3S Body Independent Chair 1| STP/ICS-levei to be determined :

i ~ 7

Oxfordshire CCG . ———————————————
e ! * Mest every 2 months, chaired by Independent Chair
I : Chair’s Group . Munbm‘ ~Chairsof providers and CCGs and
Ith
NHSE/I Regional Heslth & Wellbeing Boards

Directors

BT e et s 1L Sy
Board  paasiaaaaaain e — |

ICS Executive Lead

System Leaders Group

— i . E X
S {i Population Financial Programme : T
missioning i Growth 2 Provider Boards ]
= Board : across ‘ARC Oversight Group Management Board ¢E:
oG ! 8
e (O MiSSiONing S )
Board Remit Remit =
* Fi ind pll g, control and * Providing oversight =t systemn =
managament laval; recsiving assuranca Healthcare L]
* Develop pooled budgets from place/worksraam leval Trust L
acrosshashhandsocialcare *  Oversight of financial impact o
p atplace of ICS efficiency programmes Buckinghamshee
1. Acute Collaboration *  Develop omtionsfor the *  Responsibilityfor qualty Healthcare Trust
2. Serategic Planning, systemdesgn & management of a system azsurance
rasource allcation control total. *  Learning andshanng good Oxford Health
3. Workforce * Designand implamant the practics Foundation
4.  Copitsls Estates financial assuranca fi *  Designand implemeant Teust
Status = 5. Mental Hesith for the ICS linking tothe ICPs. assurance sndovarsight
( \ 6. Urgent & Emargency Care Membership framework Oxford University
U REE RS 7. Cancer *  System Dofs Membership Hospitals
8 *  Chaired bySTP Finance Lead SROs from workstreams Foundation Trust
3. Pravention &reduong Inequakties Chaired bySTP lsad

Royal Berkshire
Foundation Trust

LR

Still to be
| impiemented )

ICS Programme and Communications Team

Learning Infrastructure

34



Ll

0C0®

A Happier and

Healthier Berkshire
Reading West Berkshire Wokingham

Berkshire West
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Wokingham Borough Wellbeing Board
10t December 2020

v€ Wa)| epusby



The Programme Plan

Defining the current state  Reviewing strategic documents March — July
Determining population health need 2020
Stakeholder engagement and consultation

Prioritisation process Production of a long list of priorities August -
Prioritisation process: criteria to review the priorities September 2020
against to produce a shorter list

~
o

Public Engagement Planning for public engagement — task and finish group  October 2020 -
Consultation and engagement with the public to refine January 2021
final list of priorities

Production of Joint Health Production of draft Joint Health and Wellbeing strategy = January — March
and Wellbeing Strategy Publication of final Strategy with outcomes framework 2021



Progress so far

Aim

Progress so far

Evaluation of each of
the existing JHWB
Strategies

Mapping exercise of existing strategies

Desktop review of data to evidence impact (PHE Fingertips)

Local data and intelligence from Public Health teams and other LA teams
Review of delivery reports to HWBs

6.

Creating a long list of
potential priorities

Priorities discussion with Public Health teams, Adults services, children’s services, Place
directorate

Alignment with recovery groups

Data review to identify population need (PHE fingertips)

Small survey of “hard to reach” communities, vulnerable groups and ethnic diverse
communities

Engagement with Healthwatch and the Voluntary sector

Prioritisation process

Two workshops were held in August and a further two in September. These refined the list

of priorities using the following hurdles:

« System working and whether the potential priority can be addressed by health and social
care organisations working in partnership

« Would this priority reduce duplication, does it aid recovery from covid-19 and does it
align to the whole system’s vision

Public engagement

A Task and Finish group has co-produced plans for public engagement
This will happen from November 2020 to end of January 2021
The aim is to use the public engagement to refine the 11 potential priorities to the final 3-5

priorities




08

Interactive Roadmap for the Berkshire West Joint Health and OO0

Wellbeing Strategy A Happier and
Healthier Berkshire

Who is working together to produce the Berkshire West Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy: Reading West Berkshire Wokingham

Reading Borough Council

West Berkshire Council

Wokingham Borough Council

Berkshire West CCG

Healthwatch Reading, Healthwatch West Berkshire and Healthwatch Wokingham
Reading Voluntary Action

Volunteer Centre West Berkshire

Invelve Wokingham

Representatives from the Royal Berkshire Hospital Foundation Trust

Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust

Online Virtual
Workshops

Involving the

Evaluation bli
of current What are the o
strategies nee:df: of the A Io_ng_li_st of
population? priorities The final

strategy

The
decision

+ Summary of the what's missing

+ Long list of potential priorities
u twitter.com/HHBerks H facebook.com/AHappierandHealthierBerkshire + Step by step reduction in the list



Data identified Date/Timeline |Reading|West Berkshire |Wokingham Possible priority
A and E attendances in Under 5s (Crude rate per 1000) 2013/14-15/16 32 34.7 37.1 The Early Years
C24m - Newborn Hearing Screening - Coverage 2018/19 873.6 865.4 The Early Years
Stillbirth rate 2015-17 0.8 1.1 0.8 The Early Years
School readiness: percentage of children achieving the expected level in the phonics ~ [2018/19
screening check in Year 1 60.5 The Early Years
Proportion of children receving a 12-month review 2017/18 4.6 The Early Years
Population vaccination coverage - MMR for one dose (2 years old) 2018/19 32 37.1 Measles Elimination
School readiness: percentage of children with free school meal status achieving the 711 Educational attainment for
expected level in the phonics screening check in Year 1 2018/19 i children on Free School Meals
Educational attainment for
GCSE achieved 5A*-C including English & Maths with free school meal status 2014/15 64.8 60.9 children on Free School Meals
. . . 1025 105.1 Education and health outcomes
Children in need: Rate per 10,000 children aged <18 2017/18 for children in care
Education and health outcomes
Looked after children aged<5 Rate per 10,000 population aged<5 2017/18 93.8 94.5 for children in care
Hospi@ admissions caused by unintentional and deliberate injuries in young people 2018/19 4418 4972  |Mentalhealth and wellbeing of
(aged 15-24 years) i i children and young people
Reception: Prevalence of overweight (including obesity) 2018/19 Tackling childhood obesity
Year 6: Prevalence of overweight (including obesity) 2018/19 Tackling childhood obesity
Proportion of the population meeting the recommended '5-a-day' on a 'usual day’ 2018/19
(adults) 527 Tackling childhood obesity
16-17 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) or whose activity is not [2018 Not in Education, Employment or
known Training (NEET)
Adults with a learning disability who live in stable and appropriate accommodation 2018/19 Supporting vulnerable groups
First time entrants to the youth justice system 2018 Supporting vulnerable groups
Under 75 mortality rate from liver disease 2016-18 Long term conditions
Gap in the employment rate between those with a long-term health condition and the ~ [2018/19
overall employment rate Long term conditions
EO7b - Under 75 mortality rate from respiratory disease considered preventable 2016-2018 Long term conditions
C27 - Percentage reporting a long term Musculoskeletal (MSK) problem 2018/19 Long term conditions
Mortality rate from causes considered preventable 2016-18 Long term conditions
Statutory homelessness: rate per 1,000 housholds 2017/18 Homelessness
Long term claimants of Jobseekers Allowance 2018 Worklessness
Percentage of people aged 16-64 in employment 2018/19 Worklessness




Data identified Date/Timeline |Reading|West Berkshire |Wokingham Possible priority
Emergency hospital admissions for stroke 2013/14-17/18 3.5 3.8 3.4 Cardiovascular disease
Under 75 mortality rate from cardiovascular diseases 2016-18 5745.8 5872.2 [Cardiovascular disease
EO04b - Under 75 mortality rate from cardiovascular diseases considered preventable 2016-2018 64.1 65.9 Cardiovascular disease
C24e - Abdominal Aortic Aneurysm Screening - Coverage 2018/19 78.4 79.6 Cardiovascular disease
Incidence of prostate cancer (SIR/per 100) 2012-16 81.9 Cancer
Under 75 mortality rate from cancer 2016-18 64.7 62.3 Cancer
EO5b - Under 75 mortality rate from cancer considered preventable 2016-2018 4.2 6 Cancer
Percentage of adults walking for travel at least three days per week 2017/18 212.1 194.9 Physical activity
Percentage of physically inactive adults 2018/19 148.5 125.3 Physical activity
Social Isolation: percentage of adult social care users who have as much social contact 2018/19
as they would like (18+ yrs) 80 83 Social isolation
Social Isolation: percentage of adult carers who have as much social contact as they 2018/19 13.9 9.1
would like (18+ yrs) Social isolation
B09a - Sickness absence - the percentage of employees who had at least one day off in
the prlégious week 2016-2018 88.2 87.7 Staff health and wellbeing
Adults with substance misuse treatment need who successfully engage in community- 2018/19 Substance misuse and drug
based structured treatment following release from prison 88 102 related deaths
c18 - Smoking Prevalence in adults (18+) - current smokers (APS) 2018 449 494 Smoking cessation
Gap in the employment rate for those in contact with secondary mental health services 2018/19 15.5 11 Adult mental health and
and the overall employment rate wellbeing

-Adult mental health and

C28c - Self-reported wellbeing - people with a low happiness score 2018/19 91.4 wellbeing
E10 - Suicide rate 2016-2018 76.6 79.9 Suicide prevention
Percentage of adults (aged 18+) classified as overweight or obese 2018/19 0.2 1.4 Prevention
Under 18s conception rate/1000 2017 33.3 34.4  |sexual Health
Under 18s conceptions leading to abortion (%) 2018 14.7 18.3  [Sexual Health
Chlamydia detection rate/100,000 agef 15-24 <1900 1900 to <2300=2300 2018 Sexual health
STI testing rate (exc chlamydia aged <25)/100,000 2018 Sexual health
DO7 - HIV late diagnosis (%) 2016-2018 1.7 4.5 Sexual health




The Early years (1001 days)
Improving Dental care.
Adverse childhood experiences.

Mental health and wellbeing of
children and young people.

Education attainment of children on
free school meals.

Education and health outcomes for
children in care.

Tackling childhood obesity.
Measles elimination.
Safeguarding.

Not in Education, Employment or
Training (NEET).

Empowerment and self-care.
Supporting vulnerable groups
Health inequalities.
Worklessness.
Homelessness.
Sexual Health.

Substance misuse and drug
related deaths.

TB.
Smoking cessation.
Social isolation.

Adult mental health and wellbeing
suicide prevention.

Communitv resilience and

Supporting vulnerable people to achieve
and live healthier lives.

Supporting children to live healthier lives
(the first 1001 days).

Support specific groups to become
smoke free.

Reduce the harm and impact of alcohol
and drug misuse.

Support every employer to become
healthier workplaces.

Supporting our communities to look after
their own sexual health.

Support communities to be physically
active.

Supporting our older population by
reducing falls.

Taking a holistic approach to cancer
prevention and support for early
diagnosis.

Improving quality of life for people with
long term conditions.

Taking a whole system approach to
reducing childhood obesity.

Protecting our communities from
infectious disease.

Taking a trauma informed approach to
both prevent Adverse Childhood
experiences and reduce their impact.

Step by Step
reduction in the list of
potential priorities

Reduce differences in health
between different groups of
people.

Support vulnerable to people live
healthy lives.

Help families and children in early
years.

Reduce the harm caused by
addiction to substances (smoking,
alcohol or drugs).

Good health and wellbeing at
work.

Physically active communities.

Help households with significant
health needs.

Extra support for anyone who has
been affected by mental or
physical trauma in childhood.

Build strong, resilient and socially
connected communities.

Good mental health and wellbeing

Q1: Can this issue be addressed by health
and/or social care partners; Does it affect more

than one area across Berkshire West

Q2: Is this being delivered elsewhere? Would it

help our recovery from Covid-197



¥8

O

A Happier and
Healthier Berkshire

Reading

A Happier and Healthier Berkshire

Vision Goals
 For all children and young people to be helped to grow up well

* Where everyone is encouraged to look after their physical
health

* Where all residents are able to thrive in a community that
supports their mental health and wellbeing

* Where wellbeing at work is prioritised

* Where people live longer and healthier lives, no matter what
their background or economic circumstances are



O

: ... A;;althierand
JHWBS: The potential priorities Happier Berkshire

Reading

Reduce differences in health between different groups of people

Support vulnerable people to live healthy lives

Help families and young children in early years

Reduce the harm caused by addiction to substances (smoking, alcohol or drugs)
Good health and wellbeing at work

Physically active communities

Help households with significant health needs

Extra support for anyone who has been affected by mental or physical trauma in
childhood

Build strong, resilient and socially connected communities
Good mental health and wellbeing for all children and young people
Good mental health and wellbeing for all adults



98

O

A Happier and
Healthier Berkshire
Reading

Themes throughout the strategy

* Empowerment and self care
 Digital enablement

* Integration

* Prevention

e Recovery from Covid-19



A Happier and
Healthier Berkshire

Public engagement and consultation ™

What How When Working with
Engagement with hard to reach Focus groups August 2020 Community engagement
communities and vulnerable groups: Individual survey champions
as part of developing the long list of completion (community Voluntary sector organisations
priorities engagement champions CCG Engagement
Raise public awareness of the strategy | Information on public September ICP Engagement team
2 facing webpages October 2020 Voluntary sector
HealthWatch
Public engagement to refine the short | See next slide November — ICP Engagement team
list of priorities into a final list January 2021 LA comms teams

Town & Parish Councils
Community Support hubs
Healthwatch

Voluntary sector

LA engagement leads

Consultation on the final draft strategy | Consultation portals for March 2021 All involved
each LA




88

O

A Happier and
Healthier Berkshire

Reading

Plans for public engagement

* Online public survey: hosted by West Berkshire Council

 Facebook and twitter pages: sponsored social media posts to promote the
survey and public focus groups

« Generic inbox to receive comments
Call to action to Chairs of voluntary organisations

Engagement with children and young people: Young carers, children in
care, peer mentoring networks, youth councils (where available)

Healthwatch to support running focus groups aimed at specific groups
Focus groups as part of existing community groups and meetings

Virtual engagement sessions for staff at each local authority and the CCG
Deliberative event drawing together all that has been heard



68

What does the data tell What do professionals What are other
us about the population? think? organisations doing?

What do the public think?

Focus
groups

Existing
Online forums &

survey support
groups

3 Final Areas that will form the strategy




06

O

A Happier and
Healthier Berkshire
Reading

Hearing Wokingham voices

* Healthwatch focus groups (People with Learning disabilities, Carers)
* Children and young people: Children’s centres, Young Carers (Tuvida)
* Town and Parish Councils

* Call to action to chairs of voluntary organisations

* Engagement event with staff at Wokingham Borough Council (TBC)

* Faith groups; BME forum; Gypsy, Roma and Traveller community

* Incorporating what has already been heard from Wokingham
residents

e Children in care survey, SEND strategy, Leisure centre strategy survey, Carer
strategy survey



16

O

A Happier and
Healthier Berkshire

Reading

How can we retain a local flair?

* We will use public engagement to understand what is important for
residents in each of the three local authorities

* This will be incorporated with data identifying population needs

* Possible options for the final strategy:
* 3 shared overarching priorities but different areas of focus within them and
individual local action plans

3 priorities for Berkshire West with shared focus (although individual specific
action plans) but with an additional 1-2 priorities per local authority

* 3 shared overarching priorities: Shared objectives for each of them with
additional individual specific deliverables for each LA



6

O

A Happier and

C h al | en g eS Healthier Berkshire

Reading

 Limited capacity
* The impact of coronavirus working environment

* Public Engagement
* Public engagement has been challenging in the current environment

« We are working on ways to engage with those who are digitally excluded —
using community representatives

* Developing a ten year strategy during covid-19

« Plans to include a review milestone 1-2 years after implementation to ensure
that it is still fit for purpose



€6

O

A Happier and
Healthier Berkshire

Reading

Next steps

* Public engagement

« Continue to use data to understand the population need as we move Into
developing delivery plans to sit underneath the priorities

« Refine the priorities based on what is heard by the public

» The final priorities will be developed so they can sit across Berkshire West but also
retain a “local flair” for each local authority

« Consolidate the final strategy and public consultation for the final draft

» Feedback to those who supported the public engagement — informing of
the results and how they impacted the final strategy



This page is intentionally left blank



N
o
o
c
%
%,
€ Childre®
B e r kS h i re We St Reading | West Berkshire | Wokingham

s Safeguarding Children Partnership
West Berkshire, Wokingham and Reading

November 2020

¢ waj| epuaby



Background

Alan Wood was commissioned by the DfE to lead a review of the
effective of LSCBs on the outcomes for children. This review took
place between January and March 2016.

ol'he review concluded that most Safeguarding Children Board
arrangements had difficulty demonstrating their value in improving
outcomes for children.

Working Together 2018 guidance replaced LSCBs with flexible
equitable safeguarding partnership being designed by the Local
Authority, Police and Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs).



o oy
% §
: A/,‘, Q'b‘
€ Chilgre®
u r O Ca I S O ry Reading | West Berkshire | Wokingham

Wokingham, Reading and West Berks LSCB’s had operated as 3
separate Boards since 2004, but with a shared Independent Chair.

dMany discussions had taken place about the benefits of merging
the 3 LSCBs in order to:

= Maximise resources in terms of duplication of work and the
attendance to multiple Boards by some partner agencies

= Share themes and learning which are common to all areas

= Support and challenge each other on a wider footprint to
maximise outcomes for children

= Strengthen partnerships



Our new arrangements

* The 3 LSCB’s merged in July 2018

* The ‘new’ multi-agency partnership arrangements were agreed in
March 2019 — now known as the Berkshire West Safeguarding
Children Partnership (BWSCP)

« ®The new arrangements were published on 30t" March 2019 and
implemented on 30t June 2019.

* The new arrangements are led by the statutory partners who have
equitable responsibility — with commitment from the wider
partnership.

* The published arrangement document can be found here:

https://www.berkshirewestsafeguardingchildrenpartnership.org.uk/sc
p/about-the-scp/about-the-bwscp.



https://www.berkshirewestsafeguardingchildrenpartnership.org.uk/scp/about-the-scp/about-the-bwscp

What is different? é

e Thereis a new role of Independent Scrutineer as we no longer have an
Independent Chair

e Thereis no ‘Board’. The Statutory Safeguarding Partners meet as an Executive
Group 3 times per year but have contact in between the meetings to ensure any
@ignificant Berkshire West issues can be discussed and resolved. Multi-agency
partnership discussions for each locality will now take place at the Independent
Scrutiny and Impact Group (ISIG)

e There will be 2/3 Children’s Leaders Forums per year, these are the wider
partnership meetings to share learning and good practice and the experience of
children and practitioners across the Berkshire West partnership.

e There is an Education Safeguarding Engagement Group in each area to ensure
school leaders have a chance to directly feed into safeguarding discussions.

e The responsibility for safeguarding sits with all of us and not with a separate body
or Independent Chair.



e o
o "
2 o
(] 7]
[ ] S, \ f
7, <
€ Childre®
[ ] Reading | West Berkshire | Wokingham

e We still share key safeguarding responsibilities, such as Child
Protection Policy and procedures and the Child Death Review
process, across Berkshire.

e We can still “think local” within Wokingham based subgroups
and concentrate on those issues specific to our area. However
we are now able to share learning and good practice across
Berkshire West, as well as discuss themes and issues that are
wider than our local boarders.

e The partnership remains passionate about improving lives for

our local children, but with a partnership structure that we can
make work for us.



hire
&S W,
*? So

™ 7
tructure {
8 g
% >
% Chndre“Q
Reading | West Berkshire | Wokingham
-
Berkshire West Safeguarding Children Partnership Executive Group
.

¢

Operational Safeguarding Partners Group Berkshire West Safeguarding Children Leaders Forum

1
1
1
—
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
l ¢
¢
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
L
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
:4_
1
1
1

I PAN BERKSHIRE SUB GROUPS LOCAL SUB GROUPS BERKSHIRE WEST SUB GROUPS

] I 1
1 11 1
| 1 11 1
: | I :
e ~N\ : Reading West Berkshire Wokingham 11 1
I—; Child Death O . : Independent Independent Independent : : Case Review Group :
8 ' est l"e""'e"" 1 | Scrutiny & Impact Scrutiny & Impact Scrutiny & Impact | 11 |
> ane : Group Group Group 11 |
AN J 1 i 1
E : : i Learning & Development :
1 1
o i ¥ |
I . . . .

I Policy & Procedures 1 Reédlryg Child West Berk.shl.re .\Noklngham. i I
: 1 Exploitation Group Child Exploitation Child Exploitation : : Section 175 :
: \_ Yy, : Group Group 1 : 1
1 1
I : 1 1
1 ) 1 11 1
: 1 1 : Communications & Engagement | |
i Section 11 ! . . ] i
1 1 . . West Berkshire Wokingham 11 1
1 L ) : Reading Education £d . Ed . 11 I
I : Safeguarding ucation ucation i i
: 1 Eneagement Grou Safeguarding Safeguarding 1 : Child Death Review Panel 1
: 4 N\ : gag P Engagement Group Engagement Group : : :
I 1 1
| Child Exploitation | - i
1 1 11 Health Safeguarding Committee 1
1 11 1
1\ J Reading Education West Berkshire Wokingham 1 I
| | Designated Education Education - i
o L L L T : Safeguarding DESignated Designated : L bt

1 Leads Safeguarding Leads Safeguarding Leads :

I i

L 1




Review after Year 1

There are many very positive elements of the new arrangements:

* There has been excellent attendance and support from a wide range
of partners at all sub groups, including 3rd sector, with a rich and
sophisticated level of skill and knowledge, which comes together to

_promote challenge in a safe way
o

» "Willingness to think differently has been a strength, even when
partners have felt anxious deviating from the old familiar format

* The statutory partners are cohesive in their approach to making the
arrangements work and driving forward change to improve
outcomes for children

* The Partnership Support Team has emerged as a real strength in
helping to steer the partnership on its new journey and supporting
the core business held in the subgroup structure



hir
%e‘\ks : we.r

*
Z,

Review after Year 1: Challenge and @
Change

2 <
€ Childre®

* Our partnership is committed to scrutinizing our
effectiveness and changing the arrangements if

improvements are required. The year one review led to
_the following changes:

&° An Operational Leaders Group has been established at a

Berkshire West level to drive forward progress in cross cutting
themes. This group can add the context of how services work

together and to facilitate planning of the work required by the
partnership and another level of scrutiny and impact

* The Independent Scrutiny function has been revised to provide
a more flexible approach by a colleague who understands the
local dynamics, whilst still allowing us to commission external
scrutiny to demonstrate complete impartiality on specific
pieces of work, e.g. large multi-agency audits, peer review.



hire
&S W,
*? o

™~
2]
]
-

Review after Year 1: Key Achievements="

P4
2
=

In our first year there are some significant achievements. This
includes:

e A clear and effective Rapid Review process that provides detailed
and comprehensive learning for cases at an early stage, which has
Heen recognised by the national Child Safeguarding Practice Review
Panel as best practice.

e A new website for Berkshire West Safeguarding Children Partnership
that brings together all the key information from the previous LSCB
websites and makes the location of information for practitioners
and families clearer and easier to access.

e A committed Strategic Partnership ensured the best plans were in
place to identify and respond to risk to help protect vulnerable
children and support practitioners during the Covid-19 pandemic.



hire
&S W,
*? o

~ =
v o
2 ]

Review after Year 1: Key Achievements="

e The locally devised and produced ‘Be Brave — Speak up’ online
campaign which reached 81,824 (with a total number of

impressions being 522,445 being watched an average 6.3 times)
and shared 207 times on Facebook.

_
o @ free to access online Universal Safeguarding course has been
created locally and made available on the BWSCP website for all

our partners to access — this had been particularly welcomed by
our Education community.

e Local learning and key information from 5 Serious Case Reviews
was delivered to 167 practitioners as an opportunity to participate
in multi-agency safeguarding discussions.



hir
Qae‘\ks . we.r

™N
o;
..,
un

Review after Year 1: Key Achievements™==

*
Z,

o
£
5

e A review of Threshold and Levels of Need documentation across
Wokingham, West Berkshire and Reading has led to the revision
and production of new aligned Threshold Guidance in each area.
There is still a Wokingham document, reflecting local processes,
but the three new documents use similar language and have a
similar approach, look and feel. This is a huge step forward in
supporting all our practitioners to understand when and how to
make a referral to our Children’s Services. This has just been
agreed and will be [aunched soon.

=
o
(@)

Further information about our first year can be found here, in our
annual report:

https://www.berkshirewestsafeguardingchildrenpartnership.org.uk/

sciia bout-the—sciiberkshire—west—annuaI—reiorts



https://www.berkshirewestsafeguardingchildrenpartnership.org.uk/scp/about-the-scp/berkshire-west-annual-reports

Contact Details:

Berkshire West Safeguarding Children Partnership Website
https://www.berkshirewestsafeguardingchildrenpartnership.org.uk

Follow us on Facebook and Twitter
Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/BWSafeguardingChildrenPartnership/
Twitter: https://twitter.com/BWSCP1

LOT

The partnership support team:

e Esther Blake — Strategic Partnership Manager, Brighter Futures for Children
e Sherrie Newell — Operational Partnership Manager, Wokingham Council

* Donna Gray — Senior Coordinator, Brighter Futures for Children

* Vacant — Coordinator

BWSCP@brighterfuturesforchildren.org or BWSCP@wokingham.gov.uk



https://www.berkshirewestsafeguardingchildrenpartnership.org.uk/
https://www.facebook.com/BWSafeguardngChildrenPartnership/
https://twitter.com/BWSCP1
mailto:BWSCP@brighterfuturesforchildren.org
mailto:BWSCP@wokingham.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 36.

Working
together for

health and :
wellbeing P u b I IC

Health
for Berkshire

Looking Forward to Recovery:
10 things to consider for
COVID-19 recovery planning
in Berkshire

Annual Public Health
Report 2020




Contents

Foreword
Acknowledgements
Executive Summary
Introduction

Section A - Setting the scene
1. Inequalities

Section B - Impact on communities
Employment

Children and Young People
Safeguarding

Mental Health

Environmental Impact

L R A

Section C - What will help?

7. Engaging with communities
8. Resilience and social cohesion

Section D - How will we know it’s working?
9. Building on assets and reshaping society

10.  Measuring progress

110

13
18
24
30
36

42
46

52
58

S]uUauUo)



Foreword

This year’s Annual Public Health Report had to be about
COVID-19. You just can’'t ignore this public health
emergency and the reverberations it has caused in all
areas of our lives.

COVID-19 has shone a light on our society - bringing
inequalities into sharp relief and teaching us that there
really are different ways to live, learn, work and play.

As we put systems in place to better prevent and treat
the disease, we are starting to look to the future. We
can see the opportunity to rebuild better and make sure
our response and recovery closes the gaps between
communities, rather than increases them.

COVID-19 has had a direct and devastating impact on
some people; we probably all know someone who has
lost a loved one or who has been ill themselves. But the
longer term impact on the way we all live and work, our
towns and villages, our businesses and our economy
are only just becoming apparent.

For COVID-19, unlike other emergencies, the boundary
between response and recovery is blurred. The
response is going to take some time, and how we
respond now will influence how well we as a society and
community recover and thrive in the future.

This report is intended to inform our conversations and
debates about recovery from COVID-19. Not just what
we do but how we do it. To help us think through how
we can tackle unfair inequalities, how we can take the
disruption COVID-19 has caused and how we learn the
lessons it has taught us. So we need to recover better
for a renewed, more inclusive, healthy and prosperous
Berkshire.

Tessa Lindfield MSc FFPH
Strategic Director of Public Health for Berkshire

111

pJIOM3104



Acknowledgements

Production of this report has been a team effort,

| owe a big thank you to the following people, who
conducted the research, drafted the content and
designed the report.

Lynne Brett
Andrew Brown (Frimley Library)
Liz Brutus

Becky Campbell
Sam Claridge
Matthew Green
Holly Jenkins
Benjamin Jones
Kim McCall
Rebecca Muir
Meradin Peachey
Paul Trinder

We are also grateful for the work across the South
East of England coordinated by Sallie Bacon on
behalf of Public Health England on the evidence
base for recovery post COVID-19.

112

>
3)
)
S
o
2
®
Q
Q
)
3
@
S
=
®




Executive Summary

The Annual Public Health report this year suggests 10 areas to consider in our
response to and recovery from COVID-19.

Setting the scene:

Key message

Why is this important?

Inequalities

COVID-19 has shone a fresh
light on existing health
inequalities.

As it progresses, it is likely
these health inequalities will
widen further.

Impact on communities:

Key message

Emerging evidence has found
some groups are at greater
risk of being infected with and
being harmed by COVID-19.

Why is this important?

Employment

There are early signs that the
harmful impact will be
greater on some sectors
than others, including those
that employ some of the
lowest paid workers.

Employment is a key determinant
of health. By July 2020, the number
of employees in the UK on

payrolls was down around

730,000 compared, with

March 2020.

Children and Young

Children and young people
may be the hardest hit by

More time at home with family
may be a positive experience for

People social distancing and other many, but for others it may be a
control measures for difficult time involving loneliness,
COVID-19. bereavement, financial hardship,
neglect or abuse.
Safeg uarding Our recovery from the Evidence from previous disasters,

COVID-19 lockdown
restrictions will need to
ensure that safeguards
continue to be put in place
to identify, support and
protect victims of abuse.

all indicate that heightened
levels of domestic abuse
continue long after the event.

113

m
X
o
0
c
=
<
)
92
c
3
3
)
q
<




Mental Health

There were clear links
between poor mental health
and health inequalities
before the onset of the
COVID-19 pandemic and
inequalities seem likely to
widen further in its wake.

There’s evidence to indicate the
rate of mental health conditions
will increase as a result of both
the pandemic itself and the
measures put in place to control
the spread of the virus.

Environmental Impact

What will help?

Engaging Communities

A 17% fall in CO2 emissions
during April 2020 provides
proof-of-concept that
pollution levels are
responsive to policy, creating
an incentive for making the
environmental impact a core
focus of future strategies.

Key message

Those on the lowest incomes
are less likely to feel able to
exercise control over their
futures by engaging with
national and local political
systems.

Pollution is linked to lower life
expectancy, particularly through
its effects on cardiovascular and
respiratory health and lung
cancer.

Why is this important?

Engagement with communities
affected by SARS and Ebola
pandemics, by asking what
matters most to them, saw
successful responses to the

changing needs of the population.

Resilience and
Social Cohesion

Community resilience,
including strong social
cohesion and social capital,
is linked with faster and more
effective recovery.

How will we know it’s working?

Building on Assets and
Reshaping Society

Key message

We plan to introduce an
ambitious, broad-based,
transformational program
that can seize the positives
from this crisis to build a
healthier, stronger and more
equal Berkshire.

Socially cohesive communities
tend to feel a sense of belonging
and community and either share
values or a tolerance for one
another’s differences.

Why is this important?

Establishing a new “normal” is the
long-term goal for recovery from
COVID-19 and it is crucial that
we re-build a fairer, safer and
stronger community.

Measuring Progress

Learning from other disasters
shows that the measurement
of recovery needs to be
defined, owned and shared
by the community.

114

The measurement of our recovery
from COVID-19 will be vital to
ensure that we are going in the
right direction — towards a
healthier, fairer and sustainable
society.

m
X
®
()
c
=2
<
(1]
92
c
3
3
)
=
<




Introduction

In early 2020, life for the people of Berkshire
changed. The COVID-19 pandemic and

the lockdown measures put in place to
control the spread of the virus changed

our lives in unforeseen ways. We have
mounted an unprecedented response to
COVID-19 that will continue for some time.
This report identifies strategies that we can
use to support our long-term recovery in
Berkshire. We have an opportunity to build
on our response to COVID-19 to emerge
from the pandemic healthier, fairer and more
sustainable.

We have identified ten key topics to consider
for Berkshire’s recovery. These topics have
been selected through learning from other
recovery efforts in environmental disasters,
severe or traumatic events and from evidence
emerging from the current pandemic. These
take us through three key themes — 1) impact
on communities, 2) strategies that will help
and 3) how we might know whether recovery
is working.

The way that we respond now, will determine
how well we emerge and recover from
COVID-19 as individuals, families and
communities.

115

=]
=3
=
o
Q
=
(2]
=
o
=)




Inequalities

saljenbauy

What are health inequalities?

Health inequalities refer to unfair differences
in people’s health and wellbeing that result
from differences in the everyday conditions
in which they are born, grow, live, work and
age (Marmot, 2010). These determinants
of health include education, housing,
employment and access to healthcare
services and affordable food, as illustrated

in the diagram on page 9. Health inequalities
are preventable and unjust, resulting in
millions of people experiencing poorer health
and shorter lives.

“COVID-19 has shone a fresh
light on the health inequalities
that already existed. As it
progresses, it is likely these

health inequalities will widen
further.”

(EEARTIRVERRUNLARAUACVAUUIRRR R,
1l



http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/fair-society-healthy-lives-the-marmot-review

Social determinants of health

cu\tural and

((\\
(\O

Agriculture
and food
production

Living and

0Ca working
Y Work conditions 9
'\o environment Unemployment ol
7

Age, sex &
hereditary
factors

l/-o
)
%

(@)
2
o.
[l
Health care o
services a

Housing

Dahlgren and Whitehead, 1991

Why is this important in recovery after COVID-19?

Health and wellbeing are important to
recovery in Berkshire. The impacts of
COVID-19 will be experienced by young
and old in different ways in the immediate
and longer term, as set out in the table

on page 10, and those who are already
disadvantaged may be the most vulnerable
to its effects.

Some groups appear to be at greater risk of
being infected by and dying from COVID-19
(PHE, 2020)

These include:

e QOlder people

e Men

e People living in deprived neighbourhoods

e People from Black, Asian and minority
ethnic (BAME) groups

® People working in keyworker roles, such
as caring and nursing professionals, taxi
drivers, security guards
Care home residents
People with certain long-term conditions
such as hypertension and diabetes.

COVID-19 has shone a fresh light on the
health inequalities that already existed.
As it progresses, it is likely these health
inequalities will widen further.

=]
®
Qo
c
=
=
o
)



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-review-of-disparities-in-risks-and-outcomes
https://www.iffs.se/media/1326/20080109110739filmZ8UVQv2wQFShMRF6cuT.pdf

Impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic across the lifecourse

./

‘@

Perinatal
mental health
oo

Perinatal =
mental health Breastfeeding
support
O,
Immunisation
uptake

mmnat.alm

Non-accidental
injuries

Unplanned
pregnancies

Admissions for
gastrointestinal and
respiratory infections

Fopulation
vaccination
coverage reduced
and outbreaks

ing/
alcohol!

substance
misuse)

:-1":) Higher risk of poor
Low mental, physical
birthweight health, social
Poorattachment 2 cducational
Admissions for
deliborata’
intentional harm
()
—

.|
m'ﬁi

hdsivood cdey

‘Hidden® Increased
safequarding negative haalth
issues behaviours
tal Deferred sexual
and mental health health services
checks not
comipleted Low mood and
High anxiety
Adverse
childhood
experiences
Adverse Increased
childhood demand for
experiences mental health
services
© @
Unwanted
pregnancies,
5TI diagnoses

I I I R I

& Q)]
School Aleohol and
readiness substance
misuse admissions
under 18
)
Obese children

Admissians for
self-harm

l s
vEfH 0N &)

Increased negative health behaviours (e.g. substance misuse, alcehol, smoking, Social isolation
gambling, inactivity) amongst some sections of society and lonefiness
(% -
'\‘"D Limited
Paused commissioned [ifestyle services, deferred cancer screening/ physical activity

NS health checks, reduced health seeking for urgent issues,

‘hidden’ safeguarding issues
Economic uncertainty

Maw anxiety and worsening existing mental iliness, PTSD for carars!

Fewer recovering from substance misuse , increased BBV infections,

Cancer screening coverage (breast, cervical, bowel) and late presentation

Increased

health workers and farmilies

B S S EE S SN SRR E S BSOS NS SRS B R R R R A SR RS E RS S SR RS S E S S SRS SR E SR EE SRR EE s

C (E
S ® ®
Dernentia
Its smoking, adults overweight/obese diagnosis

® ®

Injuries due to falls

demand for grief and b 11 services, employmen @
training support, claiming out of work benefits Fuel poverty
People with high arxiety
Increased damand for mental health sarvices n;nr;r;{'l;e:nﬁ
@ mortality
Under 75 mortality frem cardiovascular and liver
disease and cancer
p
@

Worsening social inequalities

Suicide

@ West Bf;ﬁk:}lgigq

West Berkshire Council, 2020

118

=]
®
Qo
c
=
=
®
)



https://www.yhphnetwork.co.uk/links-and-resources/health-wellbeing-support-as-part-of-the-covid-19-response/health-inequalities-yh-covid-19-response/work-outside-yh/

Why is this important in Berkshire?

Inequalities are evident across our county Rates of premature mortality (people dying
while many people in Berkshire live in areas when they are 75 years old or younger) are
among the most affluent in England, there higher than the England average in Slough
are also areas of high deprivation (Ministry and Reading, but lower than average

of Housing, Community and Local elsewhere in Berkshire.

Government, 2019). There is an association
between deprivation and poorer health and

”b n Local Authority Under 75 mortality
we elng' rate per 100,000
In Berkshire... Bracknell Forest - 274
Sileeetiton of population
are aged 7?) and over (] . 28,000 West Berkshire - 262
(ONS, 2020) live in neighbourhoods
sHE* that are amongst the
II most deprived in England Windsor & Maidenhead - 268
Wokingham - 241
Ministry of Housing, Community and Local _ 550
Government, 2019 Engene
65.5% (PHE, Mortality Profile)

Differences in health outcomes between
local authority areas tell us something about

27.3% of the Berkshire the experiences of residents, but they can
population are from BAME obscure differences that exist between
Slough groups (Census, 2011) neighbourhoods and streets within local
- 65.5% in Slough and authority areas. Residents of the most
Berkshire 34.7% 34.7% in Reading affluent areas of each local authority can
spend between 7 and 13 years longer
in good health than those in the most
deprived neighbourhoods in the same local
Reading authority (PHE, Public Health Outcomes
Census, 2011 Framework)

People residing in Wokingham live an
average of three years longer than people
who live in Slough and Reading, and one
year longer than people living in West
Berkshire, Windsor and Maidenhead and
Bracknell Forest. They spend around 12
years in better health than people living in
Slough (PHE, via Berkshire Observatory).

119

=]
®
Qo
c
=
=
o
)



https://www.yhphnetwork.co.uk/links-and-resources/health-wellbeing-support-as-part-of-the-covid-19-response/health-inequalities-yh-covid-19-response/work-outside-yh/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
https://berkshireobservatory.co.uk/data-catalog-explorer/
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/mortality-profile/data#page/0/gid/1938133009/pat/6/par/E12000008/ati/202/are/E06000038/cid/4/page-options/ovw-do-0
https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/2011census/2011censusdata
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019

What has worked elsewhere?

In his review of health inequalities, Michael
Marmot (2010) recommended that action to
reduce health inequalities should start before
birth and continue through to old age. He
made recommendations across six domains
to help address inequalities:

e give every child the best start in life

e enable all children, young people and
adults to maximise their capabilities and
have control over their lives

e create fair employment and good work for
all

e ensure a healthy standard of living for all

e create and develop healthy and
sustainable places and communities

e strengthen the role and impact of ill health
prevention.

The NHS Long Term Plan outlined a range
of key strategies and interventions aimed at

tackling health inequalities (NHS, 2019). Locall

examples of addressing health inequalities
include:

Promoting good quality jobs

Reducing social isolation

Improving health literacy

Reducing variation in access to or quality

of health services

e Engaging local staff in national and local
healthcare interventions

e Engaging communities in service design

and redesign.

(PHE, 2020, NHS England, 2020)

Consideration of the impact on inequalities
of decisions taken to drive recovery will be
crucial. We must adapt our decisions and
programmes to close the gaps between
communities and not widen them further.

How can we measure this?

120

The Indices of Multiple Deprivation
(2019) use measures across seven
domains to provide a relative deprivation
score for small neighbourhood areas,
helping to identify the most deprived

Public Health England (PHE)’s Fingertips
data tools provide access to a range

of data on inequalities and wider
determinants of health for local authority
or CCG populations to examine outcomes
and inputs across inequalities groups

Data tools developed by PHE in
collaboration with the Local Government
Association (LGA) and the Association of
Directors of Public Health bring together
indicators that help to determine which
groups in local areas may be most at risk.

=]
@
Qo
c
=
=3
®
7]



http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/fair-society-healthy-lives-the-marmot-review
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk
https://publichealthmatters.blog.gov.uk/2015/09/16/addressing-health-inequalities-at-local-level/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/about/equality/equality-hub/resources/practice-examples/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/833959/IoD2019_Infographic.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/833959/IoD2019_Infographic.pdf
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/COVID-19%20Data%20tools%20to%20support%20local%20areas_0.pdf

~ Impact on communities
Employment

juswiojdwzg

Why is this important in recovery from COVID-19?

The measures that have been introduced to
reduce the spread of COVID-19 will continue
to affect our national and local economies
for many years to come. Loss of jobs and
reduction of household income seem likely to
intensify existing inequalities in income and
wealth distribution between communities.

More than nine and a half million jobs in the
UK had been furloughed and more than two
and a half million claims had been made to
the self-employed income support scheme
in August 2020 (HM revenue and customs,
August 2020). Despite these measures, by
July 2020 the number of employees in the
UK on payrolls was down around 730,000
compared with March 2020 (ONS, August

“There are early signs that the
harmful impact will be greater on
some sectors than
others, including those that
employ some of the lowest paid
workers.”

2020). These figures include cuts by some

of the UK’s largest employers, and further
redundancies and closures of businesses are
predicted.

Ways of working have changed for those
continuing to work, with thousands working
entirely from home. In most cases, the
change has been embraced by employees,
with most wishing to continue to work at home
in the longer term. The benefits of increased
flexibility of homeworking (CIPD, 2018) have
been particularly valuable as some share
space with other adults and other aspects of
family life, including school work and care for
relatives (IFS, 2020, IES, 2020).



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-job-retention-scheme-statistics-august-2020/coronavirus-job-retention-scheme-statistics-august-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-job-retention-scheme-statistics-august-2020/coronavirus-job-retention-scheme-statistics-august-2020
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/bulletins/uklabourmarket/august2020
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/bulletins/uklabourmarket/august2020
https://www.cipd.co.uk/Images/flexible-working-business-case_tcm18-52768.pdf
https://www.employment-studies.co.uk/sites/default/files/resources/summarypdfs/IES%20Homeworker%20Wellbeing%20Survey%20Headlines%20-%20Interim%20Findings.pdf

Why is this important for minimising inequalities?

There are early signs that the harmful
impact will be greater on some sectors
than others, including those that employ
some of the lowest paid workers. Young
people will also be disproportionately
affected, with businesses focusing

on survival rather than training new
employees.

The type of occupation is behind some
of the starkest differences that have
emerged during the pandemic. Women
and people in BAME groups were found
to be more likely to be employed in jobs
that bring them into frequent contact with
people and more likely to be employed in
keyworker jobs and in roles that involve
frequent contact with others (PHE, 2020,

PHE, 2020a). Women and young people
were also more likely to be furloughed
and are more likely to face financial
difficulties as recovery progresses
(Women’s Budget Group, 2020, IFS,
2020, IFS 2020a).

In the lowest earning 10% of employees,
80% are employed in a sector that was
shut down or are not able to work from
home, compared to 25% in the highest
earning 10% (IFS) - (*Note this excludes
key workers).

Sectors with highest number of jobs furloughed (July 2020)

Employment
Value of
Employment Eligible Take-up claims made
Sector furloughed employments rate (Emillion)
Agriculture, foresty & fishing 36,600 180,500 20% 96
Mining, Quarrying & utilities 14,800 52,400 28% 77
Manufacturing 1,021,500 2,436,200 42% 3,840
Energy Production 20,800 132,800 16% 85
Waste and Recycling 43,700 175,100 25% 168
Construction 769,300 1,281,800 60% 2,931
Wholesale and retail; repair of motor vehicles 1,906,100 4,525,800 42% 6,071
Transport & storage (inc postal) 424,100 1,321,100 32% 1,680
Accommodation & food services 1,693,600 2,191,400 77% 4,773
Information & communication 227,500 1,244,800 18% 843
Finance & Insurance 76,800 1,105,000 7% 276
Property 157,800 432,200 37% 543
Professional, scientific & technical 632,900 2,208,900 29% 2,203
Business administration and support services 890,500 2,759,300 32% 2,806
Public administration & defence 20,400 1,351,700 2% 65
Education 341,700 3,341,900 10% 864
Health 423,200 4,092,900 10% 1,065
Arts, entertainment, recreation & other services 474,300 675,000 70% 1,339
Trade union, religious, political and repair 315,000 573,800 55% 893
Domestic employers 10,100 129,800 8% 30
Unknown and other 101,300 140,800 * 239
Total 9,601,700 30,353,200 32% 30,886

HM Revenue and Customs, August 2020

122

m
3
°
o
<
3
(1)
=
=



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908434/Disparities_in_the_risk_and_outcomes_of_COVID_August_2020_update.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/892376/COVID_stakeholder_engagement_synthesis_beyond_the_data.pdf
https://wbg.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Covid-19-report-Exec-Sum.pdf
https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/BN290-Mothers-and-fathers-balancing-work-and-life-under-lockdown.pdf
https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/BN290-Mothers-and-fathers-balancing-work-and-life-under-lockdown.pdf
https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/Covid-19-and-inequalities-IFS.pdf
https://www.ifs.org.uk/publications/14879
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-job-retention-scheme-statistics-august-2020/coronavirus-job-retention-scheme-statistics-august-2020

Why is this important in Berkshire?

Local Authority Number of Furloughed Jobs (as of July 2020)

m
3
=1
o
<
3
®
=
—

S 19,200

Bracknell Forest

Reading 26,300
Windsor &

Maidenhead 21,700

Slough 26,400
Wokingham [ 21,700

West Berkshire 22,600
Berkshire Total L 137,900

Local Authority Rate of furlough per 1,000 working age population

Bracknell Forest 358
Reading 295
Royal Borough of

Windsor and 279
Maidenhead

Slough 305
Wokingham 265

West Berkshire 256

Berkshire Total 291

Source (2011 census and HM Revenue and Customs, August 2020)

123



https://berkshireobservatory.co.uk/data-catalog-explorer/indicator/I1388?geoId=G3&view=metadata

HM Revenue link: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-job-retention-scheme-statistics-august-2020/coronavirus-job-retention-scheme-statistics-august-2020

Rate of take up for the furlough scheme is
highest in Slough and The Royal Borough

of Windsor and Maidenhead, (34% and

30% respectively, compared to 29% for all
Berkshire and 32% in England).

This may reflect the proportion of residents
employed in transport, hospitality and tourism,
especially in the vicinity of London Heathrow
airport. National patterns of furlough in each
sector are reflected in Berkshire and those
who are already most vulnerable are most
likely to be affected by job losses and financial
hardship.

215%

140%

increase on average across

the UK (Thames Valley Berkshire

Local Enterprise Partnership, Jul
across Berkshire compared with 2020) P P 4

May 2019

increase in those
claiming unemployment

%

ICT/digital comprises 14.3% employment in
Berkshire with a total of 34.2% in business services.
These industries are more resilient to the impact

of COVID-19 and more likely to grow in the future

(Thames Valley Berkshire Local Enterprise
Partnership, July 2020).

124

1,120 (6.0%)

950(5.2%)

2019 2020

Increase in number of 16-17 year olds
in Berkshire who are not in education,
employment or training (NEET)
(compared to 5.5% in England in 2020).

(Department for Education, via
Berkshire Observatory).

Compared to the UK average, 16 to
25 year olds make up a greater E
proportion of the workforce in
Berkshire. (Annual Population

survey, via Berkshire Observatory).

Berkshire also has a lower provision of

apprenticeships than the national average

which may compound the challenges for
young people who have not opted to
pursue higher education.

(Department for Education, 2020).

m
3
§=1
o
<
3
(1)
=)
=



https://www.tvbintelligence.co.uk/
https://www.tvbintelligence.co.uk/
https://www.tvbintelligence.co.uk/
https://www.tvbintelligence.co.uk/
https://www.tvbintelligence.co.uk/
https://berkshireobservatory.co.uk/data-catalog-explorer/indicator/I32793?geoId=G64&tableType=standard&view=metadata
https://berkshireobservatory.co.uk/data-catalog-explorer/indicator/I32793?geoId=G64&tableType=standard&view=metadata

What has worked elsewhere?

1. Training and education that meets
demands of local employers, by
developing and utilising local partnerships,
may help to maximise employment levels
locally. The Sheffield City Region City
Deal and Greater Manchester Working
Well pilot, which offered payments-by-
results for outcomes linked to the local
jobs market, involved local employers
in the development of apprenticeship
frameworks (UKCES, 2015). Systems
such as these aim to anticipate the skills
that are likely to be needed in the local
labour market and incentivise providers
to support people into sustainable work.
University Technical Colleges (UTCs) are
designed to provide better partnerships
between education and local employers.
An evaluation published in 2019 (NFER)
included recommendations to strengthen
links between UTC staff and employers
and deepen understanding of employment
markets.

2. Improving basic skills and quality
of work — High quality work (jobs that
are paid fairly, allow a healthy work-life
balance, provide supportive working
relationships and give employees the
opportunity to make choices about their
work (CIPD)) is more valuable to the local
economy than low quality work (Joseph
Rowntree Foundation, 2020). Targeting
key employers to improve the quality of
the jobs they provide may help to increase
local productivity.

3. Green economic recovery measures
A survey of financial organisations and
experts recommend ensuring economic
recovery measures are designed to
support environmental and climate goals
and capitalise on behaviour changes
already seen during the lockdown period.
Green fiscal projects, such as insulation
retrofits and clean energy infrastructure
in existing council stock, are predicted
to stimulate strong economic activity
compared to initial investment (SSEE,
2020).

125

How can we measure this?

Statistical information about the proportion
of working age adults in employment and
the numbers of people claiming benefits
in the local authority areas in Berkshire
provide information about the effects of
the economic downturn and recovery

on employment. PHE provides statistical
information on work and the labour market
in its Fingertips data tool.

m
3
§=J
o
<
3
(1)
=
=

Wider measures about income and
deprivation, such as the Indices of
Multiple Deprivation (IMD), help to
understand effects of unemployment and
low paid work and patterns throughout
Berkshire and its local authority areas.

The number and rate of young people
not in education, employment or
training provides an indication of whether
young people are facing additional
barriers to employment.



https://www.centreforcities.org/reader/city-deals-and-skills/
https://www.raeng.org.uk/publications/reports/evaluation-of-university-technical-colleges-final
https://www.cipd.co.uk/knowledge/work/trends/goodwork#40068
https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/levelling-economy-we-cant-afford-not
https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/levelling-economy-we-cant-afford-not
https://www.smithschool.ox.ac.uk/publications/wpapers/workingpaper20-02.pdf
https://www.smithschool.ox.ac.uk/publications/wpapers/workingpaper20-02.pdf
http://•	Statistical information about the proportion of working age adults in employment and the numbers of people claiming benefits in the local authority areas in Berkshire provide information about the effects of the economic downturn and recovery on employment. PHE provides statistical information on work and the labour market in its Fingertips data tool. 
•	Wider measures about income and deprivation, such as the Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) help to understand effects of unemployment and low paid work and patterns throughout Berkshire and its local authority areas. 
•	The number and rate of young people not in education, employment or training provides an indication of whether young people are facing additional barriers to employment.

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/participation-in-education-training-and-employment-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/participation-in-education-training-and-employment-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/participation-in-education-training-and-employment-2019

Children and young people

Why is this important in recovery from COVID-19?

Emerging evidence suggests that children
and young people will be the hardest hit by
social distancing and lockdown measures, so
a focus on their recovery is vital to ensure that
this does not negatively impact their future
(Health and Equity in Recovery Working
Group 2020).

9|doad BunoA pue uaipjiyd

For some children, the opportunity to spend
more time at home with their family will have
been a positive experience; but for others it
will have been a difficult time that could have
involved loneliness, bereavement, financial
hardship, neglect and abuse. This will be
particularly true for children and young
people whose home was already not a safe
place.

“Children and young
people will be the hardest
hit by social distancing and
lockdown measures.”



https://www.ljmu.ac.uk/~/media/phi-reports/2020-07-direct-and-indirect-impacts-of-covid19-on-health-and-wellbeing.pdf
https://www.ljmu.ac.uk/~/media/phi-reports/2020-07-direct-and-indirect-impacts-of-covid19-on-health-and-wellbeing.pdf

Impact by age group

Babies and

early years (under 5 years)

Less support for new parents

and babies

Reduced uptake of childhood
immunisations - MMR vaccinations
reduced by 20%

60% of families considered cancelling
or postponing immunisations

Limited access to early years settings
during lockdown - 75% reduction in
attendance at nurseries, childminders,
preschools and reception classes.

Saxena in BMJ 2020,
Department for Education

Young People (16 to 24 years)

More likely to have lost their job,

been furloughed or had hours reduced
Uncertainty and anxiety linked to GCSE

and A-level examinations

Higher levels of boredom, loneliness and
frustration than in other age groups

Impact on relationships - 35% concerned

about the impact of lockdown on their relationships
Changes limited access to face-to-face sexual
health services

IPSOS MORI 2020, ONS 2020,
BASHH 2020

School children (5 to 16 years)

Over 95% of school children did not
attend school during lockdown
Learning - Nearly 30% of parents did
not feel that their children were
continuing to learn through
homeschooling

Wellbeing - 42% of parents said
homeschooling had a negative effect
on their child’s wellbeing.

Department for Education,
ONS 2020

7

Children of all ages

Restricted access to outdoor space

- 20% of households with children do not have
access to a garden

36% of parents felt that their child’s physical activity
levels had reduced

Reduced contact with health services

— Children’s visits to A&E fell by over 90%.

Fewer opportunities to identify risks — less contact
with Health Visitors and health care services, schools
and other agencies may increase risk to vulnerable
children.

Natural England, Sport England,
PHE 2020

127

(@)
=
[
=
(1]
=]
)
=
o
<
o
c
=
«Q
©
®
(@)
=
(1]



https://analytics.phe.gov.uk/apps/covid-19-indirect-effects/
https://analytics.phe.gov.uk/apps/covid-19-indirect-effects/
https://analytics.phe.gov.uk/apps/covid-19-indirect-effects/

Why is this important for minimising inequalities?

Lockdown measures have restricted
availability of support for the most
vulnerable children and young people,
exacerbating and intensifying existing
inequalities.

20 |

Vulnerable children — Many of the
usual mechanisms for identifying

and supporting children at risk,
including schools, were not fully in
place for most during lockdown (The
Children’s Commissioner 2020,
Department of Education 2020).
The full impact of the lockdown on
vulnerable children may therefore not
be fully known for some time.
Disadvantaged children - School
closures could lead to an increase

in the gap in attainment between
disadvantaged children and their
peers (Education Endowment Fund
2020). 16% of all children in England
are classified as ‘disadvantaged’
(eligible for free school meals or

looked after by children’s social care).

Children with health conditions

- Those who are part of a shielded
group were confined to their homes
for over four months and may have
had interruptions to their treatment or
support (Sinha et al 2020).

Children with learning disabilities
and autistic spectrum disorders
— These children will have been
particularly affected by the disruption
to their daily routine and restrictions
on use of playgrounds and outdoor
space and may have received less
support (Social Care Institute for
Excellence 2020, NSPCC 2020).
Children with mental health
conditions — Lockdown may have
increased feelings of anxiety,
loneliness and depression at a

time when support was reduced or
not available. An estimated 13%

of children have a mental health
condition (NHS Digital 2018) (The
Children’s Society 2020).

128

(@)
=
o
=
(1]
=
)
=
Q
<
o
c
=
Q
©
®
(@)
=
®



https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/2020/04/25/childrens-commissioner-for-england-creates-local-area-profiles-of-child-vulnerability-during-covid-19/
https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/2020/04/25/childrens-commissioner-for-england-creates-local-area-profiles-of-child-vulnerability-during-covid-19/
https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/2020/04/25/childrens-commissioner-for-england-creates-local-area-profiles-of-child-vulnerability-during-covid-19/
https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/2020/04/25/childrens-commissioner-for-england-creates-local-area-profiles-of-child-vulnerability-during-covid-19/
https://educationendowmentfoundation.org.uk/public/files/EEF_(2020)_-_Impact_of_School_Closures_on_the_Attainment_Gap.pdf
https://educationendowmentfoundation.org.uk/public/files/EEF_(2020)_-_Impact_of_School_Closures_on_the_Attainment_Gap.pdf
https://www.bmj.com/content/369/bmj.m2061
https://www.scie.org.uk/care-providers/coronavirus-covid-19/learning-disabilities-autism/carers-family
https://www.scie.org.uk/care-providers/coronavirus-covid-19/learning-disabilities-autism/carers-family
https://www.nspcc.org.uk/keeping-children-safe/support-for-parents/coronavirus-supporting-children-special-educational-needs-disabilities/
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/mental-health-of-children-and-young-people-in-england/2017/2017
https://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/what-we-do/resources-and-publications/the-impact-of-covid-19-on-children-and-young-people-0
https://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/what-we-do/resources-and-publications/the-impact-of-covid-19-on-children-and-young-people-0

Why is this important in Berkshire?

e Slough (36%) and

nnnnnnnnn Reading (34%)

0000000000
mnnnnnnnnn have.the highest proportions
eo000000000e Ofchildrenandyoung people

annmaannnnnn in their population

Of Berkshire’s population

is made of children and
Babies born in

(@)
=)
o
=
(1]
=]
)
=
Q
<
o
c
=
Q
©
®
o
=
(1]

young people aged
Berkshire since

under 25 (288,470 people)

lockdown

Young people's GCSEs,
School children did not A-levels or equivalent

attend school during examinations cancelled
lockdown

Vulnerable children and young people in Berkshire

— AN ' .
R ¥ &
12,680 11,400 34,000 23,500

Children (aged under 18) Children (aged under 18) ~ Children (aged under 18) Children with an identified

eligible for Free School living in overcrowded living in households with Special Education Need or
Meals (including 6,269 accommodation) a parent suffering Disability
in Reading and Slough) domestic abuse, severe

mental health or a substance
misuse problems

UL

1,100 900 19,000 oer 3,000

nmnnnwnm

Children in care Children with an active Children (aged 5 to 16) 16 and 17 year olds not in

(including 273 in child protection plan have a mental health education, employment or

Reading) disorder training (including 450 in
Reading)

129




22 |

What has worked elsewhere?

Supporting strong family relationships
- Evidence from the Christchurch
earthquake and Grenfell Tower fire
demonstrate that family relationships are
the most important factor in recovery for
children and young people who have
experienced a disaster (Freeman et al
2015, Strelitz et al 2018). Examples from
other disasters emphasise the importance
of identifying those families who are most
in need and focusing resources on them.
Clear signposting to advice and support
for all families is also vital and online

networks can be invaluable to reach a 4,

wide audience.

Supporting trusted professionals to
care for children and young people -
Teacher-delivered interventions have been
found to significantly improve students’
wellbeing and recovery after traumatic
events (Wolmer et al 2016). The way
these interventions are delivered can vary
from structured group programmes to
individual sessions between a pupil and
a trusted teacher. The Trauma Sensitive
Schools’ movement emphasises the
importance of all adults working with
children being sensitive and supportive
to the impacts of trauma. To achieve this,
professionals need to receive high quality
training and resources to enable them to
support young people effectively.

Catching-up with missed immunisations
and other development checks -
Although GP Practices have continued to
offer vaccinations during the pandemic,
many children have missed their routine
vaccinations and school-aged children
have missed immunisations delivered in
school for Years 8 and 9. An immunisation
catch-up programme will be needed

to ensure that children continue to be
protected from infectious diseases and
maximising uptake of the enhanced flu
vaccination programme for school age
children will also be important. Vaccine
uptake is highest when parents feel safe

130

and receive supportive and informative
communication from health professionals
(Leask et al 2012). It will therefore be
vital for local healthcare systems to
proactively communicate with parents
and communities about the importance
of vaccination and use both reassurance
and innovative approaches that support
social distancing (Hussain 2020). Similar
approaches will need to be considered for
other developmental checks that babies
and children routinely receive.

Providing virtual and digital support

- There are many examples of inventive
use of virtual and digital activities to
reach children and young people

and the continued use of virtual and
digital support activities can be a cost-
effective way to allow children and their
families to access services that may

not otherwise be available. The Aneurin
Bevan University Health Board expanded
their existing virtual CAMHS programme
during lockdown and feedback from
young people and their families showed
that they valued the convenience and
security of having their appointment in

a comfortable and familiar setting (The
Health Foundation 2020). However digital
poverty, or a lack of access to electronic
devices or funds to support their use,
can be a barrier for some families and
evidence on the effectiveness of virtual
support in reaching vulnerable children
and young people is currently limited
(Institute of Health Visiting, Youth
Endowment Fund). Social media is also
not a substitute for personal interaction
— even for the younger generation (lpsos
MORI 2020).

0
>
o
=
(1)
=)
Q
=
o
<
o
c
=
(o]
©
(1))
()}
=]
(1))



https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/1177083X.2015.1066400
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/1177083X.2015.1066400
https://www.jsna.info/sites/default/files/Journey%20of%20Recovery%20-%20%20Summary.pdf
https://cdn.doctorsonly.co.il/2016/12/05_Enhancing-Children’s-Resilience.pdf
https://traumasensitiveschools.org
https://traumasensitiveschools.org
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/22998654/
https://www.pulsetoday.co.uk/wp-json/cogora_apd_api/init/Zptbqg3MBVcxtN5UjBNN6uncOhSPna83eeXTDOSyMePD4WH73dE8f7GwNxPx0DKp
https://www.health.org.uk/news-and-comment/newsletter-features/three-projects-that-have-successfully-spread-virtual-consult
https://www.health.org.uk/news-and-comment/newsletter-features/three-projects-that-have-successfully-spread-virtual-consult
https://ihv.org.uk/news-and-views/news/ihv-comments-on-ucl-survey-on-impacts-of-covid-19-on-health-visiting-in-england/
https://www.kenilworthweb.co.uk/youth-endowment-fund-covid-19-grant-round/
https://www.kenilworthweb.co.uk/youth-endowment-fund-covid-19-grant-round/

5. Ensuring children and young people are

active participants in recovery - Children
and young people are best placed to say
how the pandemic has affected them

and what needs to be considered in their
recovery. Research into recovery following
the Christchurch earthquake in New
Zealand highlighted a “strong resilience
of spirit” amongst young people, noting
the value of the positive commitment of

its children and young people to repair
and rebuild (Freeman et al 2015).
Studies compiled by The Royal College
of Paediatrics and Child Health explore
children and young people’s experiences
during the pandemic and recommend that
these are considered alongside scientific
and medical datasets. Taking steps to
ensure that children and young people
can be supported to actively participate

in local decision-making, through formal
consultation or through existing networks,
can help to ensure that steps towards
recovery meet their needs. The pandemic
provides a unique opportunity to convert
the experiences of children and young
people into a legacy of prevention,
preparedness and learning. This will only
happen if their voices are heard and are
acted on (The University of Manchester
Alliance).

How can we measure this?

A wide range of factors can have

a significant impact on a child or

young person’s overall wellbeing and
measurement of recovery from the
COVID-19 pandemic needs to include
aspects from many different domains,
including home life, relationships, health,
school and money (The Children’s
Society 2019).

131

Local intelligence from families,
teachers, health visitors, school
nurses, health and social care
professionals and providers of
services will also form an important
part of the measurement of recovery.
Most importantly, feedback from
children and young people will help
to identify where recovery effort
should be focussed and whether this
has had an impact.

Measurements of demand for
children and young people’s health
services and their activity may be

a useful way to determine whether
needs have increased and are
being met, but it will be important to
consider how the suspension and
restriction of services may obscure
the needs of some children.

)
=)
o
=
(1]
=]
)
=
Q
<
o
c
=
«Q
©
®
o
=
(1]



https://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/what-we-do/resources-and-publications/the-good-childhood-report-2019
https://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/what-we-do/resources-and-publications/the-good-childhood-report-2019
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/1177083X.2015.1066400
https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/resources/covid-19-research-studies-children-young-peoples-views
https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/resources/covid-19-research-studies-children-young-peoples-views
https://www.alliancembs.manchester.ac.uk/media/ambs/content-assets/documents/news/the-manchester-briefing-on-covid-19-b10-wb-8th-june-2020.pdf
https://www.alliancembs.manchester.ac.uk/media/ambs/content-assets/documents/news/the-manchester-briefing-on-covid-19-b10-wb-8th-june-2020.pdf

Safeguarding

Buipienbajes

Why is this important in recovery from COVID-19?

Natural disasters and catastrophic events
increase the risk and opportunities for abuse
(Campbell 2020). The COVID-19 lockdown
and ongoing restrictions have created a
unique set of factors that have made some
forms of abuse harder to see and safeguard
against. Our recovery from the COVID-19
lockdown restrictions will need to ensure that
safeguards continue to be put in place to
identify, support and protect victims of abuse.

“Our recovery from the
COVID-19 lockdown
restrictions will need to ensure
that safeguards continue to be

put in place to identify, support
and protect victims of abuse. “



https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC7152912/

Domestic abuse: The ‘Stay at Home and
Stay Safe’ message will have left many
victims feeling isolated and frightened
with home, perhaps, the most dangerous
place (SafelLives 2020). Evidence

from other disasters, such as Hurricane
Katrina, the 2009 Australian Bushfires and
the 2010 Haiti Earthquake, all indicate
that heightened levels of domestic abuse
continue long after the event (Campbell
2020)

C

Refuge 2020

Increase in calls to UK National
Domestic Abuse Helpline
(June 2020)

Incidents described as becoming
more complex and serious with
higher levels of physical violence
and coercive control

Home Affairs Select Committee 2020

890088 At least 14 women and

2 children were killed in
suspected domestic abuse
incidents in the first three
weeks of lockdown

010
" — double the average rate

Home Affairs Select Committee 2020

133

)
Q
—t
o
«Q
c
Q
-
=
=
«Q

Child Protection: In contrast, referrals
to children’s social care services have
fallen by more than half in many areas
of England since lockdown (Children’s
Commissioner 2020). Unfortunately this
will be as a result of fewer opportunities
to detect abuse, through the closure of
schools, children’s centres and other
protective community settings, rather
than an actual decrease in the numbers
of children abused or neglected. It is
expected that the number of referrals

to children’s social care will increase
significantly when children return to
school in September 2020 (Willis Palmer
2020)

Criminal exploitation and gangs:

The National Youth Agency explains
that although lockdown initially led to a
reduction in gang-related activity, gangs
will have found new ways to operate and
exploit children, grooming new recruits
who are less visible to statutory services.
There have been reports of increased
violence between gangs who are
competing for young people to carry and
sell their drugs, including in the Thames
Valley

Helpful Strangers and Scams: One
positive aspect of the COVID-19
lockdown has been the increase in
people who have volunteered to help
others in their community. However, the
Social Care Institute for Excellence
explains this has also given opportunity
for people to exploit those who are
vulnerable, and those that have had to
shield being most affected. An increase
in scams has also been reported since
lockdown and the Chartered Trading
Standards Institute warning the public not
to engage with bogus healthcare workers
claiming to offer COVID-19 home-testing
kits or sanitation equipment.



https://safelives.org.uk/staying-safe-during-covid-19-guidance
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC7152912/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC7152912/
https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/cco-were-all-in-this-together.pdf
https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/cco-were-all-in-this-together.pdf
https://www.willispalmer.com/kent-director-warns-referral-spike-could-be-up-by-250-when-children-return-to-school/
https://www.willispalmer.com/kent-director-warns-referral-spike-could-be-up-by-250-when-children-return-to-school/
https://nya.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/NYA-Hidden-in-Plain-Sight-1.pdf
https://www.scie.org.uk/care-providers/coronavirus-covid-19/safeguarding-adults
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm5801/cmselect/cmhaff/321/321.pdf
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm5801/cmselect/cmhaff/321/321.pdf
https://www.refuge.org.uk/domestic-abuse-helpline-lockdown-eases/

Why is this important for minimising inequalities

Some people are more at risk:

26 |

Living in a household affected by one of
the “toxic trio” of addiction, mental health
problems and domestic abuse

Living in areas of deprivation and low
income households

Persistent absentees from education,
young people not in education,
employment or training (NEET), adults
who are unemployed

Children with special educational needs,
disabilities and/or long-term health
conditions

Children in care

Vulnerable adults with care and support
needs

Older People — particularly those with
dementia

People who are socially isolated and/or
lonely

People who are homeless or in temporary
accommodation

Migrants and refugees — particularly
women and children

Women and girls — men can also be
victims of abuse, however the reported
incidence of abuse for women is
significantly higher

Certain forms of abuse are more common
in some communities than others - for
example honour-based violence, forced
marriage and female genital mutilation
have a higher prevalence in BAME
communities.

134

[72)
)
—r
(1]
Q
c
Q
-
.
=
Q




Why is this important in Berkshire?

How many people are affected by abuse in Berkshire?

n
Q
—
®
Q
C
Q
-
=
=
Q

of people aged 16 to 74

Nearly 35,000 children (under 18) are will have suffered from
living in households with at least one of domestic abuse in 2018/19.
the “toxic trio” of addiction, mental health /

problems and domestic abuse. \

-

Approximately 11,000 domestic
abuse incidents and crimes
reported to Police in Berkshire
(2018/19).

domestic homicides in the
Thames Valley (2018/19).

N
=
Over 900 children in

Nearly 35,000 children (under 18) are Berkshire have an
living in households with at least one of active child protection
the “toxic trio” of addiction, mental health plan.

problems and domestic abuse.

h @

Nearly 6,000 concerns of Over 4,500 enquiries received In 2018/19, 70 women and

abuse were raised for by Berkshire LAs with child girls in Berkshire were identified
vulnerable adults in protection concerns during as h.av?ng had a Female Genital
2018/19. These led to 2,270 2018/19. Mutilation procedure performed.

safeguarding enquiries.

135




What has worked elsewhere?

1. Training professionals to identify abuse
and support victims
The IRIS (Identification and Referral to
Improve Safety) support and training
programme was implemented in London,
training the whole primary care team to
identify signs of abuse in their patients
which has seen a 30 fold increase in
referrals from GP practices over a 4 year
period. (BMC Medicine 2020) The Social

3. Finding innovative ways to enable
victims of abuse to seek help
A number of organisations have
implemented more flexible and safer
ways to access their services, which
incorporate the benefits of mobile
technology and social media platforms to
combat difficulties in contacting support
organisations and authorities during the

n
)
-ty
(1]
«Q
c
Q
q
=
=
«Q

28 |

Enterprise IRIS have been supporting
GP Practices to respond to domestic
abuse during the COVID-19 lockdown
by releasing guidance on how to apply
the principles of the IRIS training during
telephone and video consultations with
their patients. Similar training could be
implemented locally with health care
professionals to support the detection and
support to victims of abuse. Guidance
and training has also been published by
the Social Care Institute for Excellence
for social care practitioners to detect and
protect victims of abuse as the lockdown
restrictions are lifted.

2. Encouraging communities to identify
and report abuse
With more people being based at home,
their interactions with neighbours and
specific occupations may have increased,
and while types of abuse, such as animal
welfare concerns or anti-social behaviour,
are commonly reported by others, reports
of domestic abuse are primarily made by
the victim of abuse (Campbell 2020).The
general public need to be made aware
of the signs of domestic abuse or child
neglect and encouraged to report their
concerns to the proper authorities. There
are Helpline and Government resources to
help that can be found here and here.

136

lockdown.

Women'’s Aid Online Support: The
Live Chat service supports victims
and survivors by providing an
instant-messaging service, where
telephone support is not safe
Hestia Bright Sky App: The free
mobile app provides support and
information to people in abusive
relationships. The secure MydJournal
tool enables people to record
incidents of abuse via text, audio,
video or in photo form without saving
the content onto their device

Silent Solution: The Silent Solution
allows people to be connected to
the Police through the 999 system
without needing to speak. By
pressing ‘55’ when the 999 call

is connected, the caller can then
engage with the police using minimal
noise.



https://bmcmedicine.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/s12916-020-1506-3
https://pdfhost.io/v/gYvqnkHIr_IRISi_Guidance_for_General_Practice_teams_phone_and_video_.pdf
https://www.scie.org.uk/care-providers/coronavirus-covid-19/safeguarding/easing-lockdown-domestic-violence
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC7152912/
https://www.scie.org.uk/care-providers/coronavirus-covid-19/safeguarding/domestic-violence-abuse
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/domestic-abuse-how-to-get-help
https://chat.womensaid.org.uk
https://www.hestia.org/brightsky
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/police-forces/thames-valley-police/areas/advice/silent-solution---999-and-55/

How can we measure this?

A reduction in safeguarding activity does not
automatically suggest that the level of harm in
a community is decreasing. This can also be a
sign that people who need help have become
more hidden and have less access to support
systems. This will need to be considered as
safeguarding activity is monitored during
recovery.

Key measures:

Child protection referrals

Adult Safeguarding referrals

A&E attendances and hospital admissions
for injury

Domestic abuse incidents reported to
Police

Domestic abuse helpline activity
Feedback from victims on access to help.

137

n
Q
—
®
Q
C
Q
-
=
=
Q




Mental Health

Why is this important in recovery from COVID-19?

There is strong evidence to indicate that
mental health conditions will be more
common as a result of both the pandemic
itself and the measures that have been put
in place to control the spread of the virus.
Several groups are at increased risk of
developing a mental health condition.

YllesH |ejusiy




=
(1)
=
=
o
L
(1]
o
=
=2

COVID-19 survivors and their family Some have also highlighted the potential
members - NHS England guidance impact of widespread school closures on
suggests an expected increased children and young people, especially
prevalence of anxiety, depression and those with existing mental health problems
post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) (Lee, 2020, Young Minds, 2020). Emerging
amongst acute COVID-19 survivors and research into the effects of social distancing
their family members (NHS England, suggests even more widespread experiences
2020, Bienvenu et al, 2016, British of depression and anxiety throughout the
Psychological Society, 2020). wider population (Venkatesh, 2020 (letter to
People who have suffered the editor, BMJ), Williams et al, 2020).

bereavements and significant material
and financial losses as a result of

the pandemic or social distancing
measures - Evidence from disasters
suggests that prevalence rates were
higher amongst those who were
bereaved, lost their homes or suffered
financial or job loss as a result of crises
(Warsini, 2014, Lock et al, 2012).
Frontline health workers — People
working in health services may
experience overwhelming workloads,
risk of contagion, stigma and lack of
support or equipment and resources.
As a result they are likely to experience
a high psychological burden during the
pandemic Greenberg et al (BMJ) 2020;
Lai et al, 2020. This has potential to affect
delivery of health services (Mitchell,
2020).

People who have self-isolated - A
review of the impact of quarantine has
highlighted increased risks of stress,
depression, anxiety and PTSD on those
asked or compelled to self-isolate, with
particular risks arising from impact on
professional activities, finances and
stigma (Brooks et al, 2020).

139



https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4336582/
https://www.bps.org.uk/sites/www.bps.org.uk/files/Policy/Policy%20-%20Files/Meeting%20the%20psychological%20needs%20of%20people%20recovering%20from%20severe%20coronavirus.pdf
https://www.bps.org.uk/sites/www.bps.org.uk/files/Policy/Policy%20-%20Files/Meeting%20the%20psychological%20needs%20of%20people%20recovering%20from%20severe%20coronavirus.pdf
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/24857526/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3492002/
https://www.bmj.com/content/bmj/368/bmj.m1211.full.pdf
https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jamanetworkopen/fullarticle/2763229
https://www.nursingtimes.net/news/mental-health/danger-of-nurses-quitting-after-covid-19-if-mental-health-overlooked-24-04-2020/
https://www.thelancet.com/action/showPdf?pii=S0140-6736%2820%2930460-8
https://id.elsevier.com/ACW/?return=https%3A%2F%2Fsecure.jbs.elsevierhealth.com%2Faction%2FconsumeSsoCookie%3FredirectUri%3Dhttps%253A%252F%252Fwww.thelancet.com%252Faction%252FconsumeSharedSessionAction%253FJSESSIONID%253Daaack8UcxHbM5crSkdBsx%2526MAID%253DhP5jpyHkMfenANmqY7QFTQ%25253D%25253D%2526SERVER%253DWZ6myaEXBLEEYvrnizi8SQ%25253D%25253D%2526ORIGIN%253D204142885%2526RD%253DRD%26code%3Dnull
https://youngminds.org.uk/media/3708/coronavirus-report_march2020.pdf
https://www.bmj.com/content/368/bmj.m1089/rr-9
https://www.medrxiv.org/content/10.1101/2020.04.10.20061267v1

32 |

Why is this important for minimising inequalities?

There were clear links between poor mental
health and health inequalities before the
onset of the COVID-19 pandemic and
inequalities seem likely to widen further in its
wake.

Factors linked with having at least one mental
health condition include:

Living in insecure accommodation Growing up in poverty
or being at risk of homelessness

People with severe mental health conditions,
such as bipolar disorder and personality
disorders, are more likely to develop
physical health conditions and have a life
expectancy of 20 years less than the rest of
the population (PHE, 2018).

The additional burden of mental health
conditions related to COVID-19 is more likely
to affect those already disadvantaged by
social and structural inequalities, including

Experiences of trauma or abuse

people who:

have an existing mental live in deprived have a serious are from BAME groups
health condition neighbourhoods physical health condition

(PHE, 2020).

140

=
(1)
=
=
o
L
(1]
o
=
=2



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-reducing-health-inequalities-in-mental-illness/health-matters-reducing-health-inequalities-in-mental-illness
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/908434/Disparities_in_the_risk_and_outcomes_of_COVID_August_2020_update.pdf

Why is this important in Berkshire?

=
(1)
=
=
]
L
(1)
Q
-
=2

106,178

106,178 (12% of the population) 74,000 (8% of the population) have a recorded
have an existing common mental diagnosis of depression (QOF via PHE Common
health condition (APMS, via PHE Mental Health Disorders Profile)

Common Mental Health Disorders
Profile, 2017)

Around

have been diagnosed
with COVID-19

furloughed
(employment section)

delivering health services and social
care (ONS Business Register and
[ Employment Survey, via NOMIS).

hospitalised (NHS England)

(Opun(®)

141




34 |

What has worked elsewhere?

1.

Screening Programmes. Although most
people recover independently from PTSD
and other mental health conditions linked
to traumatic incidents, evidence suggests
there is a risk that people who develop
mental health treatment needs following
the COVID-19 pandemic will not seek
treatment (Greenberg and Wessely, 2017,
Brewin et al, 2010, NICE, 2018).

e Central and North West London
(CNWL) NHS Foundation Trust used an
outreach ‘screen and treat’ approach
to reach those at greatest risk after the
Grenfell Tower Fire, providing initial
assessments for PTSD, anxiety and
depression in community settings and
referral into clinical treatment (West
London Clinical Commissioning
Group)

e FEasily accessible and well-publicised
screening available in community
settings, online or using postal
questionnaires after an appropriate
period of time, may help to ensure
that those with developing mental
health needs are identified and can be
signposted and supported to access
treatment.

2. Access to support and evidence-based

142

mental health treatment for those

who need it. PTSD and other common
mental health problems are widely and
successfully treated with evidence-based
psychological treatments, including
trauma-focussed treatments for PTSD
(RCP, 2016, NICE, 2018).

« The Manchester Resilience Hub,
set up after the 2017 Manchester
Arena attacks, coordinates access to
psychological treatments for private
individuals and health professionals
affected by the incident

e The 2019-20 Australian Bushfires saw
the Australian government remove
requirements for GP referrals to mental
health treatment, allowing anyone
affected by the bushfires, to self-refer
directly for appropriate psychological
support (Australian Government).

=
(1)
=)
=
]
L
(1]
o
=
=2



https://www.kcl.ac.uk/kcmhr/publications/assetfiles/2017/Greenberg2017.pdf
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2964043/
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng116
https://www.rcpsych.ac.uk/pdf/PS03_2016.pdf
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng116
https://www.penninecare.nhs.uk/mcrhub-arena
https://www.health.gov.au/sites/default/files/documents/2020/01/mental-health-support-for-australians-affected-by-the-2019-20-bushfires-mental-health-support-for-australians-affected-by-the-2019-20-bushfires_0.pdf
https://www.grenfell.nhs.uk/who-are-we/about-central-and-north-west-london-mental-health-trust-cnwl-north-kensington-response
https://www.grenfell.nhs.uk/who-are-we/about-central-and-north-west-london-mental-health-trust-cnwl-north-kensington-response
https://www.grenfell.nhs.uk/who-are-we/about-central-and-north-west-london-mental-health-trust-cnwl-north-kensington-response

How can we measure this?

e Prevalence of mental health conditions,
available through surveys such as the
Adult Psychiatry Morbidity Survey (APMS),
(NHS Digital), ONS weekly estimates of
average anxiety scores, GP Patient Survey
or local surveys, such as Healthwatch
Bracknell Forest’s survey (May 2020),
and diagnoses routinely recorded by GPs
(QOF)

e | ocal data sources may include
information on referrals or numbers
receiving treatment through mental
health services, especially where this is
recorded and processed in normal routine
monitoring processes. However, utilising
monitoring data presents challenges
for strategic teams and organisations
providing treatment services. Cleansing
and processing data can be
time-consuming, and organisations
need to take care to avoid the risk of
mishandling personal data.

=
®
=
=
]
L
1]
Q
-
=2

143



https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/adult-psychiatric-morbidity-survey/adult-psychiatric-morbidity-survey-survey-of-mental-health-and-wellbeing-england-2014
https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/quality-and-outcomes-framework-achievement-prevalence-and-exceptions-data

Environmental Impact

Why is this important in recovery from COVID-19?

1oedw| [eluswuoIAUT

Transport disruptions and different ways

of working, without an automatic loss of
productivity during COVID-19, contributed

to a 17% fall in CO2 emissions during April
2020 compared with one year ago, illustrated
by changing patterns of behaviour enforced
by lockdown. This provides a proof-of-
concept that pollution levels are responsive
to policy, creating an incentive for making the
environmental impact a core focus of future
strategies (Le Quéré et al., 2020).

“This provides a proof-of-
concept that pollution levels
are responsive to policy,
creating an incentive for

making the environmental
impact a core focus of future
strategies.”



https://idp.nature.com/authorize?response_type=cookie&client_id=grover&redirect_uri=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.nature.com%2Farticles%2Fs41558-020-0797-x

Transport use during lockdown period as

percentage of an equivalent week (Department

for Transport)

Transport type
Bus (exclu.

Date Cars National Rail London) Cycling
23 March 2020

% 25% % %
(1%t day of lockdown) 64% 2% Br%
Tuesday 31t March 32% 5% 12% 98%
Tuesday 28" March 37% 4% 1% 50%
Tuesday 27" May 59% 7% 14% 229%
Tuesday 30" June 73% 17% 26% 127%
Tuesday 21st July 83% 25% 34% 135%

Changes to air travel during COVID-19

e In April 2020, 92% fewer flights departed
the UK compared to 2019

e This included an 83% decrease in flights
from London Heathrow

e Flight deficit of over 1.2 million across
Europe in March and April 2020.

Transport patterns have clearly been
transformed during the pandemic, however,
previous decreases in emissions have been
short term.

e Global CO2 emissions declined by 1.4%
during the 2008/09 recession followed by
a 5% growth in emissions in 2010 (Peters,
2011).

145

Given emissions are predicted to
reduce by only 8% this year, despite

air traffic grinding to a halt and global
economic collapse, more robust policies
are required to achieve meaningful

yet manageable reductions in carbon

emissions over the long-term (IEA 2020).

m
=
s
q
o
=
3
(1)
=
=
o
3
O
Q
(2]
=



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/transport-use-during-the-coronavirus-covid-19-pandemic/covid-19-transport-data-methodology-note
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/transport-use-during-the-coronavirus-covid-19-pandemic/covid-19-transport-data-methodology-note
https://www.eurocontrol.int/sites/default/files/2020-05/covid19-eurocontrol-comprehensive-air-traffic-assessment-05042020.pdf


https://www.globalcarbonproject.org/global/pdf/pep/Peters_2011_Budget2010.pdf
https://www.globalcarbonproject.org/global/pdf/pep/Peters_2011_Budget2010.pdf
https://www.iea.org/

38 |

Why is this important for minimising inequalities

e Pollution is linked to lower life expectancy,
particularly through its effects on
cardiovascular and respiratory health and
lung cancer

e Poor air quality is estimated to cause the
equivalent of around 30,000 deaths a
year in the UK

e The impacts of air pollution are likely to
be felt by some of our most vulnerable
community members

e Those on low incomes are more likely to
live in environments affected by industrial
areas or on busy roads, exacerbated
by the fact they are more likely to
have existing poor health or health
conditions (PHE, 2018, Royal College of
Physicians, 2016).

Find out more here.

| % Public Health England Health Matters

Air pollution affects everyone but there are inequalities in exposure
and the greatest impact on the most vulnerable

older people communities with
(65 and older) poorer air quality
(eg. those situated

pregnant women /,& closer to main roads)

e
/

those with

— children cardiovascular
disease and/or
respiratory disease

et

146

m
=
<
q
o
=
3
(1)
=
=
QQ
3
O
Q
(2)
=



https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/outputs/every-breath-we-take-lifelong-impact-air-pollution
https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/outputs/every-breath-we-take-lifelong-impact-air-pollution
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-air-pollution/health-matters-air-pollution


Why is this important in Berkshire?

Berkshire includes some areas of congestion
and poor air quality, including many areas
where communities live and work. There

are also opportunities with improved public
transport infrastructure in development.

e Data from 2016 shows poor air quality
is concentrated in central urban and
industrial areas in Reading and Slough

e The estimated concentration of four air
pollutants (nitrogen dioxide, benzene,
sulphur dioxide and particulates) is based
on data from the UK Air Information
Resource

e A higher value indicates a higher level of
deprivation.

K
2016 Combined Air Quality Indicator across Berkshire Lower Super o

Output Areas Air Quality Score
[ 0.00-0.91
[ 0.91-0.99
B 0.99-1.08
Bl 1.08-1.50

|:] Local Authority Boundaries

R
iy

S \P"

\J

i
wi
»

© This map has been produced using the and Ordnance Survey OpenData 2020, English
Indices of Deprivation - Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 2016

Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government via Berkshire Observatory

147

m
=
<.
q
o
=
3
(]
=
=
o
3
O
Q
(2]
=



https://berkshireobservatory.co.uk/data-catalog-explorer/indicator/I25375/?geoId=G1&view=metadata

What has worked elsewhere?

Public Health England (2019) recommends
interventions to reduce road traffic, particularly
the number of journeys by car, as the most
effective way to prevent pollution and increase
physical activity.

1. Reducing private car use and changing
driving behaviour are among the most
effective interventions to improve air
quality and reduce congestion.

m
=)
<.
q
o
=
3
(1)
=
=
o
3
©
Q
(2]
=

e Air pollution and traffic counts were
reduced during the 1996 Olympic
Games in Atlanta by local businesses
encouraged to use tele-conferencing,
public transport provision temporarily
increased and central downtown area
closed to private cars (Friedman et al,
2001)

e |n 2006, London’s congestion charge
reduced traffic volume by 15% and
overall congestion by 30%, with
traffic levels continuing to decrease
(Transport for London, 2006).

2. Improving infrastructure for walking
and cycling can help to encourage use
of active and sustainable travel, reducing
car use for short journeys and increasing
levels of physical activity.

3. Public engagement and raising
awareness can have a small but
incremental impact in encouraging people
to change their behaviour, particularly
those who are not yet considering or only
just starting to think about changes (PHE,
2019). The Clean Air Day campaign
reported people were more likely to walk or
cycle to work or school and communities
had opportunities to improve air quality
through temporary pedestrianisation
schemes and walking school buses.

148



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/795185/Review_of_interventions_to_improve_air_quality.pdf
https://www.iea.org/
https://www.iea.org/
https://www.cleanairday.org.uk/news-stories/clean-air-day-2019-read-the-full-report
https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jama/fullarticle/193572
https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jama/fullarticle/193572
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/fourth-annual-report-overview.pdf

How can we measure this?

e Survey data, such as Active Lives survey
data, can tell us how often people travel
using ‘active travel’ (walking or cycling)
in each local authority area. Information
from the Active Lives survey is available
through PHE’s Fingertips website or
through the Active Lives website

e Department for Transport statistics
provide a range of information on roads
and transport use nationally, including
on transport use during the COVID-19
pandemic

e The Department for Environment, Food
and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) provides a daily
forecast, pollution summary and a range of
technical air quality monitoring, modelling
and emissions data (DEFRA, 2014).

m
=
<.
q
o
=
3
(]
=
=
o
3
O
Q
(2]
=

149



https://activelives.sportengland.org
https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/reports/cat14/1406191156_060618_Guide_to_UK_Air_Pollution_Information_Resources-issue_2-FINAL.pdf

~ What will help?
Engaging with communites

Why is this important in recovery from COVID-19?

Previous disasters have taught us that we
must ask our communities what matters

most to them. Fostering an understanding of
local assets, concerns and barriers through
discussion with stakeholders ensures the
response meets the needs of the whole
population (HM Government, 2013, South,
Jones, Stansfield and Bagnall, 2018, World
Bank GFDRR, 2011).

saliUNWWo? yum buibebuz

Engagement with communities affected by
SARS and Ebola pandemics helped to ensure
successful responses to the changing needs
of the population. This also helped us to
understand and influence behaviour, begin to
dispel mistrust and misinformation and thus
improve management of outbreaks (WHO,
2014, SARS Expert Committee, 2003).

“Those on the lowest incomes
are less likely to feel able to
exercise control over their
futures by engaging with
national and local political
systems.”



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/253488/Emergency_Response_and_Recovery_5th_edition_October_2013.pdf
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK534343/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK534343/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK534343/
https://www.gfdrr.org/sites/default/files/SIAVol_I.pdf
https://www.gfdrr.org/sites/default/files/SIAVol_I.pdf
https://www.who.int/csr/resources/publications/ebola/social-mobilization-guidance/en/
https://www.who.int/csr/resources/publications/ebola/social-mobilization-guidance/en/
https://www.sars-expertcom.gov.hk/english/reports/reports.html

Why is this important for inequalities?

If barriers to participation for those already

disadvantaged are not addressed, there is

a risk that our recovery plans will not reflect

or meet their needs and could deepen and

widen existing inequalities.

e Both the direct health impacts and the
indirect impacts of an economic downturn
are likely to affect poor and vulnerable
communities to a greater extent

e Recent survey evidence suggests that
those on the lowest incomes are less
likely to feel able to exercise control over
their futures by engaging with national
and local political systems and also less
likely to take part in political activities
(Taylor, Saunders and Toomse-Smith,
2017, Ainsley, 2018)

* Young people (18-24) were the age group
least likely to have participated in political
activity in 2018 (Uberoi and Johnston,
2019).

s
O —
O

As well as inequalities rooted in
socioeconomic differences, the Equality

and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has
highlighted that the following groups felt less
able to influence local decisions (EHRC,
2015, 2016):

e People with disabilities

e Ethnic minorities

e (Older age groups (75+).

As well as entrenched existing barriers,
change in the wake of the pandemic has
been fast paced and is likely to have created
additional barriers to engagement that will
need to be considered. While there are
opportunities to engage using cost-effective,
digital and virtual methods, we risk excluding
new groups who lack access or have low
levels of digital literacy.

did not feel they had any
influence at all over local
decision-making

do not want to be involved
in local decision-making

— compared to 22% in the compared to 33% in the
previous year'’s survey. previous year'’s survey.

Social grade category

Feel getting involved is effective

Higher and intermediate managerial,
administrative, professional occupations

38%

Supervisory, clerical & junior managerial
administrative, professional occupations

35%

Skilled manual professions

21%

Semi-skilled & unskilled manual occupations,
unemployed and lowest grade occupations

29%

Hansard Society, 2019

Age group Has participated in political activities to influence
decisions, laws or policies (at least one activity)

18-24

42%

25-34

55%

35-44

69%

45-54

59%

55-64

70%

65+

56%

Uberoi and Johnston, 2019 151

m
=2
«Q
Q0
el
=
(o]
s
=
=
(2)
o
3
3
c
=
E..:
(1)
(7]



https://www.bsa.natcen.ac.uk/media/39207/social-and-political-attitudes-of-people-on-low-incomes-2017-full-report.pdf
https://www.bsa.natcen.ac.uk/media/39207/social-and-political-attitudes-of-people-on-low-incomes-2017-full-report.pdf
https://www.jrf.org.uk/blog/open-democracy-people-poverty-must-have-real-power
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/cbp-7501/
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/cbp-7501/
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/is-britain-fairer-2015.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/is-britain-fairer-2015.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publication-download/healing-divided-britain-need-comprehensive-race-equality-strategy
https://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-7501/CBP-7501.pdf)
https://assets.ctfassets.net/rdwvqctnt75b/7iQEHtrkIbLcrUkduGmo9b/cb429a657e97cad61e61853c05c8c4d1/Hansard-Society__Audit-of-Political-Engagement-16__2019-report.pdf

Why is this important in Berkshire?

Despite average relative affluence across the
region, some neighbourhoods in Berkshire
experience high levels of deprivation. A
successful recovery requires engagement

of stakeholders across a broad spectrum
and recovery leaders in Berkshire will

need to engage with their communities,
including those who are less often heard by
organisations who make decisions.

m
>
Q
Q
Q
S
Q
=
=
=
0
o
3
=
c
=)
E.:
®
o

Turnout by constituency in 2017
General Election and Constituency
Deprivation Ranking 2019

Constituency Electoral Turnout (%) Nationwide Rank in Deprivation (Most
Deprived=1; Least Deprived = 533)
Maidenhead 76.6 527
Wokingham 755 588
Newbury 73.4 487
Windsor 73.3 516
Reading East 73.1 399
Bracknell 70.6 479
Reading West 69.5 291
Slough 65.2 220

Rank of deprivation compared with electoral turnout by constituency

in Berkshire
600 , Wokingham
500 .Wmds’o’r/.,— e Maidenhead
e Bracknell _e Newbury
« -
= -
& 400 T e Reading East
= -
S -7
§ S00 SO e Reading West
§ 200 @ Slough
100
0
64 66 68 70 72 74 76 78
Electoral turnout (%)
® Constituency =~~~ Linear (Constituency)

Election results
Commons Library

152



https://electionresults.parliament.uk/election/2017-06-08/Statistics/Turnout
https://electionresults.parliament.uk/election/2017-06-08/Statistics/Turnout
https://electionresults.parliament.uk/election/2017-06-08/Statistics/Turnout
https://electionresults.parliament.uk/election/2017-06-08/results/Location/County/Berkshire
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/cbp-7327/

What else has worked elsewhere?

Finding out what’s needed. Community
recovery needs can only be addressed
when we understand local perspectives,
including barriers to behaviours that
build resilience and foster recovery (HM
Government, 2019).

¢ The Royal Borough of Kensington and
Chelsea’s Grenfell Recovery Strategy
(2018) targeted specific community
needs that were identified through
workshops and drop-in session
attended by local residents

e The Local Government Association
(2017) highlighted projects that
recruit local people through
“‘community communicators” to gain
insights as individuals were more
likely to trust and listen to messages
from people they knew rather than
from statutory organisations or the
local press.

. Working through existing channels.

Maximising existing expertise and
relationships, including those in the
voluntary sector, helps avoid any risk of
duplication by different organisations,
potentially confusing and frustrating
community members.

e |eeds Neighbourhood Networks links
people with 35 different local sector
organisations and aims to increase
contribution through local action
(Age UK, 2015, Ubido, Lewis and
Timpson, 2018)

e Research into “Big Local” found that
identifying “key allies” with capacity
to work with the voluntary sector,
outlining shared goals, and using
common language were important
(Institute for Voluntary Action
Research, 2016).

153

3. Including the vulnerable and socially
excluded. Links between social
exclusion, deprivation and vulnerability
means those less likely to participate in
decision-making may correlate with those
amongst the most vulnerable to harmful
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and
response measures.

e |n their suggestions for reducing
health inequalities caused by
COVID-19 Public Health England,
the Local Government Association
and the Association of Directors of
Public Health (2020) highlight the
importance of using community risk
registers and identifying potential
gaps in communication strategies

¢ |nvolving those whose voices are
seldom heard is key to engaging
communities, effectively co-designing
recovery and mitigating inequalities.

How can we measure this?

e There is currently no national data
collection in place for routinely capturing
whether people feel that they are involved
in local decision-making and planning

¢ |n 2008, the UK Place Survey was
introduced to collect perception data from
residents for 18 indicators in the National
Indicator set (Communities and Local
Government, 2009)

e Results suggested only 29% of
respondents in all local authority
areas in the UK felt that they could
influence decisions in their area, a trend
recapitulated in each of the Berkshire
local authorities.

m
5
Q
Q
Q
=
@
s
ol
=
o
o
3
3
c
=)
=
®
w



https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwixpu_Lx9nrAhXG_qQKHbiEChEQFjAAegQIBBAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.rbkc.gov.uk%2Fgrenfell-response-and-recovery&usg=AOvVaw2vqQh-x8bk0iwHG_s9sy8F
https://www.local.gov.uk/new-conversations-lga-guide-engagement
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjBm9SfyNnrAhWQCOwKHa2tAMYQFjAAegQIARAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.campaigntoendloneliness.org%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2FPromising-approaches-to-reducing-loneliness-and-isolation-in-later-life.pdf&usg=AOvVaw1TSKzbVEVY0OWOM4ziBxdh
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjto7GuyNnrAhXBCewKHU9wCvwQFjAAegQIBhAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ljmu.ac.uk%2F~%2Fmedia%2Fphi-reports%2Fpdf%2F2018_02_resilient_communities_full_report.pdf&usg=AOvVaw0N-oP4KhqdnFQAgaxrv1og
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjto7GuyNnrAhXBCewKHU9wCvwQFjAAegQIBhAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ljmu.ac.uk%2F~%2Fmedia%2Fphi-reports%2Fpdf%2F2018_02_resilient_communities_full_report.pdf&usg=AOvVaw0N-oP4KhqdnFQAgaxrv1og
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwja3Ii-yNnrAhVH-aQKHTrFDnEQFjAAegQIARAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ivar.org.uk%2Fresearch-report%2Fpeople-places-and-health-agencies-lessons-from-big-local-residents%2F&usg=AOvVaw1uQUfiXBscVPqAbtUhZ31F
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwja3Ii-yNnrAhVH-aQKHTrFDnEQFjAAegQIARAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ivar.org.uk%2Fresearch-report%2Fpeople-places-and-health-agencies-lessons-from-big-local-residents%2F&usg=AOvVaw1uQUfiXBscVPqAbtUhZ31F
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/COVID-19%20Suggestions%20for%20mitigating%20the%20impact%20on%20health%20inequalities%20at%20a%20local%20level%20%282%29.pdf
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwipmYvPyNnrAhVHyaQKHW8yCt0QFjAAegQIBRAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fdata.gov.uk%2Fdataset%2Fae64d222-4629-4665-a29c-b4f287dbc8fc%2Fplace-survey-results-2008&usg=AOvVaw0iTInFtYABRXm4Md23FkXH
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwipmYvPyNnrAhVHyaQKHW8yCt0QFjAAegQIBRAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fdata.gov.uk%2Fdataset%2Fae64d222-4629-4665-a29c-b4f287dbc8fc%2Fplace-survey-results-2008&usg=AOvVaw0iTInFtYABRXm4Md23FkXH

Resilience and Social Cohesion

Why is this important in recovery from COVID-19?

The concept of community resilience was
originally associated with disasters caused
by climate change. However, it is now more
widely used to describe communities that
face repeated adversity and their ability to
adapt (International Federation of Red
Cross and Red Crescent Societies (IFRC),
2012, Kais and Islam, 2016).

uoISayo) |BID0S pue adudl|ISoy

Socially cohesive communities tend to feel a
sense of belonging and community and either
share values or a tolerance for one another’s
differences. Research into recovery after
disasters shows that community resilience,
including strong social cohesion and social
capital, is linked with faster and more
effective recovery (Mayer, 2019).

“Community resilience, including
strong social cohesion and social
capital, is linked with faster and more
effective recovery.”



https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiC4duWy9nrAhXD_qQKHcMDBm4QFjABegQIBRAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fmedia.ifrc.org%2Fifrc%2Fdocument%2Fifrc-framework-community-resilience%2F&usg=AOvVaw3tbJIV6HmhWAXrutzGwVle
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiC4duWy9nrAhXD_qQKHcMDBm4QFjABegQIBRAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fmedia.ifrc.org%2Fifrc%2Fdocument%2Fifrc-framework-community-resilience%2F&usg=AOvVaw3tbJIV6HmhWAXrutzGwVle
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiC4duWy9nrAhXD_qQKHcMDBm4QFjABegQIBRAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fmedia.ifrc.org%2Fifrc%2Fdocument%2Fifrc-framework-community-resilience%2F&usg=AOvVaw3tbJIV6HmhWAXrutzGwVle
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiC4duWy9nrAhXD_qQKHcMDBm4QFjABegQIBRAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fmedia.ifrc.org%2Fifrc%2Fdocument%2Fifrc-framework-community-resilience%2F&usg=AOvVaw3tbJIV6HmhWAXrutzGwVle

A literature review by the IFRC identified five
key characteristics. A resilient community is:

W o °

is knowledgeable and healthy. is organised. It has groups and leaders
Its members know how to stay that can bring community members together,
healthy and are prepared for identify problems and act to resolve them.
shocks. They learn and build Community members are willing to work
on past experiences. cooperatively and help each other.

®

6

is connected. It has relationships has infrastructure and services. It has access
with central or external organisations to physical assets or external services that
and individuals that can provide enable people to meet their basic needs of
help and support. food and water, shelter and health.

has economic opportunities.
It has a diverse range of
employment opportunities and

a flexible workforce that can
adapt to uncertainty.

155

Yo [e190S pue adudl|ISay

o
@,
o
>



https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiC4duWy9nrAhXD_qQKHcMDBm4QFjABegQIBRAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fmedia.ifrc.org%2Fifrc%2Fdocument%2Fifrc-framework-community-resilience%2F&usg=AOvVaw3tbJIV6HmhWAXrutzGwVle

Why is this important for minimising inequalities

Communities that already experience
disadvantage are less likely to be resilient,
driven by discrepancies in levels of
employment, income and education across
society.

Social cohesion is a fundamental element

of community resilience and patterns of
social cohesion across different communities
demonstrate important inequalities:

=y
o
)
=
>
Q
o
)
3
Q
w
o)
2,
2
0O
o)
>
o
@,
o
>

e |na 2018 study by NatCen, people living
in neighbourhoods with higher incomes
and levels of education were more likely
to trust one another

e Meanwhile, those living in urban areas
with higher deprivation and a higher
proportion of non-white residents were
less likely to do so (Swales and Tipping,
2018)

« The 2016 Casey Review similarly
highlighted risks of mistrust, anxiety,
prejudice, as well as low income, lack of
opportunity and social mobility amongst
some urban communities

e This is especially true where people with
BAME backgrounds are concentrated in
small areas within electoral wards and
amongst poorer White British households.

156



https://www.gov.uk/government/case-studies/asset-based-community-development-in-northumberland
https://www.gov.uk/government/case-studies/asset-based-community-development-in-northumberland
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/575973/The_Casey_Review_Report.pdf

Why is this important in Berkshire?

Whilst there are certainly significant
differences in resilience and social cohesion
across different areas of Berkshire, this is
difficult to directly measure.

e Accessing support networks and
information may be more challenging for
those living in more deprived areas or for
whom English is not a first language.

e Those living in more deprived areas,
such as some areas of high deprivation
in Reading and Slough, are less likely
to benefit from socially cohesive
communities, therefore also less likely
to be resilient to the health, social and
economic impact of COVID-19.

=y
o
&
=
3
Q
o
)
>
Q
w
o
o
2
0O
o)
>
o
&
o
>

The National Place Survey, introduced to
collect residents’ views on the area in which
they lived, indicated lower levels of social
capital in Reading and Slough compared to
elsewhere in Berkshire.

Local Authority Thinks people from different backgrounds
get on well together

Wokingham Borough Council 85.5

Bracknell Forest Borough Council 82.1

Windsor & Maidenhead 80.2

Reading Borough Council _ 77.8

Slough Borough Council 68.5

Communities and Local Government

157




50 |

What has worked elsewhere?

1.

Understanding strengths and
challenges in communities. Tools

designed to help local areas evaluate their

own levels of resilience and social capital,
such as the Prevention Institute’s Tool

for Health and Resilience in Vulnerable
Environments (THRIVE) emphasise

understanding the strengths and assets as

well as the vulnerabilities of communities
(Mguni and Bacon, 2010, Prevention
Institute).

Northumberland County Council used
an asset-based community development
approach to identify what assets were
important to residents and provide small
(micro) development grants.

Connecting people in communities with

less advantages to good quality jobs
and economic opportunity

e |eeds City Council’s “More Jobs,
Better Jobs” introduced employment
and skills obligations targeted at
deprived neighbourhoods into
contracts, improved careers advice
and guidance, and appointed a
manager to work with businesses that
have a strategic significance to the
local economy (Leeds City Council,
2017, JRF, 2016)

e West Midlands Combined Authority’s
Inclusive Growth Decision-Making
Tool requires those working in the
public sector to consider the impact
of projects on accessibility of good
quality jobs to the most vulnerable
groups (West Midlands Combined
Authority).

158

Fostering local leadership and
cooperation through place-based,
community-led action

Street Associations bring together
neighbours in very small areas to plan
and organise community events with
beneficiaries reporting more contact with
their neighbours and feeling safer in their
local area.

Involving community organisations in
managing and developing community
assets, such as the Storyhouse arts
centre in Chester and Springfield park
in Cheltenham (LGA), focus on bringing
community members together and
creating community-focused public
spaces.

=y
o
)
=
3
Q
o
o
>
Q
w
o
4,
2
0O
o)
>
o
),
o
>



https://www.youngfoundation.org/publications/taking-the-temperature-of-local-communities-the-wellbeing-and-resilience-measure-warm/
https://www.youngfoundation.org/publications/taking-the-temperature-of-local-communities-the-wellbeing-and-resilience-measure-warm/
https://www.gov.uk/government/case-studies/asset-based-community-development-in-northumberland
https://www.local.gov.uk/storyhouse-chester
https://www.local.gov.uk/park-life-cheltenham-empowered-community-makes-difference
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/documents/s166265/More%20Jobs%20Better%20Jobs%20Cover%20Report%20Appendix%20061017.pdf
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/documents/s166265/More%20Jobs%20Better%20Jobs%20Cover%20Report%20Appendix%20061017.pdf
https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/major-development-projects-connecting-people-poverty-jobs
https://www.wmca.org.uk/what-we-do/public-service-reform/inclusive-growth-unit/
https://www.wmca.org.uk/what-we-do/public-service-reform/inclusive-growth-unit/

How can we measure this?

e Although there is no single measure for
evaluating community resilience, a range
of tools have been developed that provide
a framework for evaluation

e Fach recommends using a range of
metrics, some including both existing
published data and data collected locally,
to be used in combination with information
from local stakeholders gathered using
qualitative or participatory approaches
(Mguni and Bacon, 2010, Prevention
Institute, Rockefeller Foundation, IFRC,
John Hopkins)

e Similarly, approaches for measuring
community cohesion or social capital
are likely to include a range of indicators
covering residents’ relationships with
others, their perceptions of local area,
English language proficiency, civic
participation and trust in institutions (LGA,
2019, OECD 2013, ONS, 2020, Casey,
2016).

X
®
i
=
3
Q
o
o
3
o
Y
o
0,
D
0O
o
>
®
il
(©)
=]

159



https://www.youngfoundation.org/publications/taking-the-temperature-of-local-communities-the-wellbeing-and-resilience-measure-warm/
https://www.preventioninstitute.org/tools/thrive-tool-health-resilience-vulnerable-environments
https://www.preventioninstitute.org/tools/thrive-tool-health-resilience-vulnerable-environments
https://www.arup.com/perspectives/publications/research/section/city-resilience-index
https://www.ifrc.org/Global/Documents/Secretariat/201501/1284000-Framework%20for%20Community%20Resilience-EN-LR.pdf
https://www.jhsph.edu/research/affiliated-programs/copewell/the-copewell-model/
https://local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/10.31%20Community%20cohesion%20guidance_04.2.pdf
https://local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/10.31%20Community%20cohesion%20guidance_04.2.pdf
https://www.oecd-ilibrary.org/economics/four-interpretations-of-social-capital_5jzbcx010wmt-en
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/wellbeing/bulletins/socialcapitalintheuk/2020
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/575973/The_Casey_Review_Report.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/575973/The_Casey_Review_Report.pdf

Building on assets and reshaping

society

Why is this important in recovery from COVID-19?

Establishing a new “normal” is the long-term
goal for recovery from COVID-19 and it is
crucial that we re-build a fairer, safer and
stronger community. The seismic impact

of the pandemic has enforced a dramatic
change on how we go about our daily lives.
The widespread disruption to communities
has broken down barriers and provided a
unique opportunity for us to reshape the
future together.

The Build Back Better (BBB) concept,
which emerged after the 2004 Indian Ocean
tsunami, highlighted how the aftermath of a
disaster provides the optimal time to drive
societal change.

“Learning from other disasters
shows that the measurement of
recovery needs to be defined,
owned and shared by the
community.”

Build Back Better

Community Effective

Risk Reduction :
Recovery Implementation

Source: Mannakkara et al. (2014)

Ayo100s Buideysau pue sjasse uo buipjing



https://www.emerald.com/insight/content/doi/10.1108/IJMPB-10-2013-0054/full/html

Since the beginning of COVID-19, changes
to our daily routine have highlighted both
positive and negative aspects of nationwide
lockdown. Embracing the positives and
addressing the negatives will undoubtedly
help us reshape society in a way that is
beneficial for all.

Social impact of COVID-19:

w
=
=
S
Q
o
S
o
7
7
@
P9
7}
o
S
Qo
-
®
o
>
o
=4
S
Q
o
o
0,
®
[ o
<

School closures Reduced road traffic Community cohesion
Disproportionate effect on vulnerable Improved air quality, less road Volunteers helping with shopping for
children, uncertainty over exam traffic accidents, more physical elderly, more community projects
results, social isolation and mental activity

health worsened

{va

Working from home Changes to alcohol and
Sedentary lifestyle, social isolation, food consumption
worsening of MSK conditions Reduced violence, increased

levels of drinking, fast food promoted

161




Why is this important for minimising inequalities

The COVID-19 pandemic has illuminated
inequality within our society - lower
socioeconomic and BAME groups are more
likely to contract the virus and are also the
hardest hit by the health, social and financial
impact of lockdown measures. This disparity
is not new or unique to the pandemic (Public
Health England 2020). Minimising inequality
is a fundamental cornerstone of any recovery
plan, with the aim of building an inclusive
and sustainable community where no-one is
“left behind”. Preventing gaps from widening
is a challenge that we must embrace as

we reshape society in the aftermath of the
pandemic.

How can we address inequalities through our reshaping of society?

]
Risk of COVID infection and mortality Management of Job losses
e Availability of PPE for key workers long-term health conditions * Build upon our robust
* Reduce deprivation and prevalence of ¢ Digital health solutions economy
co-morbidities associated with worse ¢ Improved access to healthcare e Create future jobs
outcomes from COVID-19 infection in deprived areas
[
%
Mental wellbeing Education Physical health and lifestyle
¢ Widening access to green space ¢ Online teaching resources e Awareness of alcohol/substance
* Planting trees e QOutreach to those in deprived areas misuse
e Financial security ® Smoking cessation
¢ Widening access to mental e Encourage sport and physical
health services in the community activity
e Community facilities
162

54 |

vy)
=
=Y
=
(o]
o
=
Q
(/)]
(71
(1]
=
(7]
Q
=
o
-
(1]
n
=2
Q
=4
=
«Q
74
(o]
0,
(1]
=
<



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-review-of-disparities-in-risks-and-outcomes
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-review-of-disparities-in-risks-and-outcomes
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-review-of-disparities-in-risks-and-outcomes

Why is this important in Berkshire?

Our strategy for Berkshire is to reinstate and
transform services following COVID-19. We
want to reset our priorities based on what

we can learn from our new environment and
build a resilient future. We plan to introduce
an ambitious, broad-based, transformational
program that can seize the positives from this
crisis to build a healthier, stronger and more
equal Berkshire.

Qur Vision for a Recovered Berkshire

Connected Heaithy

oy
=
8
=2
«Q
o
=
Q
(/)]
(/2]
D
=5
(7]
Q
=2
o
q
(1]
(7))
=
Q
T
=2
«Q
»
(o]
o,
(1]
P9
<

decision- residents across
makers Berkshire has Berkshire
drawn down
5 it maximum
s e Data-driven funding and Strategic and
businesses actions 3 5
Forareah opportunities operational co-
ocdl Insig ordination across
5 partners in
Identify the An agile P anen d Berkshire
right skills for the : framework 1o Aty
9 new Changing our scale activity supporied VCS
environment ?glgﬂ%';‘eggggg A green and
communities Inequalifies sustainable future
= kieaiiied o Diversified
ing with addressed economy, upskiled
pc:rrnerrz fo Gﬁévely ety workforce and
reshape . focus Developed resilient businesses  Collaborators who
Berkshire economy in all policies emg}loynrlgm_ across Berkshire maximise
sKdils al opportunity
- business Reduced hardship
A climate- Wogﬂen?éo QIJ‘?' the support ameng winerable
driven i HZN%%OOJ] residents across A robust evidence
approach b cg’; r? drz‘?u: o Berkshire base behind every
government policies declsion

Source: Berkshire Recovery Plan

In Berkshire we are fortunate to have many and spectrum of wealth and opportunity.
assets to rebuild from. The economy has Attempts to address this disparity have
been robust, reflected by Berkshire boasting  already begun in the context of COVID-19,
one of the highest average earnings in the where a project has been launched to
country in 2019 (NOMIS). We are also one of  reduce coronavirus risk amongst the BAME
the ‘healthier’ areas in England with higher population in Slough through community
levels of healthy life expectancy than most awareness and engagement. Continuing
parts of the country. However, addressing to champion such solutions designed to
our inequalities remains vital with our mitigate healthcare inequality is an integral

ethnically diverse population, areas of rurality = component of reshaping our society.

Sector Reshaping Society

Health and Wellbein ' .
9 e Focus on mental health services to improve access

¢ Maximising opportunities for active travel
* Addressing BAME health impacts

Economic - o ) i
¢ Enable, facilitate and maintain momentum for innovation
* Supporting businesses through economic recovery
® Regeneration, investment and development

Social

 Building community resilience and addressing the impact of inequalities
® Focus on the environment
® Regional education and skills programme

163



https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/

56 |

What has worked elsewhere?

. Stronger Society

The National Lottery distributes over
£600m per year to support community
projects across the UK. Throughout the
COVID-19 pandemic, focus has shifted

to prioritise those projects that have been
most affected by the pandemic. Since
lockdown began, more than £300m has
been distributed to over 7,400 community
organisations. Once such example is the
John Holt Cancer Foundation in Warrington
which provides advice and guidance to
individuals affected by cancer. Funding
such projects that are able to deliver much
needed support through this crisis has set
a fantastic example of how we can build a
stronger society following the pandemic.

Promoting A Greener Economy

Large corporations have required
emergency funding following COVID-19

in order to continue operating and protect
thousands of jobs, with the airline industry
one of the worst affected. Air-France

KLM were given a €10bn taxpayer-
funded bailout backed by the French and
Dutch governments. However, one of

the conditions of this emergency funding
is that flights under 2.5 hours for which
there is a suitable train alternative must

be scrapped in order to reduce carbon
emissions. Such policies set an excellent
example in how we can simultaneously get
the economy back on track and promote a
greener, more sustainable future.

3.

164

Digital Transformation

Digital solutions have been awaiting
implementation and COVID-19 provided
the stimulus required for many industries
to adopt emerging technologies. In
healthcare, video consultations have
seen a surge in popularity as a result of
lockdown measures and social distancing.
Video services and other digital health
solutions can significantly reduce the
burden on healthcare services, allowing
funding to be distributed to areas of
greatest need in the future. However, we
must ensure that the rise of technology
does not create barriers to access for
certain groups in society, notably the
elderly and disabled, to whom digital
health may either be inaccessible or unfit
for their personal needs.

oy
=
=3
=
«Q
o
=
Q
n
(/7]
(1']
=
(7
Q
=
Q
-
(1]
(72)
=
Q
=4
=
«Q
(/2]
o
o,
(1]
=5
<




How can we measure this?

1. Measuring inequalities - The signs
of a more equal and thriving society
will be shown through the reduction of
inequalities. A key indicator here will be
closing the life expectancy gap between
communities and reducing the number
of years lived in poor health, particularly
for women. Signs that we are on the right
track include monitoring economic factors,
lifestyle indicators (smoking, uptake of
physical activity, obesity), levels of hospital
admissions, prevalence of disease and
premature mortality rates.

2. Measuring opinion — Continued feedback
and engagement with Berkshire residents,
employers and local providers will be vital.
Inclusivity surveys and focus groups could
be used throughout our rebuild to identify
how people are feeling and highlight what
isn’t working.

vy
=
=
S
Q
o
S
o
7
7
@
[
o
o
S
Q
-
®
o
>
o
=4
S
Q
o
o
0,
)
=5
<

3. Measuring everything! - It is important to
recognise that one indicator is not going
to tell us if and when we have recovered
from the impacts of the pandemic. Health,
social, economic and environmental
measures will need to be looked at
collectively to ensure that our vision for
the future is being realised. A useful set of
indicators is included in the Build Back
Better tool.

165



https://buildbackbetter.co.nz/project/buildbackbettertool-2/
https://buildbackbetter.co.nz/project/buildbackbettertool-2/

Measuring progress

Why is this important in recovery from COVID-19?

ssalboud Burinseay

The measurement of our recovery from
COVID-19 will be vital to ensure that we head
in the right direction — towards a healthier,
fairer and sustainable society. The impacts
of COVID-19 have been far reaching and
extend well beyond those immediate people
who were infected by the virus. In helping
communities in Berkshire to become better
together and to recover from the COVID-19
pandemic, a host of cross-cutting measures
exploring the impacts of COVID-19 need to
be considered. Many of these have been
highlighted in the individual chapters of this
report. This chapter looks at the opportunities
for bringing some of this together.

“We plan to introduce an
ambitious, broad-based,
transformational program that can
seize the positives from this crisis
to build a healthier, stronger and

more equal Berkshire.”




How can we measure this?

Our Health

Whatever the local health impacts may be on
the health of people in Berkshire, it remains
clear from the COVID-19 pandemic that these
will be felt and experienced by young and old
alike, both in the short, medium and long-term
(see Inequalities Chapter). These impacts

It will be essential for us to measure the
impact of these waves on people across
Berkshire, rather than just focussing on the
immediate effects of the pandemic. This will
ensure action can be taken to prevent or
minimise effects as much as possible and to
target resources to those most in need.

=
(1]
Q
(72)
c
=t
=
«Q
©
=
o
«Q
—
(1]
7]
7]

may not have been felt yet and will occur in

overlapping waves.

e Wave 1 - immediate health impacts of
COVID-19

e Wave 2 — impacts of service disruption on
urgent non-COVID-19 conditions

e Wave 3 - impacts of service disruption on
patients with chronic conditions

e Wave 4 — impacts of COVID-19 control
measures on the wider determinants of
health

Health footprint of the COVID-19 pandemic

1st Wave 4" Wave
Immediate mortality + Psychiatric trauma
and morbidity of » Mental illness
, COVID-19 + Economic injury
¢ T + Burnout

=

2 Wave
/ Impact of resource
restriction on urgent
non-COVID conditions

3 Wave
Impact of

{ ~ interrupted care on
chronic conditions

Health Footprint
of Pandemic

1st Wave Tail
Post-ICU recovery

NeELe. m B

%

Source: Victor Tseng (@ VectorSting) via Twitter

167



https://twitter.com/VectorSting/status/1244671755781898241

&0 |

Wider determinants across Berkshire. Understanding these
Liverpool John Moores University (LJMU) experiences will be essential to address and
recently reviewed the direct and indirect narrow inequalities.
impacts of COVID-19 on health and wellbeing.
Five broad areas of concern were identified, Alongside the work of LUMU, Public Health
which would underpin recovery: England recently published a tool which
e Social factors — impacts on friends, considers the indirect impacts of COVID-19
families and communities on health and wellbeing. This tool enables
e Economic factors — impacts on money, stakeholders to:
resources and education ¢ Monitor changes over time
e Environmental factors — impacts on our e Make timely informed decisions
surroundings, transport and the food we e Intervene to reduce/mitigate against poor
eat outcomes
Access to health and social care e Understand the wider context of
e |ndividual health behaviours. population health.
Each of these areas contain multiple indicators Positive progress
which could be used to measure progress in As Berkshire looks to become better together
Berkshire, ranging from social isolation and and recover from the COVID-19 pandemic, it
loneliness, educational attainment, access to will be equally important to measure some of
green space, care for long-term conditions, the ‘positive’ impacts of the pandemic as well.
levels of drinking, smoking, physical activity Some examples of these are shown below and
and so on. It is important to look at these include reductions in smoking, increases in
separate areas and indicators as a whole, volunteering, building stronger communities,
rather than in isolation. We will need to think accommodation for the homeless, more cycle
about how these interlink and where the lanes and reduced car dependency.

experience of recovery differs for people

COVID-19 pandemic — rebuilding and moving forward together

Living and working
conditions

Flexible A Green economy
working and employment
active travel @

Q Appropriate

use of health
services

Reduced traffic
and healthy
high streets

- &,
\25)
Multiagency

working &
data sharing

Support
tertiary

education high-
productivity
sectors

-

Source: West Berkshire Council 2020

Accomodation
for homeless

A

Falling and unequally across
our population

168

=
(1]
Q
(72)
c
=t
=
Q
©
=
o
Q
—
(1]
7]
(7]



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/wider-impacts-of-covid-19-on-health-monitoring-tool
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/wider-impacts-of-covid-19-on-health-monitoring-tool
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/wider-impacts-of-covid-19-on-health-monitoring-tool
https://www.yhphnetwork.co.uk/links-and-resources/health-wellbeing-support-as-part-of-the-covid-19-response/health-inequalities-yh-covid-19-response/work-outside-yh/

How should we measure this?

Wider determinants

Learning from other disasters shows that
the measurement of recovery needs to be
defined, owned and shared by the community.
The level of community involvement and
leadership is an indicator in its own right

to evidence how we are progressing. The
‘Engaging with Communities’ chapter
suggests ways to encourage this shared
approach and this needs to be one of the
cornerstones to Berkshire’s overall recovery.

=
(1]
Q
(72)
c
=t
=
Q
©
=
o
Q
—
(1]
7]
(7]

Wider Impacts of COVID-19 on Health
(WICH) monitoring Tool: The WICH tool
looks at the indirect effects of the COVID-19
pandemic on the population’s health and
wellbeing

COVID-19 Public Monitor contains a
collection of information about attitudes and
opinions towards the COVID-19 pandemic

Public Health England North East:
Frameworks for considering local action to
support the design of recovery plans

C-WorKS Knowledge Hub: This COVID-19
Consequences hub is hosted by Public
Health England (North East) and supports the
collation and sharing of knowledge about the
health impacts of COVID-19 on non-COVID-19
morbidity and mortality.

169



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/wider-impacts-of-covid-19-on-health-monitoring-tool
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/wider-impacts-of-covid-19-on-health-monitoring-tool
https://yougov.co.uk/covid-19
https://www.yhphnetwork.co.uk/links-and-resources/health-wellbeing-support-as-part-of-the-covid-19-response/health-inequalities-yh-covid-19-response/work-outside-yh/
https://www.yhphnetwork.co.uk/links-and-resources/health-wellbeing-support-as-part-of-the-covid-19-response/health-inequalities-yh-covid-19-response/work-outside-yh/

Working
together for

health and PU bliC

wellbeing

Health

for Berkshire

Public Health for Berkshire
Working together for health and wellbeing

Designed by Creative Services at Camden Borough Council - 020 7974 1985

4223.1, Annual Public Health Team Report 2020, 05/10/20




Working
together for

health and Public

wellbeing

Health
for Berkshire

T.1

Looking Forward to Recovery:

Ten things to consider for Covid-19 recovery planning in
Berkshire

2020 Annual Public Health Report

Public Health for Berkshire

Working together for health and wellbeing



thebmj covid-19 Research Education News & Views Campaigns

Remembering the UK doctors who have died of covid-19

clL1

£.9.8

O g 5433 O Erwn Someg W Ak 5 T =T O Coog Watetam

Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to commumtmﬁti/aANWMJ hm;‘em m&@@%gam@ m@“@lhods.



Impact of Covid

1=t Wave 4% Wave
Immediate mortality * Psychic trauma
and morbidity of + Mental illness
COVID-19 * Economic injury
+ Burnout

“ 2 Wave

= Impact of resource

= = L

~ _g.'E / restriction on urgent

w [ -COVID diti
L% .t% non conditions o
o Impact of
el
T

f‘ - interrupted care on
chronic conditions

1# Wave Tall
Post-ICU recovery -

W W W

V

Source: Victor Tseng (@VectorSting) viaTwitter

Public Health for Berkshire

Working together for health and wellbeing




Impacts of Covid-19 pandemic across the lifecourse () symbol indicates PHOE indicator

Reduced
antenatal care

Perinatal
mental health

H.....l..
B’Safequardingrisks

Risky
behaviours
(smoking/

alcohol/
substance
misuse)

Low
birthweight

Poor attachment
Admissions for

deliberate/
intentional harm

Smoking at time
of delivery

@% R @

Chidhoos Adulinood sy

h He) @ () & (=2 1
©a® bl ® .y ® = ¢ 2 o P T
vEG B L2)REIR &

Perinatal ‘Hidden’ Increased Increased negative health behaviours (e.g. substance misuse, alcohol, smoking, Social isolation
mental health safeguarding negative health gambling, inactivity) amongst some sections of society and loneliness
issues behaviours @
Limited
Breastfeeding Developmental Deferred sexual Paused commissioned lifestyle services, deferred cancer screening/ physical activity
support and mental health health services NHS health checks, reduced health seeking for urgent issues,
checks not ‘hidden' safeguarding issues
completed Low mood and ) )
Immunisation High anxiety Economic uncertainty
uptake MV@M New anxiety and worsening existing mental illness, PTSD for carers/
Noriackdenty childhood health workers and families
injuries experiences

080 & 6d e 6.8 0060809 Q000 €0 006 0 0 09080 0690 00 0000000t eoe s e0anm e

Unplanned Adverse Increased @ @
pregnancies childhood demand for 3 > : 3 2 A
experiences merital heakth Fewer recovering from substance misuse , maeased BBV infections, Dementn_
Adinhalons for sirices adults smoking, adults overweight/obese diagnosis
gasgmintes.t'nal gnd @ @
oy * Unssinted Cancer screening coverage (breast, cervical, bowel) and late presentation Injuries due to falls
3:(‘;'.1:2:: Spﬁei:;"ngg Increased demand for grief and bereavement services, employment/
tadiced training support, claiming out of work benefits Fuel poverty
and outbreaks
People with high anxiety
AP 9 a 89 A4S 9.2.0.9 04'0.0'0.9.0.0.-004''0.9.09.00.'00.0000%00a0%s a0 oo 29002200
Higher risk of poor Q) Increased demand for mental health services gD
mental, physical School Alcohol and ity
health, social readiness substance @
and educational misuse admissions Under 75 mortality from cardiovascular and liver
outcomes under 18 disease and cancer
Obese children Worsening sodal inequalities
Suicid
Admissions for

e & West Berkshir



Contents

3 Sections 5 Questions

* Impacton
communities .

e Strategies that will
help .

e How we will know
recovery is working?

Q.1

Public Health for Berkshire

Why is this important in
recovery?

Why is this important for
minimising inequalities?
Why is this important in

Berkshire?

What has worked
elsewhere?

How can we measure
this?

Working together for health and wellbeing



Employment

Local Authority

Jobs furloughed (no) - as
of July 2020

Rate per 1,000 working

age population

Slough

Bracknell Forest

Rogél Borough of Windsor
and Maidenhead

Reading
West Berkshire
Wokingham

Berkshire Total

26,400
19,200

21,700

26,300
22,600
21,700
137,900

358
295

279

305
265
256
291

Public Health for Berkshire

Working together for health and wellbeing



Children and Young People

Slough (36%)
0000000000 Reading (34%)
n have the highest proportions
eooeseeeeeee Ofchldenandyoung people
nnn n in their population

of Berkshire's population is

made of children and young

people aged
under 25 (288,470 people)

babies born in Berkshire
since lockdown

LLT

young people GCSEs,
school children did not A-levels or equivalent
attend school during examinations cancelled
lockdown

Public Health for Berkshire
Working together for health and wellbeing




Safeguarding

of people aged 16 to 74

Mearly 35,000 children (under 18) are will have suffered from
living in households with at least one of domestic abuse in 2018/19
the “toxic trio” of addiction, mental health /

problems and domestic abuse \

domestic homicides in the
Thames Valley (2018/19)

@ Ower 800 children in

/

Approximately 11,000 domestic
abuse incidents and crimes
reported to Police in Berkshire
(2018/19)

8.1

Nearly 35,000 children (under 18) are Berkshire have an
living in households with at least one of active child protection
the “toxic trio” of addiction, mental health plan

problems and domestic abusze

Public Health for Berkshire

Working together for health and wellbeing




Mental Health

6.1

106,178

106,178 (12% of the population) 74,000 (8% of the population) have a recorded
have an existing common mental diagnosis of depression (QOF via PHE Common
health condition (APMS, via PHE Mental Health Disorders Profile)

Common Mental Health Disorders

Profile, 2017)

Public Health for Berkshire

Working together for health and wellbeing




Environmental Impact

Transport type
Bus (exclu.
Date Cars National Rail London) Cycling
23 March 2020 o
9 25% 9 o
(1= day of lockdown) 64% 2l% 81%
Tuesday 31 March 32% 5% 12% 98%
&
© | Tuesday 28" March 37% 4% 11% 50%
P
Tuesday 27" May 59% 7% 14% / 229%\
Tuesday 30" June 73% 17% 26% ( 127%
\
Tuesday 21= July a83% 25% 349, \ 135% /
\/

Transport use during lockdown period as percentage of an equivalent
week (Department for Transport)

Public Health for Berkshire

Working together for health and wellbeing



Engaging with Communities

Rank of deprivation compared with electoral turnout by constituency

in Berkshire

e _ Wokingham
500 .Wlnde)E__..- e Maidenhead
e Bracknell _a Newbury
x — -
= -
& 400 ____--" e Reading East
= e
§ - . -7 ® Reading West
= -
& 200 #® Slough
= 100
o6}
= 0
64 66 68 70 72 74 76 78
Electoral turnour (%)
® Constituency ~~~~ Linear (Constituency)

Electlon results
Commons Llbrary

L
[ —
]=—

Public Health for Berkshire

Working together for health and wellbeing

do not want to be involved

in local decizion-making

compared to 22% in the

previous year's survey.

did not feel they had any
influence at all over local
decizion-making

compared to 33% in the

Previous year's survey.



esilience and Social Cohesion
. o

is knowledgeable and healthy. is organised. |t has groups and leadsrs
Itz members know how to stay that can bring community members togsther,
healthy and are prepared for identify problems and act to resolve them.
shocks. They leam and build Community members are willing to work
On past experiences. cooperatively and help sach other.

¢8T

is connected. It has relationships has infrastructure and services. It hat access
with central or external organisations to physical assets or external services that
and individuals that can provide enable people to meat their basic needs of

help and support. food and watsr, shelter and health.

has economic opportunities.

It hae a diverse range of I F RC

smployment opportunities and
a flaxible workfores that can
adapt to uncertainty.

Public Health for Berkshire

Working together for health and wellbeing




Building on Assets and Reshaping Society

School closures
IBFIFIJFI'DI'UI:II'IEI:B affact on vulnsrabls
chilldran, UHGB"I.E.I"I‘[}' OBl exXam
regults, soclal lzcistion and meantal
nealth worzenad

€8T

Working from home
Sedantary Meatyle, aoclal Izolation,
'A'I:er-BI'III'Ig of MEK condiions

Public Health for Berkshire

Working together for health and wellbeing

Reduced road traffic
Improved sir quallty, kses road

Community cohesion
Voluntaars mielping with enopping for
sldarly. more community projects

{va

Changes to alcohol and
food consumption

Reduced violanos, Incragzed
lewels of drinking, Tast food promotsd

traffic accidsnie, more physlcal
activity




Measuring Progress

What we measure How we measure
* The things that are  Comparative measures
important between groups

— The gaps — Ethnicity

8T

— The comparison — Age
— Social benefits — IMD

=
2]
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40
EUZ%%1V-%’.’a2!/4%’/.3'/-1/2’/.414%‘}45%%3‘16%%%TK%%SZ%’.’«95’.%’/.10'/;%’/«11!/.%%122%’4137-%5/«14%%3@15?1%%1'

Public Health for Berkshire
Working together for health and wellbeing



This report has been a team effort

Lynne Breit
Andrew Brown (Frimley Library)

Liz Brutus thank you

Becky Campbell

Sam Claridge

Matthew Green L
Holly Jenkins

Benjamin Jones

Kim McCall

Rebecca Muir

Meradin Peachey

Paul Trinder

G8T

We are alzo grateful for the work across the South
East of England coordinated by Sallie Bacon on
behalf of Public health England on the evidence
base for recovery post Covid.

Public Health for Berkshire
Working together for health and wellbeing



This page is intentionally left blank



/81

WOKINGHAM BOROUGH WELLBEING BOARD

Forward Programme from June 2020

Please note that the forward programme is a ‘live’ document and subject to change at short notice.

The order in which items are listed at this stage may not reflect the order they subsequently appear on the agenda.

All Meetings start at 5pm in the Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, unless otherwise stated.

'/€ W8a]| epusaby



881

WOKINGHAM BOROUGH WELLBEING BOARD FORWARD PROGRAMME 2020/21

RESPONSIBLE | CATEGORY
DATE OF ITEM PURPOSE OF REPORT REASON FOR OFFICER /
MEETING CONSIDERATION CONTACT
OFFICER
11 February | Designing our Update Update Deputy Chief Performance
2021 Neighbourhoods Executive
Strategy into Update Update Wellbeing Board | Performance
Action
Review of sub Wellbeing Board
committees and
priorities
Joint Health and Public Health
Wellbeing
Strategy update
Forward Standing item. Consider items for Democratic
Programme future consideration Services
RESPONSIBLE | CATEGORY
DATE OF ITEM PURPOSE OF REPORT REASON FOR OFFICER/
MEETING CONSIDERATION CONTACT
OFFICER
8 April 2021 | Designing our Update Update Deputy Chief Performance
Neighbourhoods Executive
Strategy into Update Update Wellbeing Board | Performance

Action

Joint Health and Public Health
Wellbeing

Strategy update

Forward Standing item. Consider items for Democratic
Programme future consideration Services




68T

To be scheduled:

e BOB ICS Plan
e Children and Young people’s partnership priorities



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	26. Minutes of Previous Meeting
	31. Strategy into Action
	Appendix A - Wellbeing Board Action Group Development Progress
	Appendix B - Key Priority Areas Summary of Actions Update December 2020

	32. Wokingham Integrated Partnerships Update
	33. CCG Operating Plan
	34. Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy update
	35. Berkshire West Safeguarding Children Partnership West Berkshire, Wokingham and Reading
	36. Director Public Health Annual Report
	2020 APHR Slides

	37. Forward Programme

